
 

 

 
 

AGENDA 
 

APOPKA CITY COUNCIL MEETING @ 8:00 PM 
City Hall Council Chamber 

120 East Main Street – Apopka, Florida 32703 
December 17, 2014 

 
 
INVOCATION 

Chaplain Edwin Alicea - Florida Hospital 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

If you wish to appear before the City Council, please submit a Notice of Intent to Speak card 

to the City Clerk. 

PRESENTATIONS 

1. Sons of the American Revolution Fire Safety Commendation Medal - Presented to Jeff 

Tyre by Dan Dall, LTC (ret) US Army 

CONSENT AGENDA 

1. Approve the minutes from the special City Council meeting held on November 19, 

2014, at 6:30 p.m. 

2. Approve the minutes from the regular City Council meeting held on November 19, 

2014, at 8:00 p.m. 

3. Approve the minutes from the regular City Council meeting held on December 3, 2014, 

at 1:30 p.m. 

4. Approve the minutes of Administrative Bid Opening No. 2014-15 for One Custom 

Ambulance for the Fire Department, held on December 8, 2014, at 10:15 a.m. 

Page 1



Page 2 
 

 

5. Award the contract, in the amount of $92,700.00, to Wheeled Coach Industries, Inc., 

for One Custom Ambulance for the Fire Department. 

6. Authorize the purchase from Orlando Business Telephone Systems, in the amount of 

$29,460.00, for new Mitel IP phones and licenses.  

SPECIAL REPORTS AND PUBLIC HEARINGS 

ORDINANCES AND RESOLUTIONS 

1. ORDINANCE NO. 2394 – SECOND READING & ADOPTION - ANNEXATION – Leslie 

& Nancy Hebert, property located at 3600 W. Kelly Park Road. (Parcel I.D. # 13-20-27-

0000-00-046) (6.11 +/- acres) [Ordinance No. 2394 meets the requirements for 

adoption having been advertised in The Apopka Chief on December 5, 2014.] 

2. ORDINANCE NO. 2395 – SECOND READING & ADOPTION - ANNEXATION – 

McCarthy McCollough, property located at 1505 W. Kelly Park Road. (Parcel I.D. # 08-

20-28-0000-00-003) (8.51 +/- acres) [Ordinance No. 2395 meets the requirements for 

adoption having been advertised in The Apopka Chief on December 5, 2014.] 

3. ORDINANCE NO. 2396 – SECOND READING & ADOPTION - ANNEXATION – 

Ahmed & Moira L. Al-Malt, properties located at 308, 316 & 318 E. Welch Road. 

(Parcel I.D. #s 34-20-28-9550-00-271 (2.42 ac), 34-20-28-9550-00-270 (2.42 ac) & 34-

20-28-9550-00-260 (3.00 ac) (Combined 7.84 +/- acres)[Ordinance No. 2396 meets 

the requirements for adoption having been advertised in The Apopka Chief on 

December 5, 2014.]  

4. ORDINANCE NO. 2397 – SECOND READING & ADOPTION - ANNEXATION – Afzal 

& Sabiya Khan, properties located at 382 & 400 E. Welch Road. (Parcel I.D. #s 34-20-

28-9550-00-241 (2.44 ac) & 34-20-28-9550-00-231 (2.89 ac) (Combined 5.33 +/- 

acres) [Ordinance No. 2397 meets the requirements for adoption having been 

advertised in The Apopka Chief on December 5, 2014.] 

5. ORDINANCE NO. 2398 – SECOND READING & ADOPTION - ANNEXATION – 

Guarda and Son, LLC, property located at 1240 Ustler Road; and authorize staff to 

proceed with an Interlocal Agreement with Orange County for Annexation of Enclaves. 

(Parcel I.D. # 34-20-28-9550-00-200) (5.07 +/- acres) [Ordinance No. 2398 meets the 

requirements for adoption having been advertised in The Apopka Chief on December 

5, 2014.] 

6. ORDINANCE NO. 2399 - FIRST READING - CHANGE OF ZONING/PUD MASTER 

PLAN/PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN – Appy Lane Holdings, LLC, from R-

1AAA (0-2 du/ac) to Planned Unit Development (PUD/R-1A) (0 – 2 du/ac) for property 

located West of Jason Dwelley Parkway, north of Appy Lane. (Parcel ID # 18-20-28-

0000-00-089)  

Page 2



Page 3 
 

 

7. ORDINANCE NO. 2400 - FIRST READING - COMPREHENSIVE PLAN – SMALL 

SCALE – FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT – J. William Arrowsmith, from Parks & 

Recreation to Residential Low (0-5 du/ac), for property located south of Lake Alden 

Drive, west of Errol Parkway, and east of Old Magnolia Cove. (Parcel ID #s: 32-20-28-

0000-00-057 & 32-20-28-0000-00-066) 

8. ORDINANCE NO. 2401 - FIRST READING - CHANGE OF ZONING - J. William 

Arrowsmith, from PR to R-1AA (Residential), for property located south of Lake Alden 

Drive, west of Errol Parkway, and east of Old Magnolia Cove. (Parcel ID #s: 32-20-28-

0000-00-057 & 32-20-28-0000-00-066) 

9. ORDINANCE NO. 2402 - FIRST READING - COMPREHENSIVE PLAN – SMALL 

SCALE – FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT – Property Industrial Enterprises, LLC, 

from “County” Low-Medium Density Residential (0-10 du/ac) to “City” Industrial 

(Restricted) (0.3 FAR), for properties located at 320 and 328 W. 2nd Street. (Parcel ID 

#s: 09-21-28-0868-01-250 & 09-21-28-0868-01-260) 

10. ORDINANCE NO. 2403 - FIRST READING - CHANGE OF ZONING - Property 

Industrial Enterprises, LLC, from “County” R-2 (0-10 du/ac) to “City” I-1 

(Industrial/Restricted), for properties located at 320 and 328 W. 2nd Street. (Parcel ID 

#s: 09-21-28-0868-01-250 & 09-21-28-0868-01-260) 

SITE APPROVALS 

DEPARTMENT REPORTS AND BIDS 

1. Administrative Report 

MAYOR'S REPORT 

OLD BUSINESS 

     1.   COUNCIL 

     2.   PUBLIC 

NEW BUSINESS 

     1.   COUNCIL 

     2.   PUBLIC 

ADJOURNMENT 

 

********************************************************************************************************** 
All interested parties may appear and be heard with respect to this agenda.  Please be advised that, under state law, if you decide to appeal 
any decision made by the City Council with respect to any matter considered at this meeting or hearing, you will need a record of the 
proceedings, and that, for such purpose, you may need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made, which record includes a 
testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is to be based.   The City of Apopka does not provide a verbatim record.    
 

Page 3



Page 4 
 

 

In accordance with the American with Disabilities Act (ADA), persons with disabilities needing a special accommodation to participate in any 
of these proceedings should contact the City Clerk's Office at 120 East Main Street, Apopka, FL  32703, telephone (407) 703-1704, no less 
than 48 hours prior to the proceeding. 
  

Page 4



CITY OF APOPKA 
 

Minutes of the special City Council meeting held on November 19, 2014, at 6:30 p.m., in the 

City of Apopka Council Chambers. 
 

PRESENT:  Mayor Joe Kilsheimer 

   Commissioner Bill Arrowsmith 

Commissioner Billie Dean 

  Commissioner Diane Velazquez 

  Commissioner Sam Ruth 

  City Attorney Cliff Shepard 

  

PRESS PRESENT:    Roger Ballas - The Apopka Chief 

 

INVOCATION – The invocation was given by Chaplain Daniel Reyes, Florida Hospital. 
 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE – Mayor Kilsheimer led in the Pledge of Allegiance.  
 

If you wish to appear before the City Council, please submit a Notice of Intent to Speak card 

to the City Clerk. 

 

ORDINANCES AND RESOLUTIONS 

 

1. ORDINANCE NO. 2393 – SECOND READING & ADOPTION - CHANGE OF 

ZONING; PUD MASTER PLAN; AND TRANSPORTATION INFRASTRUCTURE 

AGREEMENT - Adventist Health System/Sunbelt, Inc. DBA Florida Hospital 

Apopka, c/o Raymond Moe, from “County” A-1 (ZIP) to “City” Planned Unit 

Development (PUD/Mixed EC), for property located south of Harmon Road, west of Ocoee 

Apopka Road, and east of S.R. 429. (Parcel ID #: 20-21-28-0000-00-007) [Ordinance No. 

2393 meets the requirements for adoption having been advertised in The Apopka Chief 

on November 7, 2014.] 

 

The City Clerk read the title as follows: 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 2393 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, CHANGING 

THE ZONING FROM “COUNTY” A-1 (ZIP) TO “CITY” PLANNED UNIT 

DEVELOPMENT (PUD/HOSPITAL, MEDICAL OFFICE AND 

ACCESSORY USE) FOR CERTAIN REAL PROPERTY GENERALLY 

LOCATED SOUTH OF HARMON ROAD, WEST OF OCOEE APOPKA 

ROAD, AND EAST OF S.R. 429, COMPRISING 33.7 ACRES, MORE OR 

LESS AND OWNED BY ADVENTIST HEALTH SYSTEM/SUNBELT, 

INC., DBA FLORIDA HOSPITAL APOPKA; PROVIDING FOR 

DIRECTIONS TO THE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR, 

SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS, AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

Page 5



CITY OF APOPKA 

Minutes of a special City Council meeting held on November 19, 2014, at 6:30 p.m. 

Page 2 of 3 

 

 

Mayor Kilsheimer opened the meeting to a public hearing. With no one wishing to speak he 

closed the public hearing. 

 

MOTION by Commissioner Ruth, and seconded by Commissioner Velazquez, to adopt 

Ordinance No. 2393. Motion carried unanimously with Mayor Kilsheimer and 

Commissioners Arrowsmith, Dean, Velazquez, and Ruth voting aye. 

 

MOTION by Commissioner Arrowsmith, and seconded by Commissioner Dean to 

approve the Planned Unit Development Master Plan. Motion carried unanimously with 

Mayor Kilsheimer and Commissioners Arrowsmith, Dean, Velazquez, and Ruth voting 

aye. 

 

MOTION by Commissioner Arrowsmith, and seconded by Commissioner Ruth, to 

approve the Transportation Improvement Development Agreement. Motion carried 

unanimously with Mayor Kilsheimer and Commissioners Arrowsmith, Dean, 

Velazquez, and Ruth voting aye. 

 

SITE APPROVALS 
 

1. PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN - Adventist Health System/Sunbelt, Inc. 

DBA Florida Hospital Apopka, c/o Raymond Moe, for property located south of 

Harmon Road, west of Ocoee Apopka Road, and east of S.R. 429. (Parcel ID #: 20-21-

28- 0000-00-007) 

 

Jay Davoll, Community Development Director and City Engineer, gave a review of the 

Preliminary Development Plan for Florida Hospital, Phase I, stating this was for up to 80 

beds, (400,000 sq. ft.) with 80,000 sq. ft. of medical office space and a helipad on 33.7 acres.  

He advised this Preliminary Development Plan is consistent with the PUD Master Plan that 

was just approved and it is consistent with the Transportation Infrastructure Improvement 

Agreement. He affirmed the Development Review Committee recommends approval of the 

Preliminary Development Plan, and the Planning Commission recommended approval at 

their October 21, 2014 meeting. He stated staff recommends and requests approval of the 

Preliminary Development Plan, Replacement Campus, Phase 1, subject to the findings of the 

staff report.  

 

Mayor Kilsheimer opened the meeting to a public hearing. No one wishing to speak, he 

closed the public hearing. 

 

MOTION by Commissioner Ruth, and seconded by Commissioner Dean to approve the 

Preliminary Development Plan for the Florida Hospital Replacement Campus, Phase 1, 

as presented. Motion carried unanimously with Mayor Kilsheimer and Commissioners 

Arrowsmith, Dean, Velazquez, and Ruth voting aye. 

 

Page 6



CITY OF APOPKA 

Minutes of a special City Council meeting held on November 19, 2014, at 6:30 p.m. 

Page 3 of 3 

 

MAYOR'S REPORT – No report. 
 

OLD BUSINESS 
 

1. COUNCIL – There was no old business from the Council. 

2. PUBLIC – There was no old business from the Public. 
 

NEW BUSINESS 
 

1. COUNCIL – There was no new business from the Council. 

2. PUBLIC – There was no new business from the Public. 
 

 

ADJOURNMENT 
 

        ____________________________ 

        Joseph E. Kilsheimer, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

 

___________________________ 

Linda F. Goff, City Clerk 

Page 7



CITY OF APOPKA 
 

Minutes of the regular City Council meeting held on November 19, 2014, at 8:00 p.m., in the 

City of Apopka Council Chambers. 
 

PRESENT:  Mayor Joe Kilsheimer 

   Commissioner Bill Arrowsmith 

Commissioner Billie Dean 

  Commissioner Diane Velazquez 

  Commissioner Sam Ruth 

  City Attorney Clifford B. Shepard 

  

PRESS PRESENT:    Roger Ballas - The Apopka Chief 

    Steve Hudak - The Orlando Sentinel 

 

INVOCATION – Commissioner Velazquez introduced Christian Ore, Victory Church, who gave 

the Invocation. 

 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: Mayor Kilsheimer said in September of 1620, more than 100 

Pilgrims set sail from England aboard the Mayflower and made landfall about two months later at 

Plymouth, Massachusetts. The Pilgrims lost half of their group during that first winter, but with 

the help of two members of local Native American Tribes, the settlers were able to successfully 

farm the lands and by the following fall had reaped a bountiful crop. To celebrate the harvest and 

give thanks, Governor William Bradford called for a feast and invited the local Native American 

Tribes who worked alongside the Pilgrims to help them stay in their colony. The Tribes and 

Pilgrims hunted together and feasted for three days. It became a tradition for colonists to celebrate 

their harvest annually with the feast of Thanksgiving. Abraham Lincoln proclaimed the final 

Thursday in November to be a national holiday in 1863. However, Franklin Roosevelt signed a 

joint resolution of Congress in 1941 which established the fourth Thursday of November as a 

national holiday, the day we currently celebrate as Thanksgiving. He asked everyone to reflect 

upon the spirit of collaboration between the Pilgrims and Native American Tribes that made it 

possible for Thanksgiving as he led in the Pledge of Allegiance. 

 

PRESENTATIONS  

 

1. Proclamation - Presented to the Apopka High School Bowling Team – Mayor Kilsheimer read 

the proclamation and presented it to the coaches and team members. 

 
CONSENT AGENDA 
 

1. Approve the minutes from the regular City Council meeting of October 15, 2014 at 8:00 p.m. 

2. Reject Bid No. 2014-03, from Wright's Landscaping, Inc., for Lawn Maintenance Services for 

Code Enforcement. 

3. Authorize the disposal of surplus equipment/property and their removal from the City's asset 

list. 

 

Page 8



CITY OF APOPKA 

Minutes of a regular City Council meeting held on November 19, 2014, at 8:00 p.m. 

Page 2 of 10 

 

4. Authorize the Mayor to execute Amendment II of the Project Renew Agreement between the 

City of Apopka and the Orlando Utilities Commission. 

 

MOTION was made by Commissioner Ruth, and seconded by Commissioner Arrowsmith, 

to approve the 4 items of the Consent Agenda. Motion carried unanimously, with Mayor 

Kilsheimer, and Commissioners Arrowsmith, Dean, Velazquez, and Ruth voting aye. 

 

SPECIAL REPORTS AND PUBLIC HEARINGS - There were no special reports or public 

hearings. 

 

ORDINANCES AND RESOLUTIONS  

 

1. ORDINANCE NO. 2386 – SECOND READING AND ADOPTION - CHANGE OF 

ZONING - Florida Land Trust #111 – ZDA at Sandpiper, LLC - From “County” PD 

to “City” Planned Unit Development (PUD/R-1A) for property located south of Sandpiper 

Street, west of North Thompson Road, east of Ustler Road. (Parcel ID Nos.: 02-21-28-0000-

00-106, 02-21- 28-0000-00-131, 03-21-28-0000-00-015, 03-21-28-0000-00-022, 03-21-28-

0000-00- 023, 03-21-28-0000-00-046, 03-21-28-0000-00-047, 03-21-28-0000-00-072, 03-

21-28- 0000-00-073, and 03-21-28-0000-00-119) [Ordinance No. 2386 meets the 

requirements for adoption having been advertised in The Apopka Chief on November 7, 

2014.] 

 

The City Clerk read the title as follows: 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 2386 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, CHANGING 

THE ZONING FROM “COUNTY” PD TO “CITY” PLANNED UNIT 

DEVELOPMENT (PUD/R-1A) FOR CERTAIN REAL PROPERTY 

GENERALLY LOCATED SOUTH OF SANDPIPER STREET, WEST OF 

NORTH THOMPSON ROAD, EAST OF USTLER ROAD, COMPRISING 

58.23 ACRES, MORE OR LESS AND OWNED BY FLORIDA LAND 

TRUST #111 - ZDA AT SANDPIPER, LLC; PROVIDING FOR 

DIRECTIONS TO THE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR, 

SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS, AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

David Moon, Planning Manager, stated at the November 5, 2014 City Council meeting a motion 

was made to adopt the ordinance at first reading with the instructions to staff to discuss mutually 

acceptable development conditions with the Sandpiper PUD applicant. He advised City staff has 

met with the applicant to discuss possible changes that would address concerns or comments 

raised by the general public or discussed by the City Council at the November 5, 2014 public 

hearing.  He went on to review 14 additional development conditions the applicant has agreed to, 

a copy of which is on file in the Clerk’s office.  

 

In response to Commissioners Dean and Velazquez regarding the minimum square footage of a 

home, Mr. Moon advised 2200 square feet was the minimum, and there were no criteria or 

Page 9



CITY OF APOPKA 

Minutes of a regular City Council meeting held on November 19, 2014, at 8:00 p.m. 

Page 3 of 10 

 

standard to control diversity above the minimum. He further affirmed the minimal living area was 

determined based on homes in the surrounding neighborhoods. He added the Council, as part of 

the conditions, could make a policy decision regarding the minimum livable area of a home as it 

relates to the character of the homes of the surrounding area. 

 

Commissioner Arrowsmith said he made the motion at the last meeting to approve the first 

reading, reserving the right to go back and look closer. He stated he has gone to the site and 

looked at the property and suggested there was room to the west and he would like to see them 

extend to the west so they could have larger lots. He further suggested condensing the lots of the 

eastern cul-de-sac to 3 lots.  

 

Miranda Fitzgerald, Esquire, representing the applicant said they have worked very hard with 

staff to come up with voluntary conditions to respond to comments they have heard. She stated 

this was the same land and it was adjacent to the same communities as it was when approved by 

the County in 2007. She stated when annexing into the City it was with the expectation of having 

49 lots, as determined by the County, having been reduced down from 58 to 49 lots. These 

properties will be connected to the City sewer which is a benefit for the City. She affirmed in 

reviewing the public records, the conveyance and restrictions that apply to Oakwater Estates has a 

minimum house size of 2000 sq. ft. allowable, and Wekiva Preserve has an allowable minimum 

house size of 1800 sq. ft., although they have built bigger homes. She stated when Oakwater 

Estates was built in 1986, it came into an area that had a number of smaller lot subdivisions and 

they changed the character of the area that already existed and that character still exists. She 

affirmed the reason Oakwater Estates has half acre lots is due to the necessity of septic tanks. She 

read off a number of the subdivisions in the area that are part of the character of the 

neighborhood. She stated there are statutes on the books today that say a local government can’t 

make decisions in a land use context that unfairly burden the property owner, are unreasonable, or 

unduly burdensome. She submitted that by adding any more conditions than the ones that have 

been voluntarily agreed to crosses that line between reasonable, unreasonable, inordinately 

burdensome, and you cannot be arbitrary. She reiterated local governments must base their 

decision on code, comprehensive plan, and voluntary commitments the developer has agreed to. 

She said they would appreciate Council recognizing the work to arrive to these conditions and 

said this development will benefit the city and neighbors. 

 

Mr. Moon asked the developer to attest to the 14 conditions reviewed this evening, to which Ms. 

Fitzgerald said they were in full agreement with those conditions. 

 

Mayor Kilsheimer opened the meeting to a public hearing. 

 

The following people spoke in opposition to the project, and handed into the record copies of case 

law, traffic reports, and a letter from Scott A. Smothers, Esquire, excerpts from Florida Land 

Development Regulations, and other various documents which are on file in the Clerk’s office. 

Concerns expressed included the consideration of all substantial evidence and due process 

violations. There were many concerns regarding the lot size, the project affecting the surrounding 

property values, environment, nature and wildlife. Suggestions of sending it back to the Planning 

Commission for proper recommendations were made with the chair being recused. There were 

additional concerns regarding the density, traffic and safety.  

 

Page 10



CITY OF APOPKA 

Minutes of a regular City Council meeting held on November 19, 2014, at 8:00 p.m. 

Page 4 of 10 

 

Mark Ingram    Scott Smothers 

Ellen O’Connor   Mary Smothers 

Ginny McGee    Alex Toledo 

 

The Council recessed at 9:45 p.m. and reconvened at 9:50 p.m. 

 

Continuation of speakers: 

 

Lou Haubner    Ray Shackelford 

Doug Bankson    Bryan Nelson 

 

Ms. Fitzgerald presented her rebuttal stating there was no current zoning on this property. She 

again reviewed the lot sizes, both for that being proposed and what was approved in 2008.  She 

stated the burden of proof to show what they are requesting complies with the comprehensive 

plan and zoning. She declared they have complied with everything required, and now the burden 

shifts to the governing board. She reiterated they have worked with staff to come up with 

conditions to make the property more compatible. 

 

No others wishing to speak, Mayor Kilsheimer closed the public hearing. 

 

City Attorney Shepard advised this was a quasi-judicial proceeding, and the Council must make 

their decision based upon competent substantial evidence. He affirmed their decision must be 

based on substantial evidence that is real, fact-based, material, and reliable, and tends to prove the 

points that must be proven. He went on to review the standards and stated opinions of anyone, lay 

witness or expert, are not enough if they do not rise to the level of competent substantial evidence. 

The Council, in considering what evidence has been presented, needs to determine if it rises to the 

standard of what he just reviewed.  

 

Commissioner Arrowsmith said he appreciated the findings of fact they were looking for from the 

other side being brought out tonight. He stated he would be in favor of sending it back to the 

Planning and Commission Board with this information and work more towards a compromise. 

 

Commissioner Velazquez asked if it could be sent back to Planning and Commission and inquired 

what would be the difference between a third reading and sending it back. 

 

City Attorney Shepard said there was still the problem that exists with the prior hearing at the 

Planning and Commission Board due to the way things occurred. He advised he had not 

researched if it would be sent back to them under those circumstances. He declared he would be 

concerned about it and suggested the chair be excluded from the mix if it is sent back, and he 

would be concerned that someone would argue it would be tainted by what had happened 

previously.  

 

Mayor Kilsheimer said sending it back to the Planning Commission was an option. However, the 

facts that have been presented to Council are not going to change.  

 

Discussion ensued with regards to sending the matter back to the Planning Commission or 

moving forward, and Commissioner Arrowsmith said he did not recall previously having had all 

Page 11



CITY OF APOPKA 

Minutes of a regular City Council meeting held on November 19, 2014, at 8:00 p.m. 

Page 5 of 10 

 

of the findings of fact from qualified third parties on the other side. He declared at this point he 

felt they had enough information to not approve it. 

 

MOTION was made by Commissioner Arrowsmith, and seconded by Commissioner Ruth, 

to deny Ordinance No. 2386 on Second Reading.  

 

Commissioner Dean said he felt most of the homeowners in the area would be more receptive if 

the lot size was increased.  

 

Mayor Kilsheimer said that issue has been presented by the surrounding residents who believe 

there should be half acre lots and the applicant has represented that, in light of the fact, all of the 

lots being required to be on City sewer is an economic burden which is why they have presented 

this plan with this number of lots.  

 

Motion carried by a 3-2 vote with Commissioners Arrowsmith, Dean, and Ruth voting aye 

and Mayor Kilsheimer and Commissioner Velazquez voting nay. 

 

2. ORDINANCE NO. 2388 – SECOND READING AND ADOPTION - Amending The City 

of Apopka, Code of Ordinances, Part III, Land Development Code, Section III – Overlay 

Zones - To create a new Section 3.05 entitled “Designated Grow Area Overlay District.” 

[Ordinance No. 2388 meets the requirements for adoption having been advertised in The 

Apopka Chief on November 7, 2014.] 

 

The City Clerk read the title, as follows: 

 
ORDINANCE NO. 2388 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, AFFECTING 
THE USE OF LAND IN THE CITY OF APOPKA, AMENDING ARTICLE 
III OF THE LAND DEVELOPMENT CODE TO INCLUDE A NEW 
SECTION 3.05 TITLED “DESIGNATED GROW AREA OVERLAY 
DISTRICT”, PROVIDING THAT CANNABIS CULTIVATION AND 
PROCESSING AND MARIJUANA DISPENSARIES/MEDICAL 
TREATMENT CENTERS ARE SPECIAL EXCEPTION USES WITHIN A 
“DESIGNATION GROW AREA OVERLAY DISTRICT” AND 
PROHIBITING SUCH USES WITHIN ANY OTHER ZONING 
DISTRICTS OR LOCATIONS WITHIN THE JURISDICTION OF 
APOPKA; PROVIDING ADDITIONAL STANDARDS AND 
CONSIDERATION FOR APPROVAL OF A SPECIAL EXCEPTION FOR 
CANNABIS CULTIVATION OR PROCESSING  OR  MARIJUANA 
DISPENSARY\ MEDICAL MARIJUANA TREATMENT CENTER; 
PROVIDING DEFINITIONS; PROVIDING FOR CONFLICTS, 
SEVERABILITY, CONDITIONS; AND SETTING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

David Moon, Planning Manager, said the Planning Commission held a public hearing on this 

proposed ordinance November 10, 2014. Their motion was to recommend approval of this 

ordinance with the addition that staff should consider a distance separation requirement between 

dispensaries within the proposed designated grow area. He advised the purpose of this 

Page 12



CITY OF APOPKA 

Minutes of a regular City Council meeting held on November 19, 2014, at 8:00 p.m. 

Page 6 of 10 

 

recommendation was to control the number of dispensaries that could locate within any of the two 

designated areas. He stated, based upon his research, the Land Development Code under special 

exceptions already requires a minimum separation distance. He pointed out on page 6, under 

paragraph 10, based upon the Planning Commission’s recommendations, it should not read “no 

marijuana dispensary/medical marijuana treatment center shall be located within 1,000 feet of 

any school or church.” and the rest of the condition read “or another marijuana dispensary, 

medical marijuana treatment center would be added based on the Planning Commission’s 

direction”. 

 

Mayor Kilsheimer opened the meeting for a public hearing.  

 

Heather Zabinofsky, representing Baywood Nursery, said she was purchasing Baywood Nursery 

and would also be purchasing adjacent properties that will be approximately 109 acres, some of 

which is wetlands and will cultivate out at approximately 87 +/- acres. She commented on the 

ordinance and pointed out some areas she felt were a conflict within the ordinance and with state 

law. She spoke further regarding concerns on the security requirements and having visibility from 

the street.  

 

Kenneth Sumner spoke with regards to property he owns on South Binion Road stating the 

proposed ordinance is drafted to allow currently existing nurseries to apply for one of the state 

issued licenses to grow and process Charlotte’s Web cannabis. He stated his location is excluded 

from the grow areas allowed in the ordinance declaring without this ordinance his nursery is one 

of the limited number of businesses that may apply for such a state-issued license. He requested 

the proposed ordinance be amended to include and accept a phrase that would indicate the 

exclusion section of the ordinance not apply to his location. 

 

No one else wishing to speak, Mayor Kilsheimer closed the public hearing. 

 

Mayor Kilsheimer recommended holding off on this ordinance waiting for clarity from the state 

and rules that will be promulgated and approved by the Department of Health. He recommended 

tabling this ordinance for a period of 60 to 90 days. 

 

MOTION was made by Commissioner Ruth, and seconded by Commissioner Velazquez, to 

table Ordinance No. 2388 for 60 days. Motion carried unanimously with Mayor Kilsheimer, 

and Commissioners Arrowsmith, Dean, Velazquez and Ruth voting aye. 

 

3. ORDINANCE NO. 2390 – FIRST READING - COMPREHENSIVE PLAN – 

SMALL SCALE – FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT – Metzler Family Trust, from 

“County” Low Density Residential (0-4 du/ac) and “City” Very Low Suburban 

Residential (0-2 du/ac) to “City” Agriculture (1 du/5 ac), for property located east of Vick 

Road, north of West Lester Road. (Parcel ID #s: 28-20-28-0000-00-010 & 28-20-28-0000-00-

075) [Ordinance No. 2390 meets the requirements for adoption having been advertised in The 

Apopka Chief on November 7, 2014.] 

 

The City Clerk read the title, as follows: 

 

Page 13



CITY OF APOPKA 

Minutes of a regular City Council meeting held on November 19, 2014, at 8:00 p.m. 

Page 7 of 10 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 2390 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, AMENDING 

THE FUTURE LAND USE ELEMENT OF THE APOPKA 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN OF THE CITY OF APOPKA; CHANGING 

THE FUTURE LAND USE DESIGNATION FROM “COUNTY” LOW 

DENSITY RESIDENTIAL (0-4 DU/AC) & “CITY” RESIDENTIAL VERY 

LOW SUBURBAN (0-2   DU/AC) TO “CITY” AGRICULTURE (1 DU/5 

AC) FOR CERTAIN REAL PROPERTY GENERALLY LOCATED EAST 

OF VICK ROAD, NORTH OF WEST LESTER ROAD,  COMPRISING 

9.97 ACRES MORE OR LESS, AND OWNED BY METZLER FAMILY 

TRUST; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; AND PROVIDING FOR AN 

EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

Mayor Kilsheimer opened the meeting for a public hearing. No one wishing to speak, he closed 

the public hearing. 

 

MOTION was made by Commissioner Arrowsmith, and seconded by Commissioner Dean, 

to adopt Ordinance No. 2390. Motion carried unanimously with Mayor Kilsheimer, and 

Commissioners Arrowsmith, Dean, Velazquez and Ruth voting aye. 
 

4. ORDINANCE NO. 2391- FIRST READING - CHANGE OF ZONING - Metzler Family 

Trust, from “County” A-1 and “City” R-1AA to “City” AG, for property located east of Vick 

Road, north of West Lester Road. (Parcel ID #s: 28-20-28-0000-00-010 & 28-20- 28-0000-

00-075) [Ordinance No. 2391 meets the requirements for adoption having been advertised in 

The Apopka Chief on November 7, 2014.] 

 

The City Clerk read the title, as follows: 

 
ORDINANCE NO. 2391 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, CHANGING 

THE ZONING FROM “COUNTY” A-1 (0-4 DU/AC) (RESIDENTIAL) 

AND “CITY” R-1AA (0-10 DU/AC) TO   “CITY” AG (1 DU/5 AC) 

(CONTAINER NURSERY) FOR CERTAIN REAL PROPERTY 

GENERALLY LOCATED NORTH OF LESTER ROAD, EAST OF VICK 

ROAD (2127 AND 2133 VICK ROAD), COMPRISING 9.97 ACRES MORE 

OR LESS, AND OWNED BY METZLER FAMILY TRUST; PROVIDING 

FOR DIRECTIONS TO THE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 

DIRECTOR, SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS, AND AN EFFECTIVE 

DATE. 

 

Mayor Kilsheimer opened the meeting for a public hearing. No one wishing to speak, he closed 

the public hearing. 

 

MOTION was made by Commissioner Ruth, and seconded by Commissioner Velazquez, to 

adopt Ordinance No. 2391. Motion carried unanimously with Mayor Kilsheimer, and 

Commissioners Arrowsmith, Dean, Velazquez and Ruth voting aye. 

Page 14



CITY OF APOPKA 

Minutes of a regular City Council meeting held on November 19, 2014, at 8:00 p.m. 

Page 8 of 10 

 

  

5. ORDINANCE NO. 2392- FIRST READING - CHANGE OF ZONING – Norman 

E. Sawyer, from “County” I-1/I-5 (ZIP) (Industrial) to “City” I-1 (Industrial) AG, for 

property located north of 13th Street, east of Lambing Lane. (Parcel ID #s: 15-21-28-0000-

00- 095 & 15-21-28-0000-00-096) [Ordinance No. 2392 meets the requirements for adoption 

having been advertised in The Apopka Chief on November 7, 2014.] 

 

The City Clerk read the title, as follows: 

 
ORDINANCE NO. 2392 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, CHANGING 

THE ZONING FROM “COUNTY” I-1/I-5 (ZIP) (LIGHT INDUSTRIAL) 

TO “CITY” I-1 (INDUSTRIAL) FOR CERTAIN REAL PROPERTY 

GENERALLY LOCATED NORTH OF 13TH STREET, EAST OF 

LAMBING LANE, COMPRISING 2.3 ACRES MORE OR LESS, AND 

OWNED BY NORMAN E. SAWYER; PROVIDING FOR DIRECTIONS 

TO THE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR, SEVERABILITY, 

CONFLICTS, AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

Mayor Kilsheimer opened the meeting for a public hearing. No one wishing to speak, he closed 

the public hearing. 

 

MOTION was made by Commissioner Velazquez, and seconded by Commissioner Dean, to 

adopt Ordinance No. 2392. Commissioner Arrowsmith reported he would be abstaining 

from voting due to the owner being a client of the bank he serves as Executive Vice 

President. Motion carried by a 4-0 vote with Mayor Kilsheimer, and Commissioners Dean, 

Velazquez and Ruth voting aye, and Commissioner Arrowsmith abstaining and filing a 

Form 8B. 
 

SITE APPROVALS – There were no site approvals. 

 

DEPARTMENT REPORTS AND BIDS –  

 

1.  Administrative Report – Mayor said the Administrative Report was included in the agenda 

packet.  

 

MAYOR'S REPORT - Mayor Kilsheimer reported the City has been conducting a search for a 

new City Administrator over the last couple of months. He stated the results have been narrowed 

down to one candidate, Glenn Irby, who was in attendance. He said there were more than 50 

applications received who were all sent a questionnaire. This questionnaire was returned by 32 

potential candidates. The Committee consisting of Dr. Shackelford, Frank Hooper, Paul Faircloth, 

Jay Davoll, Sharon Thornton, and Chief Manley. Mayor Kilsheimer advised he also attended the 

meetings and the 32 candidates were narrowed down to six, then down to three. He affirmed Mr. 

Irby’s name was at the top of almost everyone’s list. He reviewed the interview process that took 

place last Thursday and Mr. Irby stood above and beyond the other candidates. He advised Mr. 

Irby is currently the City Manager in Umatilla and has been there for the past eight years.  

Page 15



CITY OF APOPKA 

Minutes of a regular City Council meeting held on November 19, 2014, at 8:00 p.m. 

Page 9 of 10 

 

 

Mayor Kilsheimer reviewed the Charter which states the Mayor shall appoint the City 

Administrator. However, he stated he felt it to be right to ask his appointment to be ratified by the 

City Council.  

 

Commissioner Arrowsmith said he just received Mr. Irby’s resume and stated he has received 

some calls recommending Mr. Irby. He said he appreciates the work the Committee has done in 

selecting Mr. Irby, but he feels like in a growing area like Apopka, he was hopeful to have 

someone with experience managing a city of at least 50,000 rather than 3,500 and declared he did 

not feel he was the correct candidate for the future of the City.  

 

Mayor Kilsheimer responded by advising there were candidates from larger cities, but their 

answers to the questionnaire did not make it past the Committee. He stated it was a combination 

of the questionnaires, and calls to outside parties. He said the three candidates were all qualified 

based on experience, their knowledge, skills, and demeanor. The discussion came down to what 

was the best fit for the City of Apopka and who had the right characteristics to take Apopka to the 

next level. He declared it was unanimous in the room that Mr. Irby fit that qualification. 

 

In response to Commissioner Dean with regards of what kind of vision Mr. Irby would bring to a 

city of this size, Mayor Kilsheimer advised Mr. Irby has managed a fairly sizeable organization 

with the Lake County Sherriff’s Department, and in terms of vision, he led a visioning exercise on 

downtown Umatilla that when started had many empty store fronts, and today has no empty store 

fronts. He declared Mr. Irby will use that experience to help lead staff.  

 

MOTION by Commissioner Ruth, and seconded by Commissioner Velazquez to ratify the 

appointment of Glenn Irby to the position of City Administrator. Motion carried 3-2 with 

Mayor Kilsheimer, and Commissioners Velazquez and Ruth voting aye and Commissioners 

Arrowsmith and Dean voting nay. 

 

OLD BUSINESS  
 

1. COUNCIL - There was no old business from the Council. 

  

2. PUBLIC – 

 

Ray Shackelford asked for clarification concerning the City Administrator, inquiring if they 

were a Charter officer, or a Department Head, to which Mayor Kilsheimer stated it, was not 

spelled out in the Charter. The Charter says the City Administrator shall be appointed by the 

Mayor which ostensibly makes him a Charter officer, but it is not spelled out to say Charter 

officer. 

 

Dr. Shackelford spoke in regards to transparency and inquired if it would be possible to have 

the Mayor’s report placed online prior to the meetings. 

 

Mayor Kilsheimer advised the agenda packets for the City Council meetings were posted 

online immediately after he took office and prior to that only the agenda was available. 

 

Page 16



CITY OF APOPKA 

Minutes of a regular City Council meeting held on November 19, 2014, at 8:00 p.m. 

Page 10 of 10 

 

Tenita Reid spoke regarding removal of aquatic plants and she further requested expanding 

Dream Lake Park.  

 

NEW BUSINESS  
 

1. COUNCIL 
 

In response to Commissioner Velasquez’s inquiry about Richard Anderson’s report and why 

more detail was not included, Mayor Kilsheimer advised that Mr. Anderson could not disclose 

all the information with negotiations, the report was to show the level of his work on behalf of 

the City to further those projects.  

 

Commissioner Dean asked for an update at the next Council meeting on some of the issues 

that have been presented to the Council, to include One Apopka for Progress, policy and 

procedures regarding the bidding process for minorities and women. He stated there were no 

minorities in supervisory positions that he was aware of, and the past CAO had stated 

consideration would be given to minorities as positions were filled. He asked for an update on 

the following:  Martin Pond area, and a summer job program for youth. 

 

2. PUBLIC  
 

Ray Shackelford said he echoed the concerns of Commissioner Dean stating we cannot leave 

behind one person of the community.  

Kenneth Sumner asked if he understood Mr. Moon to state his property could not be 

considered as a grow area to which Mayor Kilsheimer advised this item had been tabled and 

he would have the opportunity to address the matter with Mr. Moon.  

 

ADJOURNMENT - There being no further business to discuss, the meeting adjourned at 11:25 

p.m. 

 

 

 

ATTEST:       ____________________________ 

        Joseph E. Kilsheimer, Mayor 

 

___________________________ 

Linda F. Goff, City Clerk 

Page 17



CITY OF APOPKA 
 

Minutes of the regular City Council meeting held on December 3, 2014, at 1:30 p.m., in the 

City of Apopka Council Chambers. 
 

PRESENT:  Mayor Joe Kilsheimer 

   Commissioner Bill Arrowsmith 

Commissioner Billie Dean 

  Commissioner Diane Velazquez 

  Commissioner Sam Ruth 

  City Attorney Clifford B. Shepard 

  

PRESS PRESENT:    Roger Ballas - The Apopka Chief 

 

 

INVOCATION – Commissioner Ruth introduced Pastor Doug Bankson, Victory Church, who 

gave the Invocation. 

 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:  Mayor Kilsheimer said on December 5, 1949, municipal 

elections were held in the Town of Apopka. Of the four candidates for Mayor, a young man 

named John H. Land won the race with 342 votes and thus began Mayor Land’s legacy of public 

service. As you know, Mayor Land went on to serve as Apopka’s Mayor for an unprecedented 63 

years, during which time Apopka grew from a small town to the second largest city in Orange 

County. It just so happens, at that same December council meeting, the City Council petitioned 

the members of the Orange County School Board to name the proposed high school, Apopka 

Memorial High School, as a war memorial to those who sacrificed their lives and service of our 

Nation and that is how Apopka Memorial Middle School, at that same council meeting, was 

processed again. He asked everyone to reflect on Mayor Land’s service to our community and to 

our City as he led in the Pledge of Allegiance. 

 

EMPLOYEE RECOGNITION   

 

1. Lynn Pettingill – Police/Support Services – Five Year Service Award – Mayor 

Kilsheimer said Lynn began working for the City on November 9, 2009, as a Police Officer.  On 

February 8, 2011, he was reclassified to Police Radio System Supervisor.  Lynn was promoted to 

Police Lieutenant on August 8, 2011, which is his current position. Mayor Kilsheimer said Lynn 

was unable to attend and will be presented his award at a later time. 

 

2. Scott J. Burk – Police/Support Services – Five Year Service Award – Mayor 

Kilsheimer said Scott started working for the City on November 16, 2009, as a Property and 

Evidence Technician.  On December 19, 2009, he was reclassified to Forensic Science 

Technician, which is his current position. The City Council joined Mayor Kilsheimer in 

congratulating Scott on his years of service to the City. 

 

3. Erica F. Munoz – Police/Communications – Five Year Service Award - Mayor 

Kilsheimer said Erica began working for the City on November 17, 2009, as a Communication 

 

Page 18



CITY OF APOPKA 

Minutes of a regular City Council meeting held on December 3, 2014, at 1:30 p.m. 

Page 2 of 9 

 

Technician, which is her current position. Mayor Kilsheimer said Erica was unable to attend and 

will be presented her award at a later time. 

 

4. Rafael F. Baez, Jr. – Police/Support Services – Five Year Service Award - Mayor 

Kilsheimer said Rafael started working for the City on November 30, 2009, as a Police Officer, 

which is his current position. The City Council joined Mayor Kilsheimer in congratulating Rafael 

on his years of service to the City. 

 

5. Scott E. Harrell – Fire/EMS – Ten Year Service Award - Mayor Kilsheimer said Scott 

began working for the City on November 3, 2004, as a Fire Fighter First Class, which is his 

current position. Mayor Kilsheimer said Scott was unable to attend and will be presented his 

award at a later time. 

 

6. Christopher “Chris” N. Cameron – Fire/EMS – Ten Year Service Award - Mayor 

Kilsheimer said Chris started working for the City on November 4, 2004, as a Fire Fighter First 

Class.  He was promoted to Fire Engineer November 4, 2010, which is his current position. The 

City Council joined Mayor Kilsheimer in congratulating Chris on his years of service to the City. 

 

7. Randall “Randy” C. Fernandez – Police/Support Services – Twenty-Five Year 

Service Award - Mayor Kilsheimer said Randy began working for the City on November 17, 

1989, as a Fire Fighter.  Randy was promoted on June 1, 1990, to Fire Fighter First Class.  On 

November 1, 1993, he was promoted to Fire Engineer.  Randy was promoted to Fire Lieutenant 

on January 27, 1998.  On September 24, 2000, he was promoted to Fire Captain.  Randy was 

promoted to Assistant Fire Chief on January 13, 2004.  On March 1, 2006, he was promoted to 

Fire Chief.  On August 26, 2007, Randy moved to Community Development as Administrative 

Projects Coordinator.  On August 17, 2008, he was transferred to the Police Department as Police 

Commander.  Randy had a title changed on October 1, 2009, when the “Police Commander” rank 

became “Police Lieutenant”.  On January 11, 2011, he was promoted to Police Captain, which is 

his current position. The City Council joined Mayor Kilsheimer in congratulating Randy on his 

years of service to the City. 

 

PRESENTATIONS – There were no presentations. 

 
CONSENT AGENDA 

1. Approve the minutes from the regular City Council meeting held on November 5, 2014, at 

1:30 p.m. 

2. Approve the minutes from the special City Council meeting held on November 5, 2014, at 

3:30 p.m. 

3. Authorize the issuance of a Peddler's Permit, to First American Fireworks, to sell State 

approved fireworks at 511 South Orange Blossom Trail, from December 15, 2014 until 

January 1, 2015. 

4. Authorize the issuance of a Peddler's Permit to, TNT Fireworks, to sell State approved 

fireworks at 1700 South Orange Blossom Trail, from December 26, 2014 until January 1, 

2015. 

Page 19



CITY OF APOPKA 

Minutes of a regular City Council meeting held on December 3, 2014, at 1:30 p.m. 

Page 3 of 9 

 

5. Authorize the issuance of a Peddler's Permit, to TNT Fireworks, to sell State approved 

fireworks at 2302-2444 East Semoran Boulevard from December 26, 2014 until January 1, 

2015. 

6. Award the contract, in the amount of $920,000.00, to The Crom Corporation for the design 

and construction of the New Ground Storage Tank Number 4, for the Apopka Water 

Reclamation Facility. 

7. Approve the Disbursement Report for the month of November 2014. 

 

MOTION was made by Commissioner Velazquez, and seconded by Commissioner 

Arrowsmith, to approve seven Items of the Consent Agenda. Motion carried unanimously, 

with Mayor Kilsheimer, and Commissioners Arrowsmith, Dean, Velazquez, and Ruth 

voting aye. 

 

 

SPECIAL REPORTS AND PUBLIC HEARINGS - There were no special reports or public 

hearings. 

 

 

ORDINANCES AND RESOLUTIONS  

 

1. ORDINANCE NO. 2394 – FIRST READING - ANNEXATION – Leslie & Nancy 

Hebert, property located at 3600 W. Kelly Park Road. (Parcel I.D. # 13-20-27-0000-00-

046) (6.11 +/- acres) 

 

 The City Clerk read the title as follows: 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 2394 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, TO EXTEND 

ITS TERRITORIAL AND MUNICIPAL LIMITS TO ANNEX PURSUANT 

TO FLORIDA STATUTE 171.044 THE HEREINAFTER DESCRIBED 

LANDS SITUATED AND BEING IN ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA, 

OWNED BY LESLIE AND NANCY HEBERT, LOCATED AT 3600 WEST 

KELLY PARK ROAD; PROVIDING FOR DIRECTIONS TO THE CITY 

CLERK, SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

Mayor Kilsheimer opened the meeting for a public hearing. No one wishing to speak, he closed 

the public hearing. 

 

MOTION was made by Commissioner Arrowsmith, and seconded by Commissioner Dean, 

to approve the First Reading of Ordinance No. 2394 and hold it over for a Second Reading. 

Motion carried unanimously with Mayor Kilsheimer, and Commissioners Arrowsmith, 

Dean, Velazquez and Ruth voting aye. 

 

Page 20



CITY OF APOPKA 

Minutes of a regular City Council meeting held on December 3, 2014, at 1:30 p.m. 

Page 4 of 9 

 

2. ORDINANCE NO. 2395 – FIRST READING - ANNEXATION – McCarthy 

McCollough, property located at 1505 W. Kelly Park Road. (Parcel I.D. # 08-20-28-

0000-00-003) (8.51 +/- acres) 

 

The City Clerk read the title, as follows: 

 
ORDINANCE NO. 2395 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, TO EXTEND 
ITS TERRITORIAL AND MUNICIPAL LIMITS TO ANNEX PURSUANT 
TO FLORIDA STATUTE 171.044 THE HEREINAFTER DESCRIBED 
LANDS SITUATED AND BEING IN ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA, 
OWNED BY MCCARTHY MCCOLLOUGH, LOCATED AT 1505 WEST 
KELLY PARK ROAD; PROVIDING FOR DIRECTIONS TO THE CITY 
CLERK, SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS, AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 

Mayor Kilsheimer opened the meeting for a public hearing. No one wishing to speak, he closed 

the public hearing. 

 

MOTION was made by Commissioner Ruth, and seconded by Commissioner Velazquez, to 

approve the First Reading of Ordinance No. 2395, and hold it over for a Second Reading. 

Motion carried unanimously with Mayor Kilsheimer, and Commissioners Arrowsmith, 

Dean, Velazquez and Ruth voting aye. 

 

3. ORDINANCE NO.  2396 – FIRST READING - ANNEXATION – Ahmed & Moira L. 

Al-Malt, properties located at 308, 316 & 318 E. Welch Road. (Parcel I.D. #s 34-20-28- 

9550-00-271 (2.42 ac), 34-20-28-9550-00-270 (2.42 ac) & 34-20-28-9550-00-260) (3.00 ac) 

(Combined 7.84 +/- acres) 

 

The City Clerk read the title, as follows: 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 2396 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, TO EXTEND 

ITS TERRITORIAL AND MUNICIPAL LIMITS TO ANNEX PURSUANT 

TO FLORIDA STATUTE 171.044 THE HEREINAFTER DESCRIBED 

LANDS SITUATED AND BEING IN ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA, 

OWNED BY AHMED AND MOIRA L. AL-MALT LOCATED AT 308, 316, 

AND 318 EAST WELCH ROAD; PROVIDING FOR DIRECTIONS TO 

THE CITY CLERK, SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS, AND AN 

EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

Mayor Kilsheimer opened the meeting for a public hearing. No one wishing to speak, he closed 

the public hearing. 

 

MOTION was made by Commissioner Velazquez, and seconded by Commissioner 

Arrowsmith, to approve the First Reading of Ordinance No. 2396, and hold it over for a 

Page 21



CITY OF APOPKA 

Minutes of a regular City Council meeting held on December 3, 2014, at 1:30 p.m. 

Page 5 of 9 

 

Second Reading. Motion carried unanimously with Mayor Kilsheimer, and Commissioners 

Arrowsmith, Dean, Velazquez and Ruth voting aye. 
 

4. ORDINANCE NO. 2397 – FIRST READING - ANNEXATION – Afzal & Sabiya 

Khan, properties located at 382 & 400 E. Welch Road. (Parcel I.D. #s 34-20-28-9550-00-241 

(2.44 ac) & 34-20-28-9550-00-231) (2.89 ac) (Combined 5.33 +/- acres) 

 

The City Clerk read the title, as follows: 

 
ORDINANCE NO. 2397 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, TO EXTEND 

ITS TERRITORIAL AND MUNICIPAL LIMITS TO ANNEX PURSUANT 

TO FLORIDA STATUTE 171.044 THE HEREINAFTER DESCRIBED 

LANDS SITUATED AND BEING IN ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA, 

OWNED BY AFZAL AND SABIYA KHAN LOCATED AT 382, AND 400 

EAST WELCH ROAD; PROVIDING FOR DIRECTIONS TO THE CITY 

CLERK, SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS, AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

Mayor Kilsheimer opened the meeting for a public hearing. No one wishing to speak, he closed 

the public hearing. 

 

MOTION was made by Commissioner Dean, and seconded by Commissioner Arrowsmith, 

to approve the First Reading of Ordinance No. 2397, and hold it over for a Second Reading. 

Motion carried unanimously with Mayor Kilsheimer, and Commissioners Arrowsmith, 

Dean, Velazquez and Ruth voting aye. 

 

5. ORDINANCE NO. 2398 – FIRST READING - ANNEXATION – Guarda and Son, 

LLC, property located at 1240 Ustler Road; and authorize staff to proceed with an 

Interlocal Agreement with Orange County for Annexation of Enclaves. (Parcel I.D. # 34-

20-28- 9550-00-200) (5.07 +/- acres) 

 

The City Clerk read the title, as follows: 

 
ORDINANCE NO. 2398 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, TO EXTEND 

ITS TERRITORIAL AND MUNICIPAL LIMITS TO ANNEX PURSUANT 

TO FLORIDA STATUTE 171.044 THE HEREINAFTER DESCRIBED 

LANDS SITUATED AND BEING IN ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA, 

OWNED BY GUARDA AND SON, LLC, LOCATED AT 1240 USTLER 

ROAD; PROVIDING FOR DIRECTIONS TO THE CITY CLERK, 

SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS, AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

Mayor Kilsheimer advised this annexation would create an enclave and staff’s recommendation is 

to enter into an Interlocal Agreement for Annexation of Enclaves with Orange County.  

 

Page 22



CITY OF APOPKA 

Minutes of a regular City Council meeting held on December 3, 2014, at 1:30 p.m. 

Page 6 of 9 

 

Mayor Kilsheimer opened the meeting for a public hearing. No one wishing to speak, he closed 

the public hearing. 

 

MOTION was made by Commissioner Arrowsmith, and seconded by Commissioner Ruth, 

to approve the First Reading of Ordinance No. 2398, hold it over for a Second Reading, and 

authorize staff to proceed with an Interlocal Agreement for Annexation of Enclaves with 

Orange County. Motion carried unanimously with Mayor Kilsheimer, and Commissioners 

Arrowsmith, Dean, Velazquez and Ruth voting aye. 

 

6. RESOLUTION NO. 2014-16 - Granting a non-exclusive franchise, to Container Rental 

Company, for roll-off container collection and disposal of waste in the City of Apopka 

 

The City Clerk read the title, as follows: 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 2014-16 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, 

FLORIDA, GRANTING A NON-EXCLUSIVE FRANCHISE TO 

CONTAINER RENTAL COMPANY, TO PROVIDE "ROLL-OFF" 

CONTAINER COLLECTION AND DISPOSAL OF WASTE IN THE CITY 

OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, PURSUANT TO CITY OF APOPKA, CODE OF 

ORDINANCES, CHAPTER 66, ARTICLE III; PROVIDING FOR THE 

TERM OF YEARS FOR THE FRANCHISE; PROVIDING FOR 

FRANCHISE FEE; PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 

Mayor Kilsheimer opened the meeting to a public hearing. No one wishing to speak, he closed the 

public hearing. 

 

MOTION was made by Commissioner Ruth, and seconded by Commissioner Arrowsmith, 

to approve Resolution No. 2014-16, granting a non-exclusive franchise to Container Rental 

Company for roll-off container collection. Motion carried unanimously with Mayor 

Kilsheimer, and Commissioners Arrowsmith, Dean, Velazquez and Ruth voting aye. 

 

 

SITE APPROVALS – There were no Site Approvals. 

 

DEPARTMENT REPORTS AND BIDS – There were no Department Reports. 

 

MAYOR'S REPORT - Mayor Kilsheimer made note of how the City staff pulled together last 

week and contributed to Mayor Land’s memorial service. The Police and Fire Departments 

stepped in and did everything asked of them. He expressed gratitude to the staff and community 

in the way they worked together to create a memorable and historic event. 

 

Mayor Kilsheimer reported the new City Administrator, Glenn Irby, will start with the City of 

Apopka on January 7, 2015.  He advised there have been 12 applicants for the Finance Director 

and after consulting with Mr. Irby, two applicants will be interviewed tomorrow. He stated he 

Page 23



CITY OF APOPKA 

Minutes of a regular City Council meeting held on December 3, 2014, at 1:30 p.m. 

Page 7 of 9 

 

plans to have a candidate to recommend to the Council at the next meeting on December 17, 

2014. 

 

Mayor Kilsheimer said at the last meeting Commissioner Dean asked for a report on diversity in 

hiring and contracting. Mayor Kilsheimer reported the following: 

 According to our EEO statistics compiled by our Human Resources Department, we have 

32 of 86 supervisory employees that are either women or minority status, which is 

approximately 37%.  

 Regarding increasing minority participation in our contracting, there are a number of steps 

we would need to undertake. An ordinance would need to be enacted to address minority 

contracting goals. The first step towards passing that ordinance would be to conduct a 

study known as a “minority disparity study.” A joint study is currently being conducted by 

The City of Orlando, the Orlando Airport, Orange County, and Orange County Public 

Schools which is expected to take 18 months to complete.  He explained the purpose of 

the “minority disparity study” is to determine if there is a disparity between the number of 

disadvantaged, minority owned, and women owned businesses within a local market area 

that are willing and able to provide these professional services.  He advised he spoke with 

Kevin Walsh who manages the MBE program for the City of Orlando who explained this 

study is a very data driven process that provides the underlying justification for enacting 

such an ordinance. Mr. Walsh has offered to meet with Commissioners individually or as 

a group to outline the steps needed to pursue this.  

 Regarding the City’s participation in sponsoring jobs for local youth; the City has 

participated in the program known as POPS (Professional Opportunities Program for 

Students) since its inception and we routinely host students each summer through this 

program. He also had several meetings with the South Apopka Ministerial Alliance, which 

is working on a longer-term initiative. They are working with Rod Love, an Apopka 

resident, to put forward a proposal that will make a funding request before the next session 

of the Florida Legislature on an idea of seeking matching contributions from both Orange 

County and the City of Apopka if he can obtain an allocation from the legislature directed 

toward this faith based initiative, creating a mechanism to use Career Source to fund youth 

obtaining jobs with 75% of their salaries funded through this program. This proposed 

program will also incentivize and provide small stipends for mentors for each of the youth 

participating in this proposed program. He also affirmed the vision for this program is a 

year-round operation.  

 At the request of Mayor Kilsheimer, Mr. Jreij gave an update on the Martin’s Pond 

project, advising the first phase is complete for the purpose of providing stormwater for all 

of downtown. The second phase will be the boardwalk and 6
th

 Street, and will be 

incorporated with the downtown development. Staff is currently working on the 6
th

 Street 

design which will align it with 441 and a consultant is working on the design of the 

boardwalk. There will be two fountains and a walkway around the pond. He reported they 

are looking to have a bike trail from 4
th

 Avenue connecting all the way to the pond area. 

This area will also be irrigated with reclaimed water. He affirmed the designs are 40 to 

50% complete. He reiterated this project will be coordinated with the downtown 

development. 

 

Mayor Kilsheimer reported the Festival of Trees will have their closing program this Sunday, 

December 7, 2014, and all proceeds benefit the Apopka Historical Society.  

Page 24



CITY OF APOPKA 

Minutes of a regular City Council meeting held on December 3, 2014, at 1:30 p.m. 

Page 8 of 9 

 

 

Mayor Kilsheimer reported Richard Anderson has asked for a list of legislative priorities for the 

next legislative session and he asked the Commissioners to bring forth any items they would like 

taken forward. He reviewed a number of items he would like to see included: funding for various 

wastewater and reclaimed water projects; ensuring any legislation regarding pension reform to 

protect the status of the standing of the City’s pension plans; move up the West Orange Trail 

Phases IV and V on the priority list for construction, connecting them to the coast to coast 

connector trail; funding for a community pool; and preservation of the enterprise zone legislation. 

 

In response to Commissioner Dean stating he appreciated all the work Mayor Kilsheimer did with 

regards to his requests, however, he did not hear a response with regards to plans for development 

from SR 441 to 10
th

 Street, Mayor Kilsheimer advised part of that will be addressed when the 

community visioning is done. He stated staff has been asked to prepare a request for proposal for 

a communitywide visioning initiative.  

 

Commissioner Velazquez said she was on the Enterprise Zone Committee and advised she had a 

resolution to bring forward supporting it.  

 

Mayor Kilsheimer reported State Representative Jennifer Sullivan will be holding regular office 

hours at City Hall, as she is only being provided funds to have an office in Eustis. He affirmed 

there is no longer a local legislative office in the City of Apopka and he has requested Mr. 

Anderson to look into how to restore funds for a legislative office. 

 

OLD BUSINESS  
 

1. COUNCIL - There was no old business from the Council. 

  

2. PUBLIC – Ray Shackelford applauded Mayor Kilsheimer for following up on the concerns 

expressed by Commissioner Dean at the last meeting. He stated he hoped all Commissioners will 

join Mayor Kilsheimer and Commissioner Dean in making sure we obtain results for “One 

Apopka for Progress” and showcase our children’s skills. 

 

NEW BUSINESS  
 

1. COUNCIL –  

 

Commissioner Arrowsmith requested a copy of the employment agreement for the new City 

Administrator to which Mayor Kilsheimer said he would provide him with a draft as they were 

still discussing paid vacation time. 

 

Commissioner Arrowsmith spoke with regards to an issue that occurred last week regarding 

pay checks and stated he couldn’t imagine a financial institution with deposits of the magnitude 

of the City of Apopka would return checks stating they should have been able to review the 

total aggregate the City has. He requested when our contract renews and also what the opt out 

clause is in the contract.  

 
2. PUBLIC –  

Page 25



CITY OF APOPKA 

Minutes of a regular City Council meeting held on December 3, 2014, at 1:30 p.m. 

Page 9 of 9 

 

Isadora Dean spoke with regards to the child who was shot while in her home on 13
th

 Street 

and inquired if the City had some collaboration and conversation with the County with 

regards to crime in what is called South Apopka to which Chief Manley advised they worked 

closely with the Orange County Sheriff’s Department. He advised it had been reported to him 

prior to the meeting the shooter had been arrested. Mrs. Dean also inquired if there had been 

any recent studies with regards to annexing South Apopka.  

Tenita Reid said while she was glad Mr. Irby was coming in as the City Administrator, she did 

not read where he had a maximum on his salary and felt in fairness to other employees there 

should be a maximum range.  

In response to Commissioner Ruth’s inquiry regarding if a commissioner makes a request for 

information could all the commissioners be provided that information, Mayor Kilsheimer said 

if appropriate, the clerk could be requested to send the information to all commissioners.  City 

Attorney Shepard advised caution with this type of dialogue so not to violate Sunshine Law 

by sending individual e-mails.  

 

 

ADJOURNMENT - There being no further business to discuss, the meeting adjourned at 2:40 

p.m. 

 

 

 

 

ATTEST:       ____________________________ 

        Joseph E. Kilsheimer, Mayor 

 

___________________________ 

Linda F. Goff, City Clerk 

Page 26



Page 27



CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 

 

  
 

  X  CONSENT AGENDA      MEETING OF:  December 17, 2014 

___ PUBLIC HEARING      FROM:         Fire Department 

     SPECIAL REPORTS      EXHIBITS:     None 

     OTHER:  _______________ 

  
 

SUBJECT: ONE CUSTOM AMBULANCE 

 

 

Request: AWARD THE CONTRACT TO WHEELED COACH INDUSTRIES, INC., FOR THE 

CONSTRUCTION OF A NEW CUSTOM AMBULANCE FOR THE FIRE 

DEPARTMENT. 

  
SUMMARY: 

 

On December 8, 2014, the City received three sealed bids for the construction of One Custom Ambulance for 

the Fire Department.  The bids are as follows: 

 

1. Wheeled Coach Industries, Inc. – Winter Park Florida (construction in Florida) $ 92,700.00 

2. Ten-8 Fire Equipment – Bradenton, Florida (construction in Missouri)  $109,451.20 

3. ETR – Sanford, Florida (construction in North Carolina)    $105,563.00 

 

 

  
FUNDING SOURCE: 

 

General Fund – The purchase of the new ambulance is included in the FY 2014/15 budget. 

    
RECOMMENDATION ACTION: 

 

Award the contract to Wheeled Coach Industries, Inc., for the construction of a new custom ambulance for the 

Fire Department. 

  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director  

Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    

City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  

Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 
 

 

Page 28



CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 

 

  
 

  X  CONSENT AGENDA      MEETING OF: December 17, 2014     

_____PUBLIC HEARING      FROM:  Information Technology         

      SPECIAL REPORTS           EXHIBITS:    

      OTHER:  Ordinances & Resolutions   
 

SUBJECT: UPGRADE OUR EXISTING LEGACY MITEL DIGITAL PHONES TO CURRENT 

IP PHONES.   

 

Request: APPROVE THE DISBURSEMENT OF BUDGETED FUNDS TO ORLANDO 

BUSINESS TELEPHONE SYSTEMS WHO IS OUR AUTHORIZED MITEL DEALER 

FOR THE PURCHASE OF NEW IP PHONES AND LICENSES.    

  
SUMMARY: Mitel is currently running a promotion until the end of this year for its current customers who 

wish to upgrade their existing legacy digital phones to new IP based phones.  The promotion is a “buy one 

get one free” offer and is good for both hardware and software licensing.  We are looking to replace 152 

digital phones with IP phones, through this offer we will only have to pay for 76 IP phones and licenses and 

we will receive an additional 76 IP phones and licenses at no cost.  We will be purchasing the following 

models of IP phones: 

 

Mitel 5230 IP Phones – Quantity to purchase – 55 at $160.00 totaling $8,800.00 

Mitel 5330 IP Phones – Quantity to purchase – 21 at $260.00 totaling $5,460.00 

Mitel IP Phone Licenses – Quantity to purchase – 76 at $140.00 totaling $10,640.00 

Device Power Supplies – Quantity to purchase – 152 at $30.00 totaling $4,560.00 

 

 

  
FUNDING SOURCE: Budgeted in Fiscal Year 2014/2015 account number 001-5110-519.6400 

 

  

  
RECOMMENDATION ACTION: 

 

Authorize the purchase of new Mitel IP phones and licenses for the amount of $29,460.00 to Orlando 

Business Telephone Systems. 

  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Dir.   Public Services Director  

Commissioners     HR Director   Recreation Director    

City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk 

Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 
 

 

Page 29



CITY OF APOPKA 
CITY COUNCIL 

                                                                                                   _____          
       CONSENT AGENDA     MEETING OF: December 17, 2014 
  X   PUBLIC HEARING     FROM:   Community Development 
       SPECIAL REPORTS     EXHIBITS: Exhibit “A” Summary of Cycle 4 
  X   OTHER: Annexation       Ordinance No. 2394  
          Vicinity Map 
                                                                                  ______                       

SUBJECT:   2014 ANNEXATION “CYCLE NO. 4 
 
REQUEST:    SECOND READING & ADOPTION OF ORDINANCE NO. 2394 - 

LESLIE HEBERT AND NANCY HEBERT. 
                                                                                _____                 

SUMMARY: 
 
OWNER:   Leslie Hebert and Nancy Hebert 
 
LOCATION:   3600 West Kelly Road 
 
PARCEL ID NO.:  13-20-27-0000-00-046 
 
LAND USE:   Refer to Exhibit “A”  
 
EXISTING USE:  Refer to Exhibit “A”  
 
TRACT SIZE:   6.11 +/- acres 
 
ADDITIONAL COMMENTS: The proposed annexation shall be on the basis of the existing County Future 
Land Use and Zoning designations.  The assignment of a City Future Land Use and Zoning designation will 
occur at a later date, and through additional action by the City Council. 
 
ORANGE COUNTY NOTIFICATION: The JPA requires the City to notify the County 15 days prior to the 
first reading of any annexation ordinance.  The City provided notification to the County on November 14, 2014. 
 
DULY ADVERTISED: 
November 21, 2014 - 1/4 Page Public Hearing Advertisement 
November 28, 2014 - 1/4 Page Public Hearing Advertisement 
December 5, 2014 - Ordinance Headings Advertisement 
 
PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 
December 3, 2014 (1:30 pm) - City Council 1

st
 Reading 

December 17, 2014 (8:00 pm) - City Council 2
nd

 Reading and Adoption 
                                                                  _______                                        
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
The Development Review Committee recommends approval of the 2014 Annexation Cycle # 4. 
 
The City Council, at its meeting on December 3, 2014, accepted the First Reading of Ordinance No. 2394 and 
held it over for Second Reading and Adoption on December 17, 2014. 
 
Adopt Ordinance No. 2394. 
                                                                                  ____                            
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer     Finance Dir.    Public Ser. Dir. 
Commissioners (4)     HR Director    City Clerk    
City Administrator        IT Director    Fire Chief 
Community Dev. Dir.     Police Chief  
G:\Shared\4020\Planning_Zoning\Annexation\2014\14 Cycle 4\Council\Ord. 2394 – Hebert- CC 12-17-14 2nd Rd Page 30



Page 1 

 
 

EXHIBIT “A” 
CITY OF APOPKA 

2014 ANNEXATION CYCLE #4 
TOTAL ACRES:  32.86+/- 
ANNEXATION ORDINANCE NO.: 2394-2398 

 
Adopted this 17th day of December, 2014 

 

ORD. 

NO. 

ITEM 

NO. 

OWNER’S NAME LOCATION PARCEL NUMBER ACRES 

+/- 

EXISTING 

USE 

FUTURE LAND USE 

(COUNTY) 

2394 1 
LESLIE HEBERT                          
NANCY HEBERT 

3600 W. KELLY PARK 
ROAD 

13-20-27-0000-00-046 6.11 SFR 
Rural  

Max. 1du/10 acres 
 

2395 2 MCCARTHY MCCOLLOUGH 
1505 WEST KELLY PARK 

ROAD 
08-20-28-0000-00-003 8.51 SFR 

Rural 
Max. 1du/10 acres 

 

2396 3 
AHMED AL-MALT            

MOIRA L. AL-MALT 
 

318 E WELCH ROAD         
316 E.WELCH ROAD              
308 E. WELCH R0AD  

 

34-20-28-9550-00-260        
34-20-28-9550-00-270     
34-20-28-9550-00-271 

 

3.00      
2.42            
2.42 
7.84 

VACANT LAND 
Low Density Residential 

Max. 4du/ac 

 

2397 4 
AFZAL KHAN 
SABIYA KHAN 

382 E. WELCH ROAD 
400 E. WELCH ROAD 

34-20-28-9550-00-241     
34-20-28-9550-00-231 

2.44       
2.89       
5.33 

SFR                       
WAREHOUSE 

Low Density Residential 
Max. 4du/ac 

2398 5 GUARDA AND SON, LLC 1240 USTLER ROAD 34-20-28-9550-00-200 5.07 
SFR 

MANF. HOME 
Low Density Residential 

Max. 4du/ac 

    TOTAL ACRES 32.86   

g:\Shared\4020\PLANNING_ZONING\Annexations\2014 Cycle 4 Spreadsheet.wpd 

Page 31



ORDINANCE NO. 2394 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, TO EXTEND ITS 

TERRITORIAL AND MUNICIPAL LIMITS TO ANNEX PURSUANT TO FLORIDA 

STATUTE 171.044 THE HEREINAFTER DESCRIBED LANDS SITUATED AND BEING 

IN ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA, OWNED BY LESLIE AND NANCY HEBERT, LOCATED 

AT 3600 WEST KELLY PARK ROAD; PROVIDING FOR DIRECTIONS TO THE CITY 

CLERK, SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS, AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

 WHEREAS, Leslie and Nancy Hebert, owners thereof, have petitioned the 

City Council of the City of Apopka, Florida, to annex the property located 

at 3600 West Kelly Park Road; and  

 

 WHEREAS, Florida Statute 171.044 of the General Laws of Florida provide 

that a municipal corporation may annex property into its corporate limits upon 

voluntary petition of the owners, by passing and adopting a non-emergency 

ordinance to annex said property; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Apopka, Florida is desirous of 

annexing and redefining the boundaries of the municipality to include the 

subject property pursuant to Florida Statute 171.044. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Apopka, 

Florida, as follows: 

 

 SECTION I:  That the following described property, being situated in 

Orange County, Florida, totaling 6.11 +/- acres, and graphically depicted by 

the attached Exhibit "A", is hereby annexed into the City of Apopka, Florida, 

pursuant to the voluntary annexation provisions of Chapter 171.044, Florida 

Statutes, and other applicable laws: 

 

Legal Description: 

 

COMMENCE AT THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF THE NORTHEAST ¼ OF THE NORTHWEST 

¼ THENCE SOUTH 30 FEET, EAST 227.8 FEET FOR THE POINT OF BEGINNING; 

THENCE EAST 100 FEET, SOUTH 190 FEET, EAST 265.1 FEET, SOUTH 110 

FEET, EAST 66 FEET, SOUTH 579.56 FEET, WEST 358.66 FEET, NORTH 

606.59 FEET, WEST 81.24 FEET, NORTH 275 FEET TO THE POINT OF 

BEGINNING IN SEC 13-20-27   

Parcel I.D.: 13-20-27-0000-00-046  

Contains: 6.11 +/- Acres 

 

     SECTION II:  That the corporate territorial limits of the City of Apopka, 

Florida, are hereby redefined to include said land herein described and 

annexed. 

 

 SECTION III:  That the City Council will designate the land use 

classification and zoning category of these annexed lands in accordance with 

applicable City ordinances and State laws. 

 

 SECTION IV: That the land herein described and future inhabitants of the 

land herein described shall be liable for all debts and obligations and be 

subject to all species of taxation, laws, ordinances and regulations of the 

City. 
Page 32



 

ORDINANCE NO. 2394 

PAGE 2  

 

 SECTION V:  That if any section or portion of a section or subsection 

of this Ordinance proves to be invalid, unlawful, or unconstitutional, it 

shall not be held to invalidate or impair the validity, force, or effect of 

any other section or portion of a section or subsection or part of this 

ordinance. 

 

 SECTION VI:  That all ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict 

herewith are hereby repealed. 

 

 SECTION VII: That this ordinance shall take effect upon passage and 

adoption, thereafter the City Clerk is hereby directed to file this ordinance 

with the Clerk of the Circuit Court in and for Orange County, Florida; the 

Orange County Property Appraiser; and the Department of State of the State 

of Florida.  
 

 

           Joseph E. Kilsheimer, Mayor                                  

 

ATTEST:  

 

 

 

__________________________________ 

Linda Goff, City Clerk 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

 

 

__________________________________ 

Clifford B. Shepard, City Attorney 

 

 

DULY ADVERTISED FOR PUBLIC HEARING: November 21, 2014 

        November 28, 2014 

        December 5, 2014 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

G:\Shared\4020\Planning_Zoning\Annexations\2014\2014Cycle4\Council Packets\Ord.2394-Hebert 

 
READ FIRST TIME: December 3, 2014 
 
READ SECOND TIME 
AND ADOPTED:     December 17, 2014 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 33



 

ANNEXATION 

LESLIE & NANCY HEBERT 

3600 WEST KELLY PARK ROAD 

          
        Exhibit “A”                  

          Ord. # 2394 

        Parcel ID: 13-20-27-0000-00-046 

  

 Total Acres: 6.11 +/-      

 

 

VICINITY MAP 

 
 

Page 34



Page 35



CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 

 
                                                                                     _____          

       CONSENT AGENDA     MEETING OF: December 17, 2014 

  X   PUBLIC HEARING     FROM:   Community Development 

       SPECIAL REPORTS     EXHIBITS: Exhibit “A” Summary of Cycle 4 

  X   OTHER: Annexation       Ordinance No. 2395  

          Vicinity Map 
                                                                                  ______                       

SUBJECT:   2014 ANNEXATION “CYCLE NO. 4” 

 

REQUEST:    SECOND READING & ADOPTION OF ORDINANCE NO. 2395 - 

MCCARTHY MCCOLLOUGH. 
                                                                                _____                 

SUMMARY: 

 

OWNER:   McCarthy McCollough 

 

LOCATION:   1505 West Kelly Road 

 

PARCEL ID NO.:  08-20-29-0000-00-003 

 

LAND USE:   Refer to Exhibit “A”  

 

EXISTING USE:  Refer to Exhibit “A”  

 

TRACT SIZE:   8.51 +/- acres 

 

ADDITIONAL COMMENTS: The proposed annexation shall be on the basis of the existing County Future 

Land Use and Zoning designations.  The assignment of a City Future Land Use and Zoning designation will 

occur at a later date, and through additional action by the City Council. 

 

ORANGE COUNTY NOTIFICATION: The JPA requires the City to notify the County 15 days prior to the 

first reading of any annexation ordinance.  The City provided notification to the County on November 14, 2014. 

 

DULY ADVERTISED: 

November 21, 2014 - 1/4 Page Public Hearing Advertisement 

November 28, 2014 - 1/4 Page Public Hearing Advertisement 

December 5, 2014 - Ordinance Headings Advertisement 

 

PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 

December 3, 2014 (1:30 pm) - City Council 1
st
 Reading 

December 17, 2014 (8:00 pm) - City Council 2
nd

 Reading and Adoption 
__________________________________________________________________________________________ 

DISTRIBUTION 

Mayor Kilsheimer     Finance Dir.    Public Ser. Dir. 

Commissioners (4)     HR Director    City Clerk    

City Administrator              IT Director    Fire Chief 

Community Dev. Dir.     Police Chief  

G:\Shared\4020\Planning_Zoning\Annexation\2014\14 Cycle 4\Council\Ord. 2395 - McCollough - CC 10-1-14 1st Rd Page 36



CITY COUNCIL – DECEMBER 17, 2014 
2014 ANNEXATION CYCLE #4 
PAGE 2 

 

 

 
__________________________________________________________________________________________ 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 

 

The Development Review Committee recommends approval of the 2014 Annexation Cycle # 4. 

 

The City Council, at its meeting on December 3, 2014, accepted the First Reading of Ordinance No. 2395 and 

held it over for Second Reading and Adoption on December 17, 2014. 

 

Adopt Ordinance No. 2395. 

Page 37



Page 1 

 
 

EXHIBIT “A” 
CITY OF APOPKA 

2014 ANNEXATION CYCLE #4 
TOTAL ACRES:  32.86+/- 
ANNEXATION ORDINANCE NO.: 2394-2398 

 
Adopted this 17th day of December, 2014 

 

ORD. 

NO. 

ITEM 

NO. 

OWNER’S NAME LOCATION PARCEL NUMBER ACRES 

+/- 

EXISTING 

USE 

FUTURE LAND USE 

(COUNTY) 

2394 1 
LESLIE HEBERT                          
NANCY HEBERT 

3600 W. KELLY PARK 
ROAD 

13-20-27-0000-00-046 6.11 SFR 
Rural  

Max. 1du/10 acres 
 

2395 2 MCCARTHY MCCOLLOUGH 
1505 WEST KELLY PARK 

ROAD 
08-20-28-0000-00-003 8.51 SFR 

Rural 
Max. 1du/10 acres 

 

2396 3 
AHMED AL-MALT            

MOIRA L. AL-MALT 
 

318 E WELCH ROAD         
316 E.WELCH ROAD              
308 E. WELCH R0AD  

 

34-20-28-9550-00-260        
34-20-28-9550-00-270     
34-20-28-9550-00-271 

 

3.00      
2.42            
2.42 
7.84 

VACANT LAND 
Low Density Residential 

Max. 4du/ac 

 

2397 4 
AFZAL KHAN 
SABIYA KHAN 

382 E. WELCH ROAD 
400 E. WELCH ROAD 

34-20-28-9550-00-241     
34-20-28-9550-00-231 

2.44       
2.89       
5.33 

SFR                       
WAREHOUSE 

Low Density Residential 
Max. 4du/ac 

2398 5 GUARDA AND SON, LLC 1240 USTLER ROAD 34-20-28-9550-00-200 5.07 
SFR 

MANF. HOME 
Low Density Residential 

Max. 4du/ac 

    TOTAL ACRES 32.86   

g:\Shared\4020\PLANNING_ZONING\Annexations\2014 Cycle 4 Spreadsheet.wpd 

Page 38



ORDINANCE NO. 2395 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, TO EXTEND ITS 

TERRITORIAL AND MUNICIPAL LIMITS TO ANNEX PURSUANT TO FLORIDA 

STATUTE 171.044 THE HEREINAFTER DESCRIBED LANDS SITUATED AND BEING 

IN ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA, OWNED BY MCCARTHY MCCOLLOUGH, LOCATED 

AT 1505 WEST KELLY PARK ROAD; PROVIDING FOR DIRECTIONS TO THE CITY 

CLERK, SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS, AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

 WHEREAS, McCarthy McCollough, owner thereof, has petitioned the City 

Council of the City of Apopka, Florida, to annex the property located at 1505 

West Kelly Park Road; and  

 

 WHEREAS, Florida Statute 171.044 of the General Laws of Florida provide 

that a municipal corporation may annex property into its corporate limits upon 

voluntary petition of the owners, by passing and adopting a non-emergency 

ordinance to annex said property; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Apopka, Florida is desirous of 

annexing and redefining the boundaries of the municipality to include the 

subject property pursuant to Florida Statute 171.044. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Apopka, 

Florida, as follows: 

 

 SECTION I:  That the following described property, being situated in 

Orange County, Florida, totaling 8.51 +/- acres, and graphically depicted by 

the attached Exhibit "A", is hereby annexed into the City of Apopka, Florida, 

pursuant to the voluntary annexation provisions of Chapter 171.044, Florida 

Statutes, and other applicable laws: 

 

Legal Description: 

 

THE NORTH 400 FEET OF THE WEST 330 FEET OF THE EAST 1180 FEET OF 

THE SOUTHEAST ¼ OF THE SOUTHWEST ¼ AND THE NORTH 575 FEET OF THE 

WEST 15.00 FEET OF THE WEST 121.71 FEET OF THE EAST 850 FEET OF THE 

SOUTH ½ OF THE SOUTHWEST ¼ OF SECTION 8, TOWNSHIP 20 SOUTH, RANGE 

28 EAST, ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA, AND THE WEST 15.00 FEET OF THE WEST 

121.71 FEET OF THE EAST 850 FEET OF THE SOUTH ½ OF THE SOUTHWEST 

¼, LESS THE NORTH 575 FEET, SECTION 8, TOWNSHIP 20 SOUTH, RANGE 28 

EAST, ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA, EXCEPTING THE SOUTH 30 FEET FOR ROAD 

RIGHT-OF-WAY. 

Parcel I.D.: 08-20-28-0000-00-003  

Contains: 8.51 +/- Acres 

 

     SECTION II:  That the corporate territorial limits of the City of Apopka, 

Florida, are hereby redefined to include said land herein described and 

annexed. 

 

 SECTION III:  That the City Council will designate the land use 

classification and zoning category of these annexed lands in accordance with 

applicable City ordinances and State laws. 

Page 39



 

ORDINANCE NO. 2395 

PAGE 2  

 

 SECTION IV: That the land herein described and future inhabitants of the 

land herein described shall be liable for all debts and obligations and be 

subject to all species of taxation, laws, ordinances and regulations of the 

City. 

 

 SECTION V:  That if any section or portion of a section or subsection 

of this Ordinance proves to be invalid, unlawful, or unconstitutional, it 

shall not be held to invalidate or impair the validity, force, or effect of 

any other section or portion of a section or subsection or part of this 

ordinance. 

 

 SECTION VI:  That all ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict 

herewith are hereby repealed. 

 

 SECTION VII: That this ordinance shall take effect upon passage and 

adoption, thereafter the City Clerk is hereby directed to file this ordinance 

with the Clerk of the Circuit Court in and for Orange County, Florida; the 

Orange County Property Appraiser; and the Department of State of the State 

of Florida.  
 

 

           Joseph E. Kilsheimer, Mayor                                  

 

ATTEST:  

 

 

 

__________________________________ 

Linda Goff, City Clerk 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

 

 

__________________________________ 

Clifford B. Shepard, City Attorney 

 

 

DULY ADVERTISED FOR PUBLIC HEARING: November 21, 2014 

        November 28, 2014 

        December 5, 2014 
G:\Shared\4020\Planning_Zoning\Annexations\2014\2014Cycle4\Council Packets\Ord.2396- McCollough 

 
READ FIRST TIME: December 3, 2014 

 
READ SECOND TIME 
AND ADOPTED:     December 17, 2014 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 40



 

ANNEXATION 

MCCARTHY MCCOLLOUGH 

1505 WEST KELLY PARK ROAD 

          
        Exhibit “A”                  

          Ord. # 2395 

        Parcel ID: 08-20-28-0000-00-003 

  

 Total Acres: 8.51 +/-      

 

 

VICINITY MAP 

 
 

Page 41



Page 42



CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 

 
                                                                                   _____          

       CONSENT AGENDA     MEETING OF: December 17, 2014 

  X   PUBLIC HEARING     FROM:   Community Development 

       SPECIAL REPORTS     EXHIBITS: Exhibit “A” Summary of Cycle 4 

  X   OTHER: Annexation       Ordinance No. 2396  

          Vicinity Map 
                                                                                  ______                       

SUBJECT:   2014 ANNEXATION “CYCLE NO. 4 

 

REQUEST:    SECOND READING & ADOPTION OF ORDINANCE NO. 2396 – 

AHMED AL-MALT AND MOIRA L. AL-MALT. 
                                                                                _____                 

SUMMARY: 

 

OWNER:   Ahmed and Moira L. Al-Malt 

 

LOCATION:   308, 316 & 318 East Welch Road 

 

PARCEL ID NO.:  34-20-28-9550-00-271, 34-20-28-9550-00-270 and 34-20-28-9550-00-260 

 

LAND USE:   Refer to Exhibit “A”  

 

EXISTING USE:  Refer to Exhibit “A”  

 

TRACT SIZE:   7.84 +/- acres 

 

ADDITIONAL COMMENTS: The proposed annexation shall be on the basis of the existing County Future 

Land Use and Zoning designations.  The assignment of a City Future Land Use and Zoning designation will 

occur at a later date, and through additional action by the City Council. 

 

ORANGE COUNTY NOTIFICATION: The JPA requires the City to notify the County 15 days prior to the 

first reading of any annexation ordinance.  The City provided notification to the County on November 14, 2014. 

 

DULY ADVERTISED: 

November 21, 2014 - 1/4 Page Public Hearing Advertisement 

November 28, 2014 - 1/4 Page Public Hearing Advertisement 

December 5, 2014 - Ordinance Headings Advertisement 

 

PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 

December 3, 2014 (1:30 pm) - City Council 1
st
 Reading 

December 17, 2014 (8:00 pm) - City Council 2
nd

 Reading and Adoption 
                                                                                  ____                            

DISTRIBUTION 

Mayor Kilsheimer     Finance Dir.    Public Ser. Dir. 

Commissioners (4)     HR Director    City Clerk    

City Administrator        IT Director    Fire Chief 

Community Dev. Dir.     Police Chief   
G:\Shared\4020\Planning_Zoning\Annexation\2014\14 Cycle 4\Council\Ord. 2396 – Al-Malt - CC 12-17-14 2nd Rd Page 43



CITY COUNCIL – DECEMBER 17, 2014 
2014 ANNEXATION CYCLE #4 
PAGE 2 

 

 

 
                                                                  _______                                        

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 

 

The Development Review Committee recommends approval of the 2014 Annexation Cycle # 4. 

 

The City Council, at its meeting on December 3, 2014, accepted the First Reading of Ordinance No. 2396 and 

held it over for Second Reading and Adoption on December 17, 2014. 

 

Adopt Ordinance No. 2396. 

Page 44



Page 1 

 
 

EXHIBIT “A” 
CITY OF APOPKA 

2014 ANNEXATION CYCLE #4 
TOTAL ACRES:  32.86+/- 
ANNEXATION ORDINANCE NO.: 2394-2398 

 
Adopted this 17th day of December, 2014 

 

ORD. 

NO. 

ITEM 

NO. 

OWNER’S NAME LOCATION PARCEL NUMBER ACRES 

+/- 

EXISTING 

USE 

FUTURE LAND USE 

(COUNTY) 

2394 1 
LESLIE HEBERT                          
NANCY HEBERT 

3600 W. KELLY PARK 
ROAD 

13-20-27-0000-00-046 6.11 SFR 
Rural  

Max. 1du/10 acres 
 

2395 2 MCCARTHY MCCOLLOUGH 
1505 WEST KELLY PARK 

ROAD 
08-20-28-0000-00-003 8.51 SFR 

Rural 
Max. 1du/10 acres 

 

2396 3 
AHMED AL-MALT            

MOIRA L. AL-MALT 
 

318 E WELCH ROAD         
316 E.WELCH ROAD              
308 E. WELCH R0AD  

 

34-20-28-9550-00-260        
34-20-28-9550-00-270     
34-20-28-9550-00-271 

 

3.00      
2.42            
2.42 
7.84 

VACANT LAND 
Low Density Residential 

Max. 4du/ac 

 

2397 4 
AFZAL KHAN 
SABIYA KHAN 

382 E. WELCH ROAD 
400 E. WELCH ROAD 

34-20-28-9550-00-241     
34-20-28-9550-00-231 

2.44       
2.89       
5.33 

SFR                       
WAREHOUSE 

Low Density Residential 
Max. 4du/ac 

2398 5 GUARDA AND SON, LLC 1240 USTLER ROAD 34-20-28-9550-00-200 5.07 
SFR 

MANF. HOME 
Low Density Residential 

Max. 4du/ac 

    TOTAL ACRES 32.86   

g:\Shared\4020\PLANNING_ZONING\Annexations\2014 Cycle 4 Spreadsheet.wpd 

Page 45



ORDINANCE NO. 2396 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, TO EXTEND ITS 
TERRITORIAL AND MUNICIPAL LIMITS TO ANNEX PURSUANT TO FLORIDA 
STATUTE 171.044 THE HEREINAFTER DESCRIBED LANDS SITUATED AND BEING 
IN ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA, OWNED BY AHMED AND MOIRA L. AL-MALT 
LOCATED AT 308, 316 AND 318 EAST WELCH ROAD; PROVIDING FOR 
DIRECTIONS TO THE CITY CLERK, SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS, AND AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
 WHEREAS, Ahmed and Moira L. Al-Malt, owners thereof, have petitioned the 
City Council of the City of Apopka, Florida, to annex the properties located 
at 308, 316 and 318 East Welch Road; and  
 
 WHEREAS, Florida Statute 171.044 of the General Laws of Florida provide 
that a municipal corporation may annex property into its corporate limits upon 
voluntary petition of the owners, by passing and adopting a non-emergency 
ordinance to annex said property; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Apopka, Florida is desirous of 
annexing and redefining the boundaries of the municipality to include the 
subject property pursuant to Florida Statute 171.044. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Apopka, 
Florida, as follows: 
 
 SECTION I:  That the following described property, being situated in 
Orange County, Florida, totaling 7.84 +/- acres, and graphically depicted by 
the attached Exhibit "A", is hereby annexed into the City of Apopka, Florida, 
pursuant to the voluntary annexation provisions of Chapter 171.044, Florida 
Statutes, and other applicable laws: 
 

Legal Descriptions: 
308 East Welch Road - West ½ of Lot 27, Apopka Ranches, according 
to the Plat thereof, as recorded in Plat Book Z, Page 134, of the 
Public Records of Orange County, Florida. 
Parcel I.D.: 34-20-28-9550-00-271  
Contain: 2.42 +/- Acres 
 
316 East Welch Road - East ½ of Lot 27, Apopka Ranches, according 
to the Plat thereof, as recorded in Plat Book Z, Page 134, of the 
Public Records of Orange County, Florida. 
Parcel I.D.: 34-20-28-9550-00-270  
Contain: 2.42 +/- Acres 
 
318 East Welch Road - Lot 26, less the East 185 feet of the North 
435.53 feet, Apopka Ranches, according to the Plat thereof, as 
recorded in Plat Book Z, Page 134, of the Public Records of Orange 
County, Florida. 
Parcel I.D.: 34-20-28-9550-00-260  
Contain: 3.00 +/- Acres 
 
COMBINED ACREAGE: 7.84 +/- 

 
     SECTION II:  That the corporate territorial limits of the City of Apopka, 
Florida, are hereby redefined to include said land herein described and 
annexed. 
 
 
 
Page 46



 

ORDINANCE NO. 2396 
PAGE 2  
 
 SECTION III:  That the City Council will designate the land use 
classification and zoning category of these annexed lands in accordance with 
applicable City ordinances and State laws. 
 
 SECTION IV: That the land herein described and future inhabitants of the 
land herein described shall be liable for all debts and obligations and be 
subject to all species of taxation, laws, ordinances and regulations of the 
City. 
 SECTION V:  That if any section or portion of a section or subsection 
of this Ordinance proves to be invalid, unlawful, or unconstitutional, it 
shall not be held to invalidate or impair the validity, force, or effect of 
any other section or portion of a section or subsection or part of this 
ordinance. 
 
 SECTION VI:  That all ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict 
herewith are hereby repealed. 
 
 SECTION VII: That this ordinance shall take effect upon passage and 
adoption, thereafter the City Clerk is hereby directed to file this ordinance 
with the Clerk of the Circuit Court in and for Orange County, Florida; the 
Orange County Property Appraiser; and the Department of State of the State 
of Florida.  
 

 

           Joseph E. Kilsheimer, Mayor                                  

 

ATTEST:  

 

 

 

__________________________________ 

Linda Goff, City Clerk 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

 

 

__________________________________ 

Clifford B. Shepard, City Attorney 

 

 

DULY ADVERTISED FOR PUBLIC HEARING: November 21, 2014 

        November 28, 2014 

        December 5, 2014 
G:\Shared\4020\Planning_Zoning\Annexations\2014\2014Cycle4\Council Packets\Ord. 2396-Al-Malt 

 
READ FIRST TIME: December 3, 2014 

 
READ SECOND TIME 
AND ADOPTED:     December 17, 2014 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 47



 

ANNEXATION 

AHMED & MOIRA L. AL-MALT 

308, 316 & 318 EAST WELCH ROAD 

          
        Exhibit “A”                  

          Ord. # 2396 

        Parcel IDS: 34-20-28-9550-00-260  

            34-20-28-9550-00-270 

            34-20-28-9550-00-271

  

 Total Acres: 7.84 +/-      

 

 

VICINITY MAP 

 
 

Page 48



Page 49



CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 

 
                                                                                     _____          

       CONSENT AGENDA     MEETING OF: December 17, 2014 

  X   PUBLIC HEARING     FROM:   Community Development 

       SPECIAL REPORTS     EXHIBITS: Exhibit “A” Summary of Cycle 4 

  X   OTHER: Annexation       Ordinance No. 2397  

          Vicinity Map 
                                                                                  ______                       

SUBJECT:   2014 ANNEXATION “CYCLE NO. 4 

 

REQUEST:    SECOND READING & ADOPTION OF ORDINANCE NO. 2397- 

AFZAL AND SABIYA KHAN. 
                                                                                _____                 

SUMMARY: 

 

OWNER:   Afzal and Sabiya Khan 

 

LOCATION:   382 and 400 East Welch Road 

 

PARCEL ID NO.:  34-20-28-9550-00-241 and 34-20-28-9550-00-231 

 

LAND USE:   Refer to Exhibit “A”  

 

EXISTING USE:  Refer to Exhibit “A”  

 

TRACT SIZE:   5.33 +/- acres 

 

ADDITIONAL COMMENTS: The proposed annexation shall be on the basis of the existing County Future 

Land Use and Zoning designations.  The assignment of a City Future Land Use and Zoning designation will 

occur at a later date, and through additional action by the City Council. 

 

ORANGE COUNTY NOTIFICATION: The JPA requires the City to notify the County 15 days prior to the 

first reading of any annexation ordinance.  The City provided notification to the County on November 14, 2014. 

 
DULY ADVERTISED: 
November 21, 2014 - 1/4 Page Public Hearing Advertisement 
November 28, 2014 - 1/4 Page Public Hearing Advertisement 
December 5, 2014 - Ordinance Headings Advertisement 
 
PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 
December 3, 2014 (1:30 pm) - City Council 1

st
 Reading 

December 17, 2014 (8:00 pm) - City Council 2
nd

 Reading and Adoption 
                                                                                  ____                            

DISTRIBUTION 

Mayor Kilsheimer     Finance Dir.    Public Ser. Dir. 

Commissioners (4)     HR Director    City Clerk    

City Administrator        IT Director    Fire Chief 

Community Dev. Dir.     Police Chief 

 
G:\Shared\4020\Planning_Zoning\Annexation\2014\14 Cycle 4\Council\Ord. 2397 – Khan - CC 12-17-14 2nd Rd Page 50



CITY COUNCIL – DECEMBER 17, 2014 
2014 ANNEXATION CYCLE #4 
PAGE 2 

 

 

                                                                  _______                                        

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 

 

The Development Review Committee recommends approval of the 2014 Annexation Cycle # 4. 

 

The City Council, at its meeting on December 3, 2014, accepted the First Reading of Ordinance No. 2397 and 

held it over for Second Reading and Adoption on December 17, 2014. 

 

Adopt Ordinance No. 2397. 

Page 51



Page 1 

 
 

EXHIBIT “A” 
CITY OF APOPKA 

2014 ANNEXATION CYCLE #4 
TOTAL ACRES:  32.86+/- 
ANNEXATION ORDINANCE NO.: 2394-2398  

 
Adopted this 17th day of December, 2014 

 

ORD. 

NO. 

ITEM 

NO. 

OWNER’S NAME LOCATION PARCEL NUMBER ACRES 

+/- 

EXISTING 

USE 

FUTURE LAND USE 

(COUNTY) 

2394 1 
LESLIE HEBERT                          
NANCY HEBERT 

3600 W. KELLY PARK 
ROAD 

13-20-27-0000-00-046 6.11 SFR 
Rural  

Max. 1du/10 acres 
 

2395 2 MCCARTHY MCCOLLOUGH 
1505 WEST KELLY PARK 

ROAD 
08-20-28-0000-00-003 8.51 SFR 

Rural 
Max. 1du/10 acres 

 

2396 3 
AHMED AL-MALT            

MOIRA L. AL-MALT 
 

318 E WELCH ROAD         
316 E.WELCH ROAD              
308 E. WELCH R0AD  

 

34-20-28-9550-00-260        
34-20-28-9550-00-270     
34-20-28-9550-00-271 

 

3.00      
2.42            
2.42 
7.84 

VACANT LAND 
Low Density Residential 

Max. 4du/ac 

 

2397 
4 

AFZAL KHAN 
SABIYA KHAN 

382 E. WELCH ROAD 
400 E. WELCH ROAD 

34-20-28-9550-00-241     
34-20-28-9550-00-231 

2.44       
2.89       
5.33 

SFR                       
WAREHOUSE 

Low Density Residential 
Max. 4du/ac 

2398 5 GUARDA AND SON, LLC 1240 USTLER ROAD 34-20-28-9550-00-200 5.07 
SFR 

MANF. HOME 
Low Density Residential 

Max. 4du/ac 

    TOTAL ACRES 32.86   

g:\Shared\4020\PLANNING_ZONING\Annexations\2014 Cycle 4 Spreadsheet.wpd 

Page 52



ORDINANCE NO. 2397 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, TO EXTEND ITS 

TERRITORIAL AND MUNICIPAL LIMITS TO ANNEX PURSUANT TO FLORIDA 

STATUTE 171.044 THE HEREINAFTER DESCRIBED LANDS SITUATED AND BEING 

IN ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA, OWNED BY AFZAL AND SABIYA KHAN, LOCATED 

AT 382 AND 400 EAST WELCH ROAD; PROVIDING FOR DIRECTIONS TO THE CITY 

CLERK, SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS, AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

 WHEREAS, Afzal and Sabiya Khan, owners thereof, have petitioned the City 

Council of the City of Apopka, Florida, to annex the properties located at 

382 and 400 East Welch Road; and  

 

 WHEREAS, Florida Statute 171.044 of the General Laws of Florida provide 

that a municipal corporation may annex property into its corporate limits upon 

voluntary petition of the owners, by passing and adopting a non-emergency 

ordinance to annex said property; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Apopka, Florida is desirous of 

annexing and redefining the boundaries of the municipality to include the 

subject property pursuant to Florida Statute 171.044. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Apopka, 

Florida, as follows: 

 

 SECTION I:  That the following described property, being situated in 

Orange County, Florida, totaling 5.33 +/- acres, and graphically depicted by 

the attached Exhibit "A", is hereby annexed into the City of Apopka, Florida, 

pursuant to the voluntary annexation provisions of Chapter 171.044, Florida 

Statutes, and other applicable laws: 

 

Legal Description: 

 

382 EAST WELCH ROAD: THE EAST 102.5 FEET OF LOT 24, APOPKA RANCHES, 

ACCORDING TO THE PLAT THEREOF AS RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK Z, PAGE 134, 

OF THE PUBLIC RECORDS OF ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA. 

Parcel I.D.: 34-20-28-9550-00-241  

Contains: 2.44 +/- Acres 

 

400 EAST WELCH ROAD: LOT 23, LESS THE NORTH 425 FEET THEREOF, APOPKA 

RANCHES, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT THEREOF AS RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK Z, 

PAGE 134, OF THE PUBLIC RECORDS OF ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA. 

Parcel I.D.: 34-20-28-9550-00-231  

Contains: 2.89 +/- Acres 

 

COMBINED ACREAGE: 5.33 +/- 

 

     SECTION II:  That the corporate territorial limits of the City of Apopka, 

Florida, are hereby redefined to include said land herein described and 

annexed. 

 

 SECTION III:  That the City Council will designate the land use 

classification and zoning category of these annexed lands in accordance with 

applicable City ordinances and State laws. 
Page 53



 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 2397 

PAGE 2  

 

 SECTION IV: That the land herein described and future inhabitants of the 

land herein described shall be liable for all debts and obligations and be 

subject to all species of taxation, laws, ordinances and regulations of the 

City. 

 

 SECTION V:  That if any section or portion of a section or subsection 

of this Ordinance proves to be invalid, unlawful, or unconstitutional, it 

shall not be held to invalidate or impair the validity, force, or effect of 

any other section or portion of a section or subsection or part of this 

ordinance. 

 

 SECTION VI:  That all ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict 

herewith are hereby repealed. 

 

 SECTION VII: That this ordinance shall take effect upon passage and 

adoption, thereafter the City Clerk is hereby directed to file this ordinance 

with the Clerk of the Circuit Court in and for Orange County, Florida; the 

Orange County Property Appraiser; and the Department of State of the State 

of Florida.  
 

 

           Joseph E. Kilsheimer, Mayor                                  

 

ATTEST:  

 

 

__________________________________ 

Linda Goff, City Clerk 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

 

__________________________________ 

Clifford B. Shepard, City Attorney 

 

 

DULY ADVERTISED FOR PUBLIC HEARING: November 21, 2014 

        November 28, 2014 

        December 5, 2014 
 

G:\Shared\4020\Planning_Zoning\Annexations\2014\2014Cycle4\Council Packets\Ord 2397 - Khan 

 
READ FIRST TIME: December 3, 2014 
 
READ SECOND TIME 
AND ADOPTED:     December 17, 2014 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 54



 

ANNEXATION 

AFZAL & SABIYA KHAN 

382 & 400 EAST WELCH ROAD 

          
        Exhibit “A”                  

          Ord. # 2397 

        Parcel IDS: 34-20-28-9550-00-241 

            34-20-28-9550-00-231 

 Total Acres: 5.33 +/-      

 

VICINITY MAP 

 

 

Page 55



Page 56



CITY OF APOPKA 
CITY COUNCIL 

 
 

                                    ______                                   _____          

       CONSENT AGENDA    MEETING OF: December 17, 2014 

  X   PUBLIC HEARING    FROM:   Community Development 

       SPECIAL REPORTS    EXHIBITS: Exhibit “A” Summary of Cycle 4 

  X   OTHER: Annexation      Exhibit “B” Enclave Parcels 

         Ordinance No. 2398  

         Vicinity Map 
                                          _____                             ______                       

SUBJECT:   2014 ANNEXATION “CYCLE NO. 4 

 

REQUEST:    SECOND READING & ADOPTION OF ORDINANCE NO. 2398 - 

GUARDA AND SON, LLC. 
 _                                                                           _____                 

SUMMARY: 

 

OWNER:   Guarda and Son, LLC 

 

LOCATION:   1240 Ustler Road  

 

PARCEL ID NO.:  34-20-28-9550-00-200 

 

LAND USE:   Refer to Exhibit “A”  

 

EXISTING USE:  Refer to Exhibit “A”  

 

TRACT SIZE:   5.07 +/- acres 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
                                                                            ____                            

DISTRIBUTION 

Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Dir.    Public Ser. Dir. 

Commissioners (4)    HR Director    City Clerk    

City Administrator          IT Director    Fire Chief 

Community Dev. Dir.    Police Chief   
 

G:\Shared\4020\Planning_Zoning\Annexation\2014\14 Cycle 4\Council\Ord. 2398 – Guarda - CC 12-17-14 2nd  
 Page 57



CITY COUNCIL – DECEMBER 17, 2014 

2014 ANNEXATION CYCLE #4 – GUARDA AND SON, LLC 

PAGE 2 

 
ADDITIONAL COMMENTS:  Annexation of this parcel creates an unincorporated enclave as defined by 
Sec. 171.044(5), Florida Statutes.  The property owner desires to assemble the parcel proposed for annexation 
with two contiguous parcels he also owns.  To pursue efficient development of the three parcels, annexation of 
the third parcel is necessary to generate a compact and contiguous development site located within a single 
government jurisdiction.  City staff has coordinated with County planning administrators to discuss the 
circumstances faced by the property owner and the conflict with annexation laws.  While annexation of the 
Guarda and Son, LLC parcel will create a small enclave, the applicant attempted to reduce the extent of the 
enclave by convincing several owner property owners to simultaneously annex.  Property owners also 
requesting annexation as part of the 2014 Cycle 4 annexation process include Amed Al-Malt with three parcels 
totaling 7.84 acres and Afzal Khan with two parcels comprising 5.33 acres.  Parcels left in an unincorporated 
enclave amount to approximately 5.29 acres within three parcels under separate ownership (i.e., Crossroads 
Church, Donald Baughn, and Michael Maxwell.  Exhibit “B” identifies the location of these three parcels. 
Staff’s recommendation is to annexation these three parcels in the near future through an Interlocal Agreement 
for Annexation of Enclaves. 
 
County staff has indicated that it will not object to the creation of the small enclave left by these three 
unincorporated parcels if the City agrees to enter into an Interlocal Agreement for Annexation of Enclaves in the 
near future. 
 
All three of the Guarda and Son, LLC parcels, including the two parcel within the City’s jurisdiction and the 
proposed parcel for annexation, are located within the Wekiva River Protection Area, which provides additional 
restrictions on the potential density of any proposed residential development. 
 
The proposed annexation shall be on the basis of the existing County Future Land Use and Zoning designations.  
The assignment of a City Future Land Use and Zoning designation will occur at a later date, and through 
additional action by the City Council. 
 
ORANGE COUNTY NOTIFICATION: The JPA requires the City to notify the County 15 days prior to the 
first reading of any annexation ordinance.  The City provided notification to the County on November 14, 2014. 
 
DULY ADVERTISED: 
November 21, 2014 - 1/4 Page Public Hearing Advertisement 
November 28, 2014 - 1/4 Page Public Hearing Advertisement 
December 5, 2014 - Ordinance Headings Advertisement 
 
PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 
December 3, 2014 (1:30 pm) - City Council 1

st
 Reading 

December 17, 2014 (8:00 pm) - City Council 2
nd

 Reading and Adoption 
                                                                  _______             

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
The Development Review Committee recommends approval of the 2014 Annexation Cycle # 4. 
 
The City Council, at its meeting on December 3, 2014, accepted the First Reading of Ordinance No. 2398 and 
held it over for Second Reading and Adoption on December 17, 2014; and authorized staff to proceed with an 
Interlocal Agreement for Annexation of Enclaves. 
 
Adopt Ordinance No. 2398. 

Page 58



Page 1 

 
 

EXHIBIT “A” 
CITY OF APOPKA 

2014 ANNEXATION CYCLE #4 
TOTAL ACRES:  32.86+/- 
ANNEXATION ORDINANCE NO.: 2394-2398 

 
Adopted this 17th day of December, 2014 

 

ORD. 

NO. 

ITEM 

NO. 

OWNER’S NAME LOCATION PARCEL NUMBER ACRES 

+/- 

EXISTING 

USE 

FUTURE LAND USE 

(COUNTY) 

2394 1 
LESLIE HEBERT                          
NANCY HEBERT 

3600 W. KELLY PARK 
ROAD 

13-20-27-0000-00-046 6.11 SFR 
Rural  

Max. 1du/10 acres 
 

2395 2 MCCARTHY MCCOLLOUGH 
1505 WEST KELLY PARK 

ROAD 
08-20-28-0000-00-003 8.51 SFR 

Rural 
Max. 1du/10 acres 

 

2396 3 
AHMED AL-MALT            

MOIRA L. AL-MALT 
 

318 E WELCH ROAD         
316 E.WELCH ROAD              
308 E. WELCH R0AD  

 

34-20-28-9550-00-260        
34-20-28-9550-00-270     
34-20-28-9550-00-271 

 

3.00      
2.42            
2.42 
7.84 

VACANT LAND 
Low Density Residential 

Max. 4du/ac 

 

2397 4 
AFZAL KHAN 
SABIYA KHAN 

382 E. WELCH ROAD 
400 E. WELCH ROAD 

34-20-28-9550-00-241     
34-20-28-9550-00-231 

2.44       
2.89       
5.33 

SFR                       
WAREHOUSE 

Low Density Residential 
Max. 4du/ac 

2398 5 GUARDA AND SON, LLC 1240 USTLER ROAD 34-20-28-9550-00-200 5.07 
SFR 

MANF. HOME 
Low Density Residential 

Max. 4du/ac 

    TOTAL ACRES 32.86   

g:\Shared\4020\PLANNING_ZONING\Annexations\2014 Cycle 4 Spreadsheet.wpd 

Page 59



EXHIBIT “B” 

ENCLAVE PARCELS CREATED BY THE  

GUARDA AND SON, LLC ANNEXATION 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 60



ANNEXATION 

GUARDA AND SON, LLC 

1240 USTLER ROAD 

          

        Exhibit “B”                  

          Ord. # 2398 

        Parcel ID: 34-20-28-9550-00-200   

  

VICINITY MAP 

 
 

 

 

 

Page 61



ORDINANCE NO. 2398 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, TO EXTEND ITS 

TERRITORIAL AND MUNICIPAL LIMITS TO ANNEX PURSUANT TO FLORIDA 

STATUTE 171.044 THE HEREINAFTER DESCRIBED LANDS SITUATED AND BEING 

IN ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA, OWNED BY GUARDA AND SON, LLC, LOCATED 

AT 1240 USTLER ROAD; PROVIDING FOR DIRECTIONS TO THE CITY CLERK, 

SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS, AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

 WHEREAS, Guarda and Son, LLC, owner thereof, has petitioned the City 

Council of the City of Apopka, Florida, to annex the property located at 1240 

Ustler Road; and  

 

 WHEREAS, Florida Statute 171.044 of the General Laws of Florida provide 

that a municipal corporation may annex property into its corporate limits upon 

voluntary petition of the owners, by passing and adopting a non-emergency 

ordinance to annex said property; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Apopka, Florida is desirous of 

annexing and redefining the boundaries of the municipality to include the 

subject property pursuant to Florida Statute 171.044. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Apopka, 

Florida, as follows: 

 

 SECTION I:  That the following described property, being situated in 

Orange County, Florida, totaling 5.07 +/- acres, and graphically depicted by 

the attached Exhibit "A", is hereby annexed into the City of Apopka, Florida, 

pursuant to the voluntary annexation provisions of Chapter 171.044, Florida 

Statutes, and other applicable laws: 

 

Legal Description: 

 

LOT 20, APOPKA RANCHES, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT THEREOF AS RECORDED 

IN PLAT BOOK Z, PAGE 134 OF THE PUBLIC RECORDS OF ORANGE COUNTY, 

FLORIDA. 

Parcel I.D.: 34-20-28-9550-00-200  

Contains: 5.07 +/- Acres 

 

     SECTION II:  That the corporate territorial limits of the City of Apopka, 

Florida, are hereby redefined to include said land herein described and 

annexed. 

 

 SECTION III:  That the City Council will designate the land use 

classification and zoning category of these annexed lands in accordance with 

applicable City ordinances and State laws. 

 

 SECTION IV: That the land herein described and future inhabitants of the 

land herein described shall be liable for all debts and obligations and be 

subject to all species of taxation, laws, ordinances and regulations of the 

City. 

 

 

 
Page 62



 

ORDINANCE NO. 2398 

PAGE 2  

 

 SECTION V:  That if any section or portion of a section or subsection 

of this Ordinance proves to be invalid, unlawful, or unconstitutional, it 

shall not be held to invalidate or impair the validity, force, or effect of 

any other section or portion of a section or subsection or part of this 

ordinance. 

 

 SECTION VI:  That all ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict 

herewith are hereby repealed. 

 

 SECTION VII: That this ordinance shall take effect upon passage and 

adoption, thereafter the City Clerk is hereby directed to file this ordinance 

with the Clerk of the Circuit Court in and for Orange County, Florida; the 

Orange County Property Appraiser; and the Department of State of the State 

of Florida.  
 

 

           Joseph E. Kilsheimer, Mayor                                  

 

ATTEST:  

 

 

 

__________________________________ 

Linda Goff, City Clerk 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

 

 

__________________________________ 

Clifford B. Shepard, City Attorney 

 

 

DULY ADVERTISED FOR PUBLIC HEARING: November 21, 2014 

        November 28, 2014 

        December 5, 2014 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

G:\Shared\4020\Planning_Zoning\Annexations\2014\2014Cycle4\Council Packets\Ord. 2398 - Guarda 

 
READ FIRST TIME: December 3, 2014 
 
READ SECOND TIME 
AND ADOPTED:     December 17, 2014 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 63



 

ANNEXATION 

GUARDA AND SON, LLC 

1240 USTLER ROAD 

          
        Exhibit “A”                  

          Ord. # 2398 

        Parcel ID: 34-20-28-9550-00-200 

  

 Total Acres: 5.07 +/-      

 

VICINITY MAP 

Page 64



Page 65



 

CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

   X    PUBLIC HEARING      DATE:  December 17, 2014 
          ANNEXATION      FROM: Community Development 
          PLAT APPROVAL      EXHIBITS: Zoning Report 
   X    OTHER: Ordinance         Vicinity Map 
           Adjacent Zoning Map 
           Adjacent Uses Map  
           Ordinance No. 2399 
           Master Plan\PDP 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

SUBJECT: ORDINANCE NO. 2399 – CHANGE OF ZONING - APPY LANE 
HOLDINGS, LLC FROM R-1AAA (0-2 DU/AC) TO PLANNED UNIT 
DEVELOPMENT (PUD/R-1A (0-2 DU/AC); AND THE MASTER 
PLAN/PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN. 

 

Request: FIRST READING OF ORDINANCE NO. 2399 – CHANGE OF ZONING - 
APPY LANE HOLDINGS, LLC FROM R-1AAA (0-2 DU/AC) TO 
PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT (PUD/R-1A (0-2 DU/AC); AND THE 
MASTER PLAN/PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN; AND 
APPROVAL OF THE MASTER PLAN/ PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT 
PLAN; AND HOLD OVER FOR SECOND READING & ADOPTION. 
PARCEL I.D. NO. 18-20-28-0000-00-089. 

_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

SUMMARY 
 
OWNER/ APPLICANT: Appy Lane Holdings, LLC 
     
LOCATION:   West of Jason Dwelley Parkway, north of Appy Lane 
 
EXISTING USE:  Vacant 
 
FUTURE LAND USE: Residential Very Low Suburban (0-2 du/acre) 
 
ZONING:   R-1AAA (16,000 sq. ft. lot min.) 
 
PROPOSED 
DEVELOPMENT:  Single-Family Residential 
 
PROPOSED 
ZONING: Planned Unit Development (PUD/R-1A) (min. lot 11,400 sq. ft. ranging up to 

26,266 sq. ft.) 
 
TRACT SIZE:   13.04 +/- acres 
 
MAXIMUM ALLOWABLE 
DEVELOPMENT:  EXISTING ZONING:  26 Residential Units (no more than 2 un\ac) 
    PROPOSED ZONING: 26 Residential Units (no more than 2 un\ac) 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

DISTRIBUTION 

Mayor Kilsheimer     Finance Dir.    Public Ser. Dir. 

Commissioners (4)     HR Director    City Clerk 

City Administrator     IT Director    Fire Chief 

Community Dev. Dir.     Police Chief   
  

G:\Shared\4020\PLANNING_ZONING\Rezoning\2014\Appy Lane Holdings\Appy Lane Holdings LLC ZON CC 12-17-14 2nd Rd Page 66



CITY COUNCIL – DECEMBER 17, 2014 
APPY LANE HOLDINGS, LLC – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 2 
 

 

ADDITIONAL COMMENTS: 

 

The subject parcels were annexed into the City of Apopka on April 7, 2004, through the adoption of Ordinance 

No. 1635.    A master site plan for the PUD zoning application proposes 26 residential lots with a minimum of 

11,400 sq. ft.  Residential density and maximum lot yield remains the same as the current zoning of R-1AAA 

assigned to the Property.  Regardless of the zoning category assigned to the Property, development of the 

Property is restricted to no more than 26 residential units.  By clustering the lots and allowing a minimum lot 

size of 11,400 sq. ft., a natural landscaped open space buffer can be created along Jason Dwelley Parkway and 

Apply Lane.  Required PUD development standards, the landscape buffer the Landscaped open space buffers 

along these roads will create a more aesthetic corridor leading to Northwest Regional Park. 

 

Staff has analyzed the proposed amendment and determined that adequate public facilities exist to support this 

zoning change (see attached Zoning Report). 

 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN COMPLIANCE:  The proposed PUD rezoning is consistent with the Future Land 

Use Designation of Residential Very Low Suburban (0-2 dwelling unit per acre) that is assigned to the property.   

Minimum lot size for property assigned the R-1A zoning category is 11,400 sq. ft. The PUD development 

standards restricts the minimum lot size to 11,400 sq. ft.  

 

SCHOOL CAPACITY REPORT:  The proposed rezoning will result in the same number of residential units 

which could be developed at the subject property currently.   Zoning currently assigned to the property, R-

1AAA, allows a minimum lot size of 16,000 sq. ft. and the Future Land Use Designation and Comprehensive 

Plan policy restrict residential density to no more than two units per acre.  The proposed change of zoning to 

PUD/R-1A limits lot size to a minimum of 11,400 sq. ft.  A capacity enhancement agreement with OCPS is not 

necessary because the impacts on schools will be neutral. School concurrency must be met at the final 

development plan application. 

 

ORANGE COUNTY NOTIFICATION:  The JPA requires the City to notify the County 30 days before any 

public hearing or advisory board.  The City properly notified Orange County on September 24, 2014.   

 

PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 

December 9, 2014 – Planning Commission (5:01 pm) 

December 17, 2014 - City Council (8:00 pm) - 1st Reading 

January 7, 2015 – City Council (1:30 pm) - 2nd Reading 

 

DULY ADVERTISED: 

November 21, 2014 – Public Notice and Notification 

December 26, 2014 – Ordinance Heading Ad 

 

  

Page 67



CITY COUNCIL – DECEMBER 17, 2014 
APPY LANE HOLDINGS, LLC – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 3 
 
 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 

 

The Development Review Committee recommends approval of the change in Zoning from “City” R-1AAA 

and “City” PUD\R-1A and the Master Plan\Preliminary Development Plan for the parcel owned by Appy Lane 

Holdings, LLC. 

 

The Planning Commission, at its meeting on December 9, 2014, recommended approval (7-0) of the change in 

Zoning from “City” R-1AAA and “City” PUD\R-1A and the Master Plan\Preliminary Development Plan for the 

parcel owned by Appy Lane Holdings, LLC. 

 

City Council: 

1) Accept the First Reading of Ordinance No. 2399 and Hold it Over for Second Reading and Adoption on 

January 7, 2015. 

2)  Accept the Appy Lane Master Plan\Preliminary Development Plan 

 

Note: This item is considered quasi-judicial.  The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated into 

and made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 

  

Page 68



CITY COUNCIL – DECEMBER 17, 2014 
APPY LANE HOLDINGS, LLC – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 4 
 

ZONING REPORT 
 
RELATIONSHIP TO ADJACENT PROPERTIES: 
 

Direction Future Land Use Zoning Present Use 

North (City) Residential Very Low Suburban (0-2.0 du/ac) R-1AAA Vacant/Orchid Estates PUD 

East (City) Residential Estates  (1 du/ac) A-1 Rock Springs Ridge Right-of-Way/Community 

South (City) Residential Very Low Suburban (0-2.0 du/ac) A-2 (ZIP) Vacant\Northwest Recreation Complex 

West (City) Residential Very Low Suburban (0-2.0 du/ac) R-1AAA Vacant  

 

LAND USE & TRAFFIC  

COMPATIBILITY: The subject property fronts and is accessed by a two-lane local roadway 

(Apply Lane) and a two-lane divided collector roadway (Jason Dwelley 

Parkway).  Lot sizes proposed within the Apply Lane Master Plan/PDP range 

from a minimum size of 11,433 to 26,266 sq. ft.  Among the 26 proposed lots  

the typical average lot size is approximately 12,974 sq. ft. 

 

 Northwest of the Property is Orchid Estates, an undeveloped PUD residential 

community comprising 112 single family lots with a minimum lot size of 

8,050 sq. ft. and a minimum lot width of 70 feet.  The Orchid Estates PUD is 

limited to two units per acre, but clustered the density into create additional 

open space area.  City Council approved the final development plan for 

Orchid Estates in February 2011 with a unanimous recommendation from the 

Planning Commission (March, 2011).  

 

 North of the Property is vacant land assigned a Future Land Use Designation 

of Residential Very Low Suburban and a zoning category of R-1AAA.  

However, the property owner has conceptually proposed a mixed use 

development with lot sizes more consistent with that proposed in the Orchid 

Estates PUD.   

 

 South of the property is a vacant residential parcel (7 acres) situated at the 

corner of Apply Lane and Jason Dwelley Parkway.  It has one residential 

home and is assigned Residential Very Low Suburban future land use 

designation but has not been assigned a City zoning category.   Also, 

Northwest Recreation Complex is located on the south side of Apply Lane 

across from a southwest portion of the Property. 

 

 East of the Property and across from the 100-foot right-of-way for Jason 

Dwelley Parkway, is the Rock Springs Ridge residential community.  

Residential lots with Rock Springs Ridge that abut Jason Dwelley Parkway 

are typically 85 in width and approximately 13,100 sq. ft. 

  

Page 69



CITY COUNCIL – DECEMBER 17, 2014 
APPY LANE HOLDINGS, LLC – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 5 
 

 

COMPREHENSIVE  

PLAN COMPLIANCE: The proposed PUD/R-1A zoning is consistent with the City’s Residential Very 

Low Suburban Future Land Use category and with the character of the 

surrounding area and future proposed development.  Per Section 2.02.01, 

Table II-1, of the Land Development Code, PUD zoning is one of the 

acceptable zoning districts allowed within the Residential Very Low Suburban 

Future Land Use category.   Future Land Use Element Policy 3.5.  restricts 

residential density north of Ponkan Road and west of Rock Springs Road to 

no more than two dwelling units per acre, unless otherwise authorized through 

the adopted Wekiva Parkway Interchange Plan.  The subject site is not located 

within the Wekiva Parkway Interchange Plan area. 
 
RECOMMENDED 
PUD STANDARDS:  

Minimum Living Area: 1,800 sq. ft. 

Minimum Lot Area: 11,400 sq. ft. 

Minimum Lot Width 85 ft. 

Setbacks: Front: 30 ft. 

 Rear: 20 ft. 

 Side: 10 ft. 

 Corner 25 ft. 

 

Road Buffer Min. 30-foot wide near-opaque natural landscape buffer 
along existing public streets (Apply Lane and Jason 
Dwelley Pkwy.) 

 
Where development standards are not addressed within the PUD master site 
plan, the R-1A development standards apply.  Setbacks for the R-1A district 
are the same as the R-1AAA district. 

 
ALLOWABLE  
USES: Single-family dwellings and their customary accessory structures and uses in 

accordance with article VII of the Land Development Code and as established 
within the PUD ordinance.  Supporting infrastructure and public facilities of 
less than five acres as defined in this code and in accordance with section 
2.02.01.  

 
PROPOSED PUD 
RECOMMENDATIONS: The PUD recommendations are that the zoning classification of the following 

described property be designated as Planned Unit Development (PUD), as 
defined in the Apopka Land Development Code, and with the following 
Master Plan provisions: 

 
A. The uses permitted within the PUD district shall be:  single family homes 

and associated accessory uses or structures consistent with land use and 
development standards established for the R-1A zoning category except 
where otherwise addressed in this ordinance. 

 
 Page 70



CITY COUNCIL – DECEMBER 17, 2014 
APPY LANE HOLDINGS, LLC – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 6 
 

B. If a final development plan associated with the PUD district has not been 
approved by the City within two years after approval of these Master Plan 
provisions, the approval of the Master Plan provisions will expire. At such 
time, the City Council may: 

 
1. Permit a single six-month extension for submittal of the required 

Master Plan\Preliminary Development Plan; 
 
2. Allow the PUD zoning designation to remain on the property pending 

resubmittal of new Master Plan provisions and any conditions of 
approval; or 

 
3. Rezone the property to a more appropriate zoning classification. 

 
C. Unless otherwise approved by City Council through an alternative 

development guideline for the master site plan, the following PUD 
development standards shall apply to the development of the subject 
property: 

 
1. Master Plan\Preliminary Development Plan provided in Exhibit “A”. 
 
2. Minimum lot area for a single family home shall be 11,400 sq. ft.; 

excepting any lots within 250 feet of the eastern property line shall 
have a minimum area of 13,175 sq. ft. 

 
3. A minimum 30-foot wide, natural buffer tract shall be located within 

the PUD along Jason Dwelley Pkwy and along Appy Lane.  Landscape 
plants and shrubs shall create a near-opaque screen to a height not less 
than six feet. At the final development plan, additional plantings may 
be required by the City if determined necessary to create this near-
opaque screen. Shrubs planted within the 30-foot wide buffer shall 
reach a height of six feet within two years of planting.  Final landscape 
plan and materials will be determined at the Final Development Plan.  
At the final development plan, additional plantings may be required by 
the City if determined necessary to create a near-opaque screen. 

 
4. Minimum livable area for a single family dwelling unit is 2,000 sq. ft. 
 
5. Utility connects at the east end of the project shall be re-engineered at 

the final development plan application consistent with City codes. 
 
6. At the time of the final development plan, the City may require an 

easement up to 11 feet wide, dedicated to the City, to be placed  with 
the 30 foot wide buffer tract along Jason Dwelley Parkway and Apply 
Lane to accommodate bicycle trails.  If the bicycle trail easement is 
required, it will replace the sidewalk required along these roads.   

 
7. Unless otherwise addressed within the PUD development standards, 

the R-1A zoning standards will apply to the PUD Property. 
 

 
 
 
 Page 71



CITY COUNCIL – DECEMBER 17, 2014 
APPY LANE HOLDINGS, LLC – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 7 
 
 

Appy Lane Holdings, LLC 
13.04 +/- Acres 

Existing Maximum Allowable Development: 26 dwelling units 
Proposed Maximum Allowable Development: 26 dwelling units 

Proposed Zoning Change 
From: R-1AAA (0-2 du/ac) 

To: Planned Unit Development (PUD/R-1A) (0-2 du/ac) 

Parcel ID #: 18-20-28-0000-00-089 
 

VICINITY MAP 

  

Subject Property 

Page 72



CITY COUNCIL – DECEMBER 17, 2014 
APPY LANE HOLDINGS, LLC – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 8 
 

 
 

ADJACENT ZONING 

 

 
 

 

  

Subject Property 

Page 73



CITY COUNCIL – DECEMBER 17, 2014 
APPY LANE HOLDINGS, LLC – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 9 
 

 

ADJACENT USES 

 
 

 
 

 

Page 74



 
ORDINANCE NO. 2399 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, CHANGING THE 

ZONING FROM R-1AAA (0-2 DU/AC) TO PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT 

(PUD/R-1A (0-2 DU/AC)); FOR CERTAIN REAL PROPERTY GENERALLY 

LOCATED WEST OF JASON DWELLEY PARKWAY, NORTH OF APPY LANE, 

COMPRISING 13.04 ACRES MORE OR LESS, AND OWNED BY APPY LANE 

HOLDINGS, LLC; PROVIDING FOR DIRECTIONS TO THE COMMUNITY 

DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR, SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS, AND AN 

EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 
 WHEREAS, to manage the growth, the City of Apopka, Florida, finds it in the best interest of the 
public health, safety and welfare of its citizens to establish zoning classifications within the City; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Apopka has requested a change in zoning on said property as identified 
in Section I of this ordinance; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the proposed Planned Unit Development (PUD/R-1A) zoning has been found to be 
consistent with the City of Apopka Comprehensive Plan, and the City of Apopka Land Development 
Code. 
 
 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, by the City Council of the City of Apopka, Florida, 
as follows: 
  
 Section I.  That the zoning classification of the following described property be designated as 
Planned Unit Development (PUD/R-1A), as defined in the Apopka Land Development Code, and with the 
following Master Plan provisions subject to the following zoning provisions: 
 

A. The uses permitted within the PUD district shall be:  single family homes and associated 
accessory uses or structures consistent with land use and development standards established 
for the R-1A zoning category except where otherwise addressed in this ordinance unless as 
otherwise specified within this ordinance. 

 
 
B. If a final development plan associated with the PUD district has not been approved by the City 

within two years after approval of these Master Plan provisions, the approval of the Master 
Plan provisions will expire. At such time, the City Council may: 

 
1. Permit a single six-month extension for submittal of the required Master Plan\Preliminary 

Development Plan; 
 
2. Allow the PUD zoning designation to remain on the property pending resubmittal of new 

Master Plan provisions and any conditions of approval; or 
 
3. Rezone the property to a more appropriate zoning classification. 

 
C. The following PUD development standards shall apply to the development of the subject 

property: 
 

1. Master Plan\Preliminary Development Plan provided in Exhibit “A”, and any modification 
thereto shall be reviewed consistent with the procedures set forth in Section 20.02.18.N, 
Land Development Code. 

 

Page 75



ORDINANCE NO. 2399 

PAGE 2 
 

 

2.   Minimum lot area for a single family home shall be 11,400 sq. ft.; excepting any lots 
within 250 feet of the eastern property line shall have a minimum area of 13,175 sq. ft. 

 
3.  A minimum 30-foot wide, natural buffer tract shall be located within the PUD along Jason 

Dwelley Pkwy and along Appy Lane.  Landscape plants and shrubs shall create a near-
opaque screen to a height not less than six feet. At the final development plan, additional 
plantings may be required by the City if determined necessary to create this near-opaque 
screen. Shrubs planted within the 30-foot wide buffer shall reach a height of six feet within 
two years of planting.  Final landscape plan and materials will be determined at the Final 
Development Plan.  At the final development plan, additional plantings may be required by 
the City if determined necessary to create a near-opaque screen. 

 
4. Minimum livable area for a single family dwelling unit is 2,000 sq. ft. 
 
5. Utility connects at the east end of the project shall be re-engineered at the final development 

plan application consistent with City codes. 
 
6. At the time of the final development plan, the City may require an easement up to 11 feet 

wide, dedicated to the City, to be placed with the 30 foot wide buffer tract along Jason 
Dwelley Parkway and Apply Lane to accommodate bicycle trails.  If the bicycle trail 
easement is required, it will replace the sidewalk required along these roads.   

 
7. Unless otherwise addressed within the PUD development standards, the R-1A 

development and zoning standards will apply to the PUD Property. 
 
 Section II.  That the zoning classification of the following described property, being situated in 
the City of Apopka, Florida, is hereby Planned Unit Development (PUD/R-1A), as defined in the Apopka 
Land Development Code. 
 
 Legal Description: 
 

The North ½ of the South ½ of the Southeast ¼ of the Southeast ¼ of Section 18, 

Township 20 South, Range 28 East, Orange County, Florida, AND the West 401 feet of 

the South ½ of the South ½ of the Southeast ¼ of the Southeast ¼ of Section 18, Township 

20 South, Range 28 East, Orange County, Florida. 
Parcel ID # 18-20-28-0000-00-089 
13.04 acres +/- 

 
 Section III.  That the zoning classification is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan of the City 

of Apopka, Florida. 

 

 Section IV.  That the Community Development Director, or the Director’s designee, is hereby 

authorized to amend, alter, and implement the official zoning maps of the City of Apopka, Florida, to 

include said designation.  The Community Development Director shall not accept an application for a 

development plan until such time the property owner addresses school capacity enhancement review with 

Orange County Public Schools. 

 

 Section V. That if any section or portion of a section or subsection of this Ordinance proves to be 

invalid, unlawful, or unconstitutional, it shall not be held to invalidate or impair the validity, force or 

effect of any other section or portion of section or subsection or part of this ordinance. 

Page 76



ORDINANCE NO. 2399 

PAGE 3 
 

 

 

 

 Section VI.  That all ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby repealed.   

 

 Section VII.  That this Ordinance shall take effect immediately.  

 

 
 

                       
 
 
 

       _____________________________________ 
       Joseph E. Kilsheimer, Mayor                                  
 
ATTEST:  
 
 
 
__________________________________ 
Linda Goff, City Clerk 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
__________________________________ 
Clifford B. Shepard, Esq., City Attorney 
 
 
DULY ADVERTISED:  November 21, 2014 
     December 26, 2014 

READ FIRST TIME:  December 17, 2014 
 
READ SECOND TIME 
AND ADOPTED:     

 
 
January 7, 2015 

Page 77



  

EXHIBIT “A” 

Page 78



 

  

Page 79



 

 

  

Page 80



 

  

Page 81



 

  

Page 82



 

 

  

Page 83



 

  

Page 84



  

Page 85



 

 

Page 86



CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

   X    PUBLIC HEARING      DATE:  December 17, 2014 
          ANNEXATION      FROM: Community Development 
          PLAT APPROVAL      EXHIBITS: Land Use Report 
   X    OTHER: Ordinance         Vicinity Map 
           Adjacent Zoning Map 
           Adjacent Uses Map 
           Ordinance No. 2400 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

SUBJECT: ORDINANCE NO. 2400 – COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AMENDMENT – 
SMALL SCALE - FUTURE LAND USE – J. WILLIAM ARROWSMITH - 
FROM PARKS & RECREATION TO RESIDENTIAL LOW (0-5 DU/AC) 

     

Request: FIRST READING OF ORDINANCE NO. 2400 – COMPREHENSIVE 
PLAN AMENDMENT – SMALL SCALE - FUTURE LAND USE – J. 
WILLIAM ARROWSMITH - FROM PARKS & RECREATION TO 
RESIDENTIAL LOW (0-5 DU/AC); PARCEL ID NUMBERS: 32-20-28-
0000-00-057 & 32-20-28-0000-00-066; AND HOLD OVER FOR SECOND 
READING & ADOPTION. 

_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

SUMMARY 
 
OWNER/APPLICANT: J. William Arrowsmith 
 
LOCATION: South of Lake Alden Drive, west of Errol Parkway, and east of Old Magnolia 

Cove 
 
EXISTING USE:  Vacant 
 
CURRENT ZONING: PR 
 
PROPOSED 
DEVELOPMENT:  Residential Development 
 
PROPOSED 
ZONING: “City” R-1AA  (Note: this Future Land Use Map amendment request is being 

processed along with a request to change the Zoning Map designation from PR to 
R-1AA.) 

 
TRACT SIZE:   1.29 +/- acres 
 
MAXIMUM ALLOWABLE 
DEVELOPMENT:  EXISTING:   0 Unit 
    PROPOSED:  6 Units  
 
 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer     Finance Dir.    Public Ser. Dir. 
Commissioners (4)     HR Director    City Clerk 
City Administrator     IT Director    Fire Chief 
Community Dev. Dir.     Police Chief  
 
 
G:\Shared\4020\PLANNING_ZONING\Small Scale\2014\Arrowsmith JW FLU\Arrowsmith JW – Lake Alden Dr - FLU CC 12-17-14 1st Rd 
 

Page 87



CITY COUNCIL – DECEMBER 17, 2014 

J. WILLIAM ARROWSMITH  - FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 2 
 
ADDITIONAL COMMENTS: 
The proposed Small-Scale Future Land Use Amendment is being requested by the owner/applicant.  Pursuant to 
Florida law, properties containing less than ten acres are eligible to be processed as a small-scale amendment.  
Such process does not require review by State planning agencies. 
 
A request to assign a Future Land Use Designation of Low Density Residential is compatible with the 
designations assigned to abutting properties.  The FLUM application covers approximately 1.29 acres. The 
property owner intends to use the site for a residential development.   Currently, the subject property comprises 
two parcels.  The northern parcel is 0.49 acres and the southern parcel is 0.8 acres. Based on the configuration 
and shape of the subject property, and taking into consideration existing development on abutting parcels, the 
property is likely limited to one unit per parcel.  The subject property is too narrow to accommodate a road that 
can meet city standards while allowing a suitable lot depth.   
 
In conjunction with state requirements, staff has analyzed the proposed amendment and determined that 
adequate public facilities exist to support this land use change (see attached Land Use Report). 
 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN COMPLIANCE: The existing and proposed use of the property is consistent 
with the Residential Low Future Land Use designation and the City’s proposed R-1AA Zoning designation.  
Site development cannot exceed the intensity allowed by the Future Land Use policies. 
 
SCHOOL CAPACITY REPORT: 
Staff has notified Orange County Public Schools (OCPS) of the proposed Future Land Use Map Amendment. 
The Future Land Use change to Residential Low Density represents a higher impact on public school capacity 
than that created by the County Future Land Use assigned to the property.  However, the potential net increase 
in residential units – six – qualifies as a de minimus impact as the next increase is less than nine units.  Thus, 
school capacity enhancement review does not apply.  School concurrency will apply at the time of a 
development plan or building permit application, whichever occurs first.  
 
ORANGE COUNTY NOTIFICATION: The property is surrounded by properties that are within the City 
limits of Apopka; therefore the notice requirements in the JPA do not apply. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 
December 9, 2014 – Planning Commission (5:01 pm) 
December 17, 2014 - City Council (8:00 pm) - 1st Reading 
January 7, 2015 – City Council (1:30 pm) - 2nd Reading 
 
DULY ADVERTISED: 
November 21, 2014 – Public Notice and Notification 
December 26, 2014 – Ordinance Heading Ad 
January 2, 2015 – ¼ Page w/Map Ad 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
The Development Review Committee finds the proposed amendment consistent with the Comprehensive Plan 
and  recommends approval of the change in Future Land Use from Parks & Recreation to Residential Low (0-5 
du/ac) for the property owned by J. William Arrowsmith. 
 
The Planning Commission, at its meeting on December 9, 2014, recommended approval (7-0) of the change in 
Future Land Use from Parks & Recreation to Residential Low (0-5 du/ac) for the property owned by J. William 
Arrowsmith. 
 
Accept the First Reading of Ordinance No. 2400 and Hold it Over for Second Reading and Adoption on January 
7, 2015. 
 
Note: This item is considered quasi-judicial.  The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated into 
and made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 

Page 88



CITY COUNCIL – DECEMBER 17, 2014 

J. WILLIAM ARROWSMITH  - FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 3 
 

LAND USE REPORT 

 

I. RELATIONSHIP TO ADJACENT PROPERTIES: 

 

Direction Future Land Use Zoning Present Use 

North (City) Residential Medium Low (0-7.5 

du/ac) & Parks/Recreation 

R-3 & PR Single-Family Homes,  Conservation (Lake 

Francis Village) 

East (City) Residential Low (0-5 du/ac) R-1AA Single-Family Homes (Errol Estates) 

South (City) Residential Low (0-5 du/ac) R-3 Single-Family Homes (Lexington Club 

Phase 2) 

West (City) Residential Medium (0-10 du/ac) R-3 Townhomes (Errol Village 1 and 2) 

 

II. LAND USE ANALYSIS 
 
The general character of the area surrounding the subject property is compatible with this development of low 
density residential.  The property lies south of Lake Alden Drive, west of Errol Parkway, and east of Old 
Magnolia Cove. A Future Land Use Designation of Residential Medium Low (0-7.5 du/ac) is assigned to the 
subdivisions adjacent to the property on the north and Residential Medium (0-10 du/ac) to the west.  The 
properties to the south and east have a future land use designation of Residential Low (0-5 du/ac). 
 

 Wekiva River Protection Area: No 

 Area of Critical State Concern: No 

 DRI / FQD: No 

 

 JPA: The City of Apopka and Orange County entered into a Joint Planning Area (JPA) agreement on 

October 26, 2004.  The subject property is not located within the “Core Area” of the JPA.   

 

 Wekiva Parkway and Protection Act:   The proposed amendment has been evaluated against the adopted 

Wekiva Study Area Comprehensive Plan policies.  While located within the Wekiva River Basing Study Area, 

the subject property is not located within the Protection Area. The proposed amendment is consistent with the 

adopted mandates and requirements.  The proposed Future Land Use Map (FLUM) amendment has been 

reviewed against the best available data, with regard to aquifer and groundwater resources.  The City of 

Apopka's adopted Comprehensive Plan addresses aquifer recharge and stormwater run-off through the 

following policies: 

 

 Future Land Use Element, Policies 4.16, 14.4, 15.1, 16.2 and 18.2 

 Infrastructure Element, Policies 1.5.5, 4.2.7, 4.4, 4.4.1, 4.4.2 and 4.4.3 

 Conservation Element, Policy 3.18 

 

Karst Features: The Karst Topography Features Map from the Florida Department of Environmental 

Protection shows that there are no karst features on this property. 

 

 Analysis of the character of the Property:  The Property fronts Lake Alden Drive.  The vegetative 

communities present are urban; the soils present are Candler fine sand; and no wetlands occur on the site, and 

the terrain is level. 

 

 The proposed amendment is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan, including Policy 3.1.e Low 

Density Residential Future Land Use designation. 

Page 89



CITY COUNCIL – DECEMBER 17, 2014 

J. WILLIAM ARROWSMITH  - FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 4 
 

 

 Analysis of the relationship of the amendment to the population projections: The proposed future land 

use designation for the Property is Residential Low (0-5 du/ac).  Based on the housing element of the City's 

Comprehensive Plan, this amendment will increase the City’s future population.   

 

CALCULATIONS: 

ADOPTED (City designation): 1 Unit(s) x 2.659 p/h = 3 persons 

PROPOSED (City designation): 6 Unit(s) x 2.659 p/h = 17 persons 

 

 Housing Needs: This amendment will not negatively impact the housing needs as projected in the 

Comprehensive Plan.   

 

 Habitat for species listed as endangered, threatened or of special concern: Per policy 4.1 of the 

Conservation Element, a habitat study is required for developments greater than ten (10) acres in size.  This site 

is less than ten acres.  A habitat study will not be required at the time of a development plan application.   

 

 Transportation: The City of Apopka is a Transportation Concurrency Exception Area.  Refer to Chapter 

3 of the City of Apopka 2010 Comprehensive Plan. 

 

 Sanitary Sewer Analysis 

 

1. Facilities serving the site; current LOS; and LOS standard:  None ;  N/A  GPD/Capita; 

 81 GPD / Capita 

 

 If the site is not currently served, please indicate the designated service provider: City of Apopka 

 

2. Projected total demand under existing designation:   196   GPD 

 

3. Projected total demand under proposed designation:  1372  GPD 

 

4. Capacity available: Yes 

 

5. Projected LOS under existing designation:   81  GPD/Capita 

 

6. Projected LOS under proposed designation:   81  GPD/Capita 

 

7. Improved/expansions already programmed or needed as a result if proposed amendment: None 
 

 Potable Water Analysis 

 

1. Facilities serving the site; current LOS; and LOS standard:  None ;  N/A       GPD/Capita; 

 177 GPD/Capita 

 

 If the site is not currently served, please indicate the designated service provider: 

 City of Apopka 

 

2. Projected total demand under existing designation:    454  GPD 

 

3. Projected total demand under proposed designation:  3178 GPD 

 

Page 90



CITY COUNCIL – DECEMBER 17, 2014 

J. WILLIAM ARROWSMITH  - FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 5 
 

4. Capacity available: Yes 

 

5. Projected LOS under existing designation:  177  GPD/Capita 

 

6. Projected LOS under proposed designation:  177  GPD/Capita 

 

7. Improved/expansions already programmed or needed as a result of the proposed amendment: 

None 

 

8. Parcel located within the reclaimed water service area:  No           
 

 Solid Waste 

 

1. Facilities serving the site: City of Apopka  

 

2. If the site is not currently served, please indicate the designated service provider: 

City of Apopka 

 

3. Projected LOS under existing designation:  12   lbs./person/day 

 

4. Projected LOS under proposed designation:  76  lbs./person/day 

 

5. Improved/expansions already programmed or needed as a result of the proposed amendment: 

None 

 

 This initial review does not preclude conformance with concurrency requirements at the time of 

development approval. 

 

Infrastructure Information 

 

 Water treatment plant permit number: CUP No. 3217 

 

 Permitting agency: St. John's River Water Management District 

 

 Permitted capacity of the water treatment plant(s):  21,981 mil. GPD 

 

 Total design capacity of the water treatment plant(s):  33,696 mil. GPD 

 

 Availability of distribution lines to serve the property: Yes 

 

 Availability of reuse distribution lines available to serve the property: Yes 
 

 Drainage Analysis 

 

1. Facilities serving the site: None 

 

2. Projected LOS under existing designation:  100 year - 24 hour design storm  

 

3. Projected LOS under proposed designation: 100 year - 24 hour design storm  

 

Page 91



CITY COUNCIL – DECEMBER 17, 2014 

J. WILLIAM ARROWSMITH  - FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 6 
 

4. Improvement/expansion: On-site retention/detention pond  

 

 Recreation 

 

1. Facilities serving the site; LOS standard: City of Apopka Parks System; 3 AC/1000 capita 

 

2. Projected facility under existing designation:  0.003 AC 

 

3. Projected facility under proposed designation:  0.021 AC 

 

4. Improvement/expansions already programmed or needed as a result of the proposed amendment: 

None 

 

This initial review does not preclude conformance with concurrency requirements at the time of development 

approval. 

  

Page 92



CITY COUNCIL – DECEMBER 17, 2014 

J. WILLIAM ARROWSMITH  - FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 7 
 

J. William Arrowsmith 
1.29 +/- Acres 

Existing Maximum Allowable Development: 0 dwelling units 
Proposed Maximum Allowable Development: 6 dwelling units 

Proposed Small Scale Future Land Use Change 
From: Parks & Recreation 

To: Residential Low (0-5 du/ac) 
Proposed Zoning Change 

From: PR 
To: R-1AA 

Parcel ID #s: 32-20-28-0000-00-057 & 32-20-28-0000-00-066 
 

VICINITY MAP 

 
 

Subject Property 

Page 93



CITY COUNCIL – DECEMBER 17, 2014 

J. WILLIAM ARROWSMITH  - FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 8 
 

ADJACENT ZONING 
 

  

Subject Property 

Page 94



CITY COUNCIL – DECEMBER 17, 2014 

J. WILLIAM ARROWSMITH  - FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 9 
 

 

ADJACENT USES 

 

 

 

Page 95



ORDINANCE NO. 2400 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, AMENDING 
THE FUTURE LAND USE ELEMENT OF THE APOPKA 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN OF THE CITY OF APOPKA; CHANGING THE 
FUTURE LAND USE DESIGNATION FROM PARKS AND RECREATION 
TO RESIDENTIAL LOW (0-5 DU/AC) FOR CERTAIN REAL PROPERTY 
GENERALLY LOCATED SOUTH OF LAKE ALDEN DRIVE, WEST O F 
ERROL PARKWAY, AND EAST OF OLD MAGNOLIA COVE, 
COMPRISING 1.29 ACRES MORE OR LESS, AND OWNED BY J. 
WILLIAM ARROWSMITH; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; AND 
PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Apopka adopted the Apopka 

Comprehensive Plan by Ordinance No. 653 on October 2, 1991, pursuant to Section 163.3184, 

Florida Statutes and most recently amended it by Ordinance No. 2390 on November 19, 2014; 

and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City of Apopka’s local planning agency (Planning Commission) has, in 

preparation of the amended version of the Apopka Comprehensive Plan, analyzed the proposed 

amendment pursuant to Chapter 163, Part II, F.S., found it to be consistent with the intent of the 

Apopka Comprehensive Plan, and held public hearings providing for full public participation. 

 

 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, by the City Council of the City of Apopka, 

Florida, as follows: 

 

 Section I. Purpose and Intent. 

 

 This Ordinance is enacted to carry out the purpose and intent of, and exercise the 

authority set out in, the Local Government Comprehensive Planning and Land Development 

Regulation Act, Sections 163.3184 and 163.3187, Florida Statutes. 

 

 Section II. Future Land Use Element. 

  

 Page 1-15 (Map 1-3) of the Future Land Use Element of the City of Apopka 

Comprehensive Plan, as most recently amended by Ordinance No. 2390, is amended in its 

entirety to change the land use from Parks & Recreation to Residential Low (0-5 du/ac) for 

certain real property generally located south of Lake Alden Drive, west of Errol Parkway, and 

east of Old Magnolia Cove, comprising 1.29 acres more or less (Parcel Nos. 

32-20-28-0000-00-057 & 32-20-28-0000-00-066); as further described in Exhibit “A” attached 

hereto. 

 

 Section III. Applicability and Effect. 

 

 The applicability and effect of the City of Apopka Comprehensive Plan shall be as 

provided by the Local Government Comprehensive Planning and Land Development Regulation 

Act, Sections 163.3161 through 163.3215, Florida Statutes. 

Page 96



ORDINANCE NO. 2400 

PAGE 2 
 

 

 

 Section IV.  Severability. 

 

 If any provision or portion of this Ordinance is declared by any court of competent 

jurisdiction to be void, unconstitutional, or unenforceable, then all remaining provisions and 

portions of this Ordinance shall remain in full force and effect. 

 

 Section V.  The Community Development Director is hereby authorized to amend the 

Future Land Use to comply with this ordinance. 

 

 Section VI. Effective Date. 

 

 This Ordinance shall become effective upon adoption. 

 

 ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Apopka, Florida, this 

 7
th

  day of  January , 2015. 
 

 
READ FIRST TIME:  

 
December 17, 2014 

 
READ SECOND TIME 
AND ADOPTED:     

 
 
January 7, 2015 

 

 

 ______________________________________ 

       Joseph E. Kilsheimer, Mayor                         

 

ATTEST:  

 

 

__________________________________ 

Linda Goff, City Clerk 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

 

__________________________________ 

Clifford B. Shepard, City Attorney 

 

DULY ADVERTISED FOR TRANSMITTAL HEARING:   November 21, 2014 

         December 26, 2014 

         January 2, 2015 

Page 97



 

 

EXHIBIT “A” 
ORDINANCE NO. 2400 

 
J. WILLIAM ARROWSMITH 

1.29 +/- Acres 

Existing Maximum Allowable Development: 0 Units 

Proposed Maximum Allowable Development: 6 Units 

Proposed Future Land Use Change  

From: Parks & Recreation 

To: Residential Low (0-5 du/ac) 

Parcel ID #s:  32-20-28-0000-00-057 & 32-20-28-0000-00-066 

 
 

 

Page 98



 

CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

   X    PUBLIC HEARING      DATE:  December 17, 2014 
          ANNEXATION      FROM: Community Development 
          PLAT APPROVAL      EXHIBITS: Zoning Report 
   X    OTHER: Ordinance         Vicinity Map 
           Adjacent Zoning Map 
           Adjacent Uses Map  
           Ordinance No. 2401 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

SUBJECT: ORDINANCE NO. 2401 – CHANGE OF ZONING – J. WILLIAM 
ARROWSMITH - FROM PR (PARKS & RECREATION) TO R-1AA (0-5 
DU/AC) (RESIDENTIAL) 

     

Request: FIRST READING OF ORDINANCE NO. 2401 – CHANGE OF ZONING – 
J. WILLIAM ARROWSMITH - FROM PR (PARKS & RECREATION) TO 
R-1AA (0-5 DU/AC) (RESIDENTIAL); PARCEL ID NUMBERS: 32-20-28-
0000-00-057 & 32-20-28-0000-00-066; AND HOLD OVER FOR SECOND 
READING & ADOPTION. 

_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

SUMMARY 
 
OWNER/APPLICANT: J. William Arrowsmith  
 
LOCATION:   West of Errol Parkway, south of Lake Alden Road (1720 Lake Alden Rd.) 
 
EXISTING USE:  Parks & Recreation easement 
 
FUTURE LAND USE: Parks and Recreation 
 
PROPOSED 
LAND USE: Residential Low (0-5 du/ac) (Note: this Change of Zoning amendment request is 

being processed along with a request to change the Future Land Use Map 
designation from Parks and Recreation to Residential Low (0-5 du/ac). 

 
ZONING:   PR (Parks & Recreation) 
 
PROPOSED 
ZONING:   R-1AA (min. lot area of 12,500 sq. ft.) 
 
PROPOSED 
DEVELOPMENT:  Residential Development 
 
TRACT SIZE:   1.29 +/- acres 
 
MAXIMUM ALLOWABLE 
DEVELOPMENT:  EXISTING ZONING:  0 Residential Units 
    PROPOSED ZONING: 6 Residential Units 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

DISTRIBUTION 

Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Dir.     Public Ser. Dir. 

Commissioners (4)    HR Director     City Clerk 

City Administrator    IT Director     Fire Chief 

Community Dev. Dir.    Police Chief  

G:\Shared\4020\PLANNING_ZONING\REZONING\2014\Arrowsmith JW – ZON\Arrowsmith JW – Lake Alden Dr – ZON – CC 12-17-14  Page 99



CITY COUNCIL – DECEMBER 17, 2014 
J. WILLIAM ARROWSMITH – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 2 

 
ADDITIONAL COMMENTS: 
 
The subject property was annexed into the City of Apopka on May 17, 1995, through the adoption of Ordinance 
No. 882.  The proposed zoning change is compatible with the character of the surrounding area and the subject 
parcels are vacant.  The applicant has requested the R-1AA zoning to assure that the property can be developed 
as a single-family residence and meet site and access requirements, and be compatible with surrounding nature 
of development. The zoning application covers approximately 1.29 acres. The property owner intends to use the 
site for a residential development.   Currently, the subject property comprises two parcels.  The northern parcel 
is 0.49 acres and the southern parcel is 0.8 acres. Based on the configuration and shape of the subject property, 
and taking into consideration existing development already exists on abutting parcels, the property is likely 
limited to one unit per parcel.  Along Lake Alden Drive the width of the subject property is too narrow to 
accommodate a road meeting the City’s design standards together with suitable lot depth.  Both parcels 
currently have access to Lake Alden Drive. 
 
Staff has analyzed the proposed amendment and determined that adequate public facilities exist to support this 
zoning change (see attached Zoning Report). 
 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN COMPLIANCE:  The proposed R-1AA rezoning is consistent with the Future Land 
Use Designation of Residential Low Density (up to five units per acre) that is assigned to the property.   
Minimum lot size for property assigned the R-1AA zoning category is 12,500 sq. ft.   
 
SCHOOL CAPACITY REPORT:  The proposed rezoning will result in an increase in the number of 
residential units which could be developed at the subject property.   Zoning currently assigned to the property, 
PR, does not allow residential structures with the zoning district while the proposed change of zoning to R-1AA 
limits lot size to a minimum of 12,500 sq. ft.  A capacity enhancement agreement with OCPS is not necessary 
because the impacts on schools will be deminimus.  
 
ORANGE COUNTY NOTIFICATION:  The JPA requires the City to notify the County 30 days before any 
public hearing or advisory board.  The City properly notified Orange County on September 25, 2014.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 
December 9, 2014 – Planning Commission (5:01 pm) 
December 17, 2014 - City Council (8:00 pm) - 1st Reading 
January 7, 2015 – City Council (1:30 pm) - 2nd Reading 
 
DULY ADVERTISED: 
November 21, 2014 – Public Notice and Notification 
December 26, 2014 – Ordinance Heading Ad 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
The Development Review Committee recommends approval of the change in Zoning from PR to R-1AA for 
the parcel owned by J. William Arrowsmith. 
 
The Planning Commission, at its meeting on December 9, 2014, recommended approval (7-0) of the change in 
Zoning from PR to R-1AA for the parcel owned by J. William Arrowsmith. 
 
Note: This item is considered quasi-judicial.  The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated into 
and made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 
 
  

Page 100



CITY COUNCIL – DECEMBER 17, 2014 
J. WILLIAM ARROWSMITH – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 3 

 
ZONING REPORT 

 
RELATIONSHIP TO ADJACENT PROPERTIES: 

Direction Future Land Use Zoning Present Use 

North (City) Res Medium Low & Parks/Recreation PR & R-3 Single-Family Homes ,  Conservation (Lake Francis Village) 

East (County) Residential Low (0-5 du/ac) R-1A Single-Family Homes (Errol Estates) 

South (City) Residential Low (0-5 du/ac) R-3 Single-Family Homes (Lexington Club Phase 2)  

West (City) Residential Medium  R-3 Townhomes (Errol Village 1 and 2) 

 

LAND USE &  

TRAFFIC COMPATIBILITY: The subject property fronts and is accessed by a local roadway (Lake Alden 

Road).   

 

 The zoning application covers approximately 1.29 acres. The property owner 

intends to use the site for a residential development.   Currently, the subject 

property comprises two parcels.  The northern parcel is 0.49 acres and the 

southern parcel is 0.8 acres. Based on the configuration and shape of the 

subject property, and taking into consideration existing development already 

exists on abutting parcels, the property is likely limited to one unit per parcel.  

Along Lake Alden Drive the width of the subject property is too narrow to 

accommodate a road meeting the City’s design standards together with 

suitable lot depth.  Along Lake Aden Drive, the subject property has a width 

of 100 feet.  Considering a street must have a minimum width of 50 feet, only 

50 feet would be available to accommodate lot depth, which is not sufficient 

to meet front and rear yard setbacks.  Therefore, the subject parcel will   

remain as two parcels. Both parcels currently have access to Lake Alden 

Drive. 

 

 Townhomes are located on the property abutting the subject property’s 

western boundary.  Existing single family homes to the east are assigned a 

zoning category of R-1AA, minimum lot size of 12,500 sq. ft., and have lot 

size ranging from 16,500 to 21,416 sq. ft. with the largest lot representing a 

corner lot.  Each of the two parcels comprising the subject property contains 

34,787 and 21,253 sq. ft., respectively. 

 

COMPREHENSIVE  

PLAN COMPLIANCE: The proposed R-1AA zoning is consistent with the City’s Residential Low (0-

5 du/ac) Future Land Use category and with the character of the surrounding 

area and future proposed development.  Per Section 2.02.01, Table II-1, of 

the Land Development Code, R-1AA zoning is one of the acceptable zoning 

districts allowed within the Residential Low Density Future Land Use 

category.   Development Plans shall not exceed the density allowed in the 

adopted Future Land Use Designation. 

  

Page 101



CITY COUNCIL – DECEMBER 17, 2014 
J. WILLIAM ARROWSMITH – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 4 

 

R-1AA DISTRICT 

REQUIREMENTS:  

Minimum Living Area: 1,700 sq. ft. 

Minimum Site Area: 12,500 sq. ft. 

Minimum Lot Width Ninety Five feet, measured at the front 

the building line. 

Setbacks: Front: 25 ft. 

 Rear: 20 ft. 

 Side: 10 ft. 

 Corner 25 ft. 

Based on the above zoning standards, the existing 1.24 acre parcel complies 

with code requirements for the R-1AA district. 

 
BUFFERYARD  
REQUIREMENTS: Developments shall provide a minimum six-foot high brick, stone or decora-

tive block finished wall adjacent to all external roadways, erected inside a 
minimum ten-foot landscaped bufferyard. Landscape materials shall be 
placed adjacent to the right-of-way, on the exterior of the buffer wall. The 
city may allow the developer the option to provide up to 50 percent of the 
buffer wall length in a six-foot wrought iron fence between solid columns. 
The columns shall be a minimum of 32 feet off-set and shall have a stone, 
brick or decorative block finish. Where wrought iron is used, additional 
landscape materials and irrigation may be required. This will be determined 
by the city on a case-by-case basis. [This requirement is not applicable if the front 
of the home faces an existing street.] 

ALLOWABLE  

USES: Single-family dwellings and their customary accessory structures provided 
they are consistent with the stated purpose of this zoning district. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 Page 102



CITY COUNCIL – DECEMBER 17, 2014 
J. WILLIAM ARROWSMITH – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 5 

 
 

J. William Arrowsmith 
1.29 +/- Acres 

Proposed Zoning Change: 
From: PR – Parks & Recreation 

To: R-1AA (Residential)(12,500 sq. ft. min. lot) 
Parcel ID #: 32-20-28-0000-00-057 & 32-20-28-0000-00-066 

 
 

VICINITY MAP 

 
 

  

S
u

b
je

c
t 

P
ro

p
e

rt
y
 

Page 103



CITY COUNCIL – DECEMBER 17, 2014 
J. WILLIAM ARROWSMITH – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 6 

 

 
 

ADJACENT ZONING 

 

 

 

 
  

S
u

b
je

c
t 

P
ro

p
e

rt
y

 

Page 104



CITY COUNCIL – DECEMBER 17, 2014 
J. WILLIAM ARROWSMITH – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 7 

 

 

ADJACENT USES 

 
 

 

 

Page 105



 
ORDINANCE NO. 2401 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, CHANGING THE 

ZONING FROM PR TO R-1AA (0-5 DU/AC) FOR CERTAIN REAL PROPERTY 

GENERALLY LOCATED SOUTH OF LAKE ALDEN DRIVE, WEST OF ERROL 

PARKWAY, AND EAST OF OLD MAGNOLIA COVE, COMPRISING 1.29 

ACRES MORE OR LESS, AND OWNED BY J. WILLIAM ARROWSMITH; 

PROVIDING FOR DIRECTIONS TO THE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 

DIRECTOR, SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS, AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 
 WHEREAS, to manage the growth, the City of Apopka, Florida, finds it in the best interest of the 
public health, safety and welfare of its citizens to establish zoning classifications within the City; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Apopka has requested a change in zoning on said property as identified 
in Section I of this ordinance; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the proposed R-1AA (0-5 du/ac) zoning has been found to be consistent with the 
City of Apopka Comprehensive Plan, and the City of Apopka Land Development Code. 
 
 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, by the City Council of the City of Apopka, Florida, 
as follows: 
 
 Section I.  That the zoning classification of the following described property, being situated in the 
City of Apopka, Florida, is hereby R-1AA (0-5 du/ac), as defined in the Apopka Land Development 
Code. 
 
 Legal Description: 
 

BEGINNING AT THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF LOT 15, BLOCK A, ERROL 

ESTATE ACCORDING TO THE PLAT THEREOF AS RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK 3, 

PAGE 81, OF THE PUBLIC RECORDS OF ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA, THENCE 

RUN SOUTH 02º21’56” WEST, MORE OR LESS, A DISTANCE OF 560 FEET, 

THENCE WEST, MORE OR LESS, A DISTANCE OF 100 FEET, THENCE NORTH 

02º21’56” EAST, MORE OR LESS, A DISTANCE OF 560 FEET, THENCE EAST, 

MORE OR LESS, A DISTANCE OF 100 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING. 

Parcel ID # 32-20-28-0000-00-057 

0.80 acres +/- 

 

COMMENCE AT THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF LOT 15, BLOCK A, ERROL 

ESTATE ACCORDING TO THE PLAT THEREOF AS RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK 3, 

PAGE 81, OF THE PUBLIC RECORDS OF ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA, THENCE 

RUN NORTH 88º13’09” EAST, A DISTANCE OF 15 FEET FOR THE POINT OF 

BEGINNING, THENCE CONTINUE NORTH 88º13’09” EAST, A DISTANCE OF 85 

FEET, THENCE SOUTH 02º21’56” WEST, A DISTANCE OF 250 FEET, THENCE 

SOUTH 88º13’09” WEST, A DISTANCE OF 85 FEET, THENCE NORTH 02º21’56” 

WEST, A DISTANCE OF 250 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING. 

Parcel ID # 32-20-28-0000-00-066 

0.49 acres +/- 

 

1.29 +/- Combined Acreage 
 

Page 106



ORDINANCE NO. 2401 

PAGE 2 
 

 

 Section II.  That the zoning classification is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan of the City of 

Apopka, Florida. 

 

 Section III.  That the Community Development Director, or the Director’s designee, is hereby 

authorized to amend, alter, and implement the official zoning maps of the City of Apopka, Florida, to 

include said designation.  The Community Development Director shall not accept an application for a 

development plan until such time the property owner addresses school capacity enhancement review with 

Orange County Public Schools. 

 

 Section IV. That if any section or portion of a section or subsection of this Ordinance proves to be 

invalid, unlawful, or unconstitutional, it shall not be held to invalidate or impair the validity, force or 

effect of any other section or portion of section or subsection or part of this ordinance. 

 

 Section V.  That all ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby repealed.   

 

 Section VI.  That this Ordinance shall take effect upon adoption of Ordinance No. 2400. 

 

 
 

                       
 
 

       _____________________________________ 
       Joseph E. Kilsheimer, Mayor                                  
 
ATTEST:  
 
 
 
__________________________________ 
Linda Goff, City Clerk 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
__________________________________ 
Clifford B. Shepard, Esq., City Attorney 
 
 
DULY ADVERTISED:  November 21, 2014 
     December 26, 2014 

READ FIRST TIME:  December 17, 2014 
 
READ SECOND TIME 
AND ADOPTED:     

 
 
January 7, 2015 

Page 107



CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

   X    PUBLIC HEARING      DATE:  December 17, 2014 
          ANNEXATION      FROM: Community Development 
          PLAT APPROVAL      EXHIBITS: Land Use Report 
   X    OTHER: Ordinance         Vicinity Map 
           Adjacent Zoning Map 
           Adjacent Uses Map 
           Existing Uses 
           Ordinance No. 2402 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

SUBJECT: ORDINANCE NO. 2402 – COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AMENDMENT – SMALL 
SCALE - FUTURE LAND USE – PROPERTY INDUSTRIAL ENTERPRISES, 
LLC - FROM “COUNTY” LOW-MEDIUM RESIDENTIAL  DENSITY (0-10 
DU/AC) TO “CITY” INDUSTRIAL (RESTRICTED) (0.6 FAR) 

     

Request: FIRST READING OF ORDINANCE NO. 2402 – COMPREHENSIVE PLAN 
AMENDMENT – SMALL SCALE - FUTURE LAND USE – PROPERTY 
INDUSTRIAL ENTERPRISES, LLC - FROM “COUNTY” LOW-MEDIUM 
RESIDENTIAL  DENSITY (0-10 DU/AC) TO “CITY” INDUSTRIAL 
(RESTRICTED) (0.6 FAR); PARCEL ID NUMBERS: 09-21-28-0868-01-250 & 09-21-
28-0868-01-260; AND HOLD OVER FOR SECOND READING & ADOPTION. 

_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

SUMMARY 
 
OWNER/APPLICANT: Property Industrial Enterprises, LLC, c/o Michael Cooper 
 
LOCATION: 320 and 328 West 2

nd
 Street (South of West 2

nd
 Street, west of South Hawthorne 

Avenue, and south of West Orange Blossom Trail/CSX Railroad Line) 
 
EXISTING USE:  Single Family Residences (2) 
 
CURRENT ZONING: “County” R-2 
 
PROPOSED 
ZONING: “City” I-1 (Industrial) (Note: this Future Land Use Map amendment request is 

being processed along with a request to change the Zoning Map designation from 
“County” R-2 to “City” I-1 (Industrial). 

 
PROPOSED 
DEVELOPMENT:  Industrial, Commercial or Office Development consistent with I-1 zoning 
 
TRACT SIZE:   0.84 +/- acre 
 
MAXIMUM ALLOWABLE 
DEVELOPMENT:  EXISTING:   2 Residential Units (subject property is platted as two lots) 
    PROPOSED:  21,954 Sq. Ft.  
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer     Finance Dir.    Public Ser. Dir. 
Commissioners (4)     HR Director    City Clerk 
City Administrator     IT Director    Fire Chief 
Community Dev. Dir.     Police Chief   
 
G:\Shared\4020\PLANNING_ZONING\Small Scale\2014\Property Industrial Enterprises 320_324 W 2nd St\Property Industrial Enterprises 320_324 W 2nd St FLU CC 12-17-14 1st Rd Page 108



CITY COUNCIL – DECEMBER 17, 2014 

PROPERTY INDUSTRIAL ENTERPRISES, LLC - FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 2 
 
 

ADDITIONAL COMMENTS: 
The subject parcel was annexed into the City of Apopka on October 1, 2014, through the adoption of Ordinance 

No. 2381.  The proposed Small-Scale Future Land Use Amendment is being requested by the owner/applicant.  

Pursuant to Florida law, properties containing less than ten acres are eligible to be processed as a small-scale 

amendment.  Such process does not require review by State planning agencies. 

 

A request to assign an I-1 (Industrial) zoning category to the Property is being processed in conjunction with 

this future land use amendment request for an Industrial designation.  The FLUM amendment application 

covers approximately 0.84 acre and represents two platted lots within the Bradshaw and Thompsons Addition to 

Apopka City, Plat Book B, Page 25, Lot 26, Block A.  Each lot is over 18,000 sq. ft., exceeding the minimum 

development site area of 15,000 sq. ft. Abutting lands to the north, west and south are already owned by the 

same property owner as the applicant and assigned an Industrial FLUM designation.  After a Future Land Use 

Designation and Zoning Category are assigned to the subject property, property owner intends to incorporate 

them into the abutting industrial park under the same ownership.  The property owner intends to use the subject 

site for industrial, commercial or office development consistent with Industrial FLUM designation and  I-1 

zoning category.    

 

In conjunction with state requirements, staff has analyzed the proposed amendment and determined that 

adequate public facilities exist to support this land use change (see attached Land Use Report). 

 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN COMPLIANCE: The existing and proposed use of the property is consistent 

with the Industrial Future Land Use designation and the City’s proposed I-1 Zoning designation.  Site 

development cannot exceed the intensity allowed by the Future Land Use policies. 

 

SCHOOL CAPACITY REPORT: Because this Future Land Use Amendment represents a change to a non-

residential designation, notification of Orange County Public Schools is not required. 

 

ORANGE COUNTY NOTIFICATION: The JPA requires the City to notify the County 30 days before any 

public hearing or advisory board.  The City properly notified Orange County on November 12, 2014. 

 

PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 

December 9, 2014 – Planning Commission (5:01 pm) 

December 17, 2014 - City Council (8:00 pm) - 1st Reading 

January 7, 2015 – City Council (1:30 pm) - 2nd Reading 

 

DULY ADVERTISED: 

November 21, 2014 – Public Notice and Notification 

December 26, 2014 – Ordinance Heading Ad 

January 2, 2015 – ¼ Page w/Map Ad 

  

Page 109



CITY COUNCIL – DECEMBER 17, 2014 

PROPERTY INDUSTRIAL ENTERPRISES, LLC - FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 3 
 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 

 

The Development Review Committee finds the proposed amendment consistent with the Comprehensive Plan 

and  recommends approval of the change in Future Land Use from “County” Low-Medium Density Residential 

(0-10 du/ac) to “City” Industrial (0.6 FAR) for the property owned by Property Industrial Enterprises, LLC, c/o 

Michael Cooper. 

 

The Planning Commission, at its meeting on December 9, 2014, recommended approval (7-0) of the change in 

Future Land Use from “County” Low-Medium Density Residential (0-10 du/ac) to “City” Industrial (0.6 FAR) 

for the property owned by Property Industrial Enterprises, LLC, c/o Michael Cooper. 

 

City Council: 

Accept the First Reading of Ordinance No. 2402 and Hold it Over for Second Reading and Adoption on January 

7, 2015. 

 

Note: This item is considered quasi-judicial.  The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated into 

and made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 

Page 110



CITY COUNCIL – DECEMBER 17, 2014 

PROPERTY INDUSTRIAL ENTERPRISES, LLC - FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 4 
 

                                                                                                                                                                          

LAND USE REPORT 

 

I. RELATIONSHIP TO ADJACENT PROPERTIES: 

 

Direction Future Land Use Zoning Present Use 

North (City) Industrial PUD/I-1 Vacant Industrial 

East (County) Low Medium Density 

Residential (0-10 du/ac) 

R-2 Single-family home 

South (City) Industrial PUD/I-1 Vacant Industrial 

West (City) Industrial PUD/I-1 Vacant Industrial 

 

II. LAND USE ANALYSIS 
 
The general character of the area surrounding the subject property is industrial and commercial.  Remaining 
residential homes along 2

nd
 Street are anticipated to transition in the near future to industrial or commercial 

uses.  The property lies south of W 2
nd

 Street, north and east of Cooper Palms Parkway.  Lands on the east side 
of Hawthorne Avenue are assigned a Commercial FLUM designation.  A Future Land Use Designation of 
Industrial (0.6 FAR) is assigned to the properties on the north, south and west sides.  The property to the 
immediate east has a “county” future land use designation of Low Medium Density Residential Low (0-10 
du/ac), but is anticipated to transition to industrial or commercial uses in the future. 
 

 Wekiva River Protection Area: No 

 Area of Critical State Concern: No 

 DRI / FQD: No 

 

 JPA: The City of Apopka and Orange County entered into a Joint Planning Area (JPA ) 

agreement on October 26, 2004.  The subject property is located within the “Western Expressway Corridor Ar-

ea” of the JPA.  The proposed FLUM Amendment from “County” Low-Medium Density Residential (10 du/ac) 

to City “Industrial” is consistent with the intent of the Western Expressway Corridor Area JPA. 

 

 Wekiva Parkway and Protection Act: The proposed amendment has been evaluated against the adopted 

Wekiva Study Area Comprehensive Plan policies.  The proposed amendment is consistent with the adopted 

mandates and requirements.  The proposed Future Land Use Map (FLUM) amendment has been reviewed 

against the best available data, with regard to aquifer and groundwater resources.  The City of Apopka's adopted 

Comprehensive Plan addresses aquifer recharge and stormwater run-off through the following policies: 

 

• Future Land Use Element, Policies 4.16, 14.4, 15.1, 16.2 and 18.2 

• Infrastructure Element, Policies 1.5.5, 4.2.7, 4.4, 4.4.1, 4.4.2 and 4.4.3 

• Conservation Element, Policy 3.18 

 

 The Karst Topography Features Map from the Florida Department of Environmental Protection shows 

that there are no karst features currently known to occur on the subject property. 

 

 Analysis of the character of the Property:  The subject property has access to a city collector roadway 

(Hawthorne Avenue) and a freight rail line.  A single family residence is located on each of the subject lots.  The 

vegetative communities present are urban; the soils present are St. Lucie and Zolfo-Urban Land Complex. Page 111



CITY COUNCIL – DECEMBER 17, 2014 

PROPERTY INDUSTRIAL ENTERPRISES, LLC - FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 5 
 

 

 Analysis of the relationship of the amendment to the population projections: This property was annexed 

into the City on October 1, 2014. The Orange County Comprehensive Plan anticipated this property being 

developed with potential of up to sixty residential units.  Because this proposed land use change accommodates 

non-residential development, this amendment will not impact the population projections in the City's 

Comprehensive Plan. 
 

 CALCULATIONS: 

 

  ADOPTED (County designation): 2 Unit(s) x 2.659 p/h = 5 persons 

  PROPOSED (City designation): 0 Unit(s) x 2.659 p/h = 0 persons 
 

 Housing Needs:  Within the city limits and within the vicinity of this Property, sufficient undeveloped 

lands are assigned residential land use designations.  These undeveloped residential properties can adequately 

accommodate future population anticipated to occur within the city limits. 

 

 Transportation: The City of Apopka is a Transportation Concurrency Exception Area.  Refer to Chapter 

3 of the City of Apopka 2010 Comprehensive Plan.   

 

1.  Roadways.  The subject property has access to Hawthorne Avenue, which is a designated collector road.  

Hawthorne Avenue intersects with U.S. 441 and 4
th

 Street.  A limited access highway (S.R. 429/S.R. 

451) is a mile driving distance from the subject property. 

 

 Habitat for species listed as endangered, threatened or of special concern: Per policy 4.1 of the 

Conservation Element, a habitat study is required for developments greater than ten (10) acres in size.  This site 

is less than ten acres and is already developed and platted.  A habitat study will not be required at the time of a 

development plan application.   

 

 Transportation: The City of Apopka is a Transportation Concurrency Exception Area.  Refer to Chapter 

3 of the City of Apopka 2010 Comprehensive Plan. 

 

 Sanitary Sewer Analysis 

 

1. Facilities serving the site; current LOS; and LOS standard:  None ;  N/A  GPD/Capita; 

 81 GPD / Capita 

 

 If the site is not currently served, please indicate the designated service provider: City of Apopka 

 

2. Projected total demand under existing designation:  1568  GPD 

 

3. Projected total demand under proposed designation:   3293  GPD 

 

4. Capacity available: Yes 

 

5. Projected LOS under existing designation:  81 GPD/Capita 

 

6. Projected LOS under proposed designation:  81 GPD/Capita 

 

7. Improved/expansions already programmed or needed as a result if proposed amendment: None Page 112



CITY COUNCIL – DECEMBER 17, 2014 

PROPERTY INDUSTRIAL ENTERPRISES, LLC - FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 6 
 

 Potable Water Analysis 

 

1. Facilities serving the site; current LOS; and LOS standard:  City of Apopka ; 

 177 GPD/Capita;  177 GPD/Capita 

 

 If the site is not currently served, please indicate the designated service provider: 

 City of Apopka 

 

2. Projected total demand under existing designation:    3632  GPD 

 

3. Projected total demand under proposed designation:  4391 GPD 

 

4. Capacity available: Yes 

 

5. Projected LOS under existing designation:  177  GPD/Capita 

 

6. Projected LOS under proposed designation:  177  GPD/Capita 

 

7. Improved/expansions already programmed or needed as a result of the proposed amendment: 

None 

 

8. Parcel located within the reclaimed water service area:  No           
 

 Solid Waste 

 

1. Facilities serving the site: City of Apopka  

 

2. If the site is not currently served, please indicate the designated service provider: 

City of Apopka 

 

3. Projected LOS under existing designation:  32  lbs./person/day 

 

4. Projected LOS under proposed designation:  44  lbs./day/1000 SF 

 

5. Improved/expansions already programmed or needed as a result of the proposed amendment: 

None 

 

 This initial review does not preclude conformance with concurrency requirements at the time of 

development approval. 

 

Infrastructure Information 

 

 Water treatment plant permit number: CUP No. 3217 

 

 Permitting agency: St. John's River Water Management District 

 

 Permitted capacity of the water treatment plant(s):  21,981 mil. GPD 

 
Page 113



CITY COUNCIL – DECEMBER 17, 2014 

PROPERTY INDUSTRIAL ENTERPRISES, LLC - FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 7 
 

 Total design capacity of the water treatment plant(s):  33,696 mil. GPD 

 

 Availability of distribution lines to serve the property: Yes 

 

 Availability of reuse distribution lines available to serve the property: Yes 
 

 Drainage Analysis 

 

1. Facilities serving the site: None 

 

2. Projected LOS under existing designation:  100 year - 24 hour design storm  

 

3. Projected LOS under proposed designation: 100 year - 24 hour design storm  

 

4. Improvement/expansion: On-site retention/detention pond  

 

 Recreation 

 

1. Facilities serving the site; LOS standard: City of Apopka Parks System; 3 AC/1000 capita 

 

2. Projected facility under existing designation:  0.063 AC 

 

3. Projected facility under proposed designation:  N/A AC 

 

4. Improvement/expansions already programmed or needed as a result of the proposed amendment: 

None 

 

This initial review does not preclude conformance with concurrency requirements at the time of development 

approval. 

  

Page 114



CITY COUNCIL – DECEMBER 17, 2014 

PROPERTY INDUSTRIAL ENTERPRISES, LLC - FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 8 
 

Property Industrial Enterprises, LLC 
0.84 +/- Acre 

Existing Maximum Allowable Development: 2 residential dwelling units 
Proposed Maximum Allowable Development: 21,954 Sq. Ft. 

Proposed Small Scale Future Land Use Change 
From: “County” Low-Medium Density Residential (0-10 du/ac) 

To: “City” Industrial (0.30 FAR) 
Proposed Zoning Change 

From: “County” R-2 
To: “City” I-1 

Parcel ID #s: 09-21-28-0868-01-250 & 09-21-28-0868-01-260 
 

VICINITY MAP 

 

 
 

Subject 

Property 

Page 115



CITY COUNCIL – DECEMBER 17, 2014 

PROPERTY INDUSTRIAL ENTERPRISES, LLC - FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 9 
 

ADJACENT ZONING 
 

  

Page 116



CITY COUNCIL – DECEMBER 17, 2014 

PROPERTY INDUSTRIAL ENTERPRISES, LLC - FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 10 
 

 

ADJACENT USES 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 Page 117



CITY COUNCIL – DECEMBER 17, 2014 

PROPERTY INDUSTRIAL ENTERPRISES, LLC - FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 11 
 

EXISTING USES 

 

 

 

 
 

Page 118



ORDINANCE NO. 2402 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, AMENDING THE 

FUTURE LAND USE ELEMENT OF THE APOPKA COMPREHENSIVE PLAN 

OF THE CITY OF APOPKA; CHANGING THE FUTURE LAND USE 

DESIGNATION FROM “COUNTY” LOW-MEDIUM RESIDENTIAL DENSITY 

(0-10 DU/AC) TO “CITY” INDUSTRIAL (RESTRICTED) (0.6 FAR) FOR 

CERTAIN REAL PROPERTY GENERALLY LOCATED SOUTH OF WEST 2ND 

STREET, WEST OF SOUTH HAWTHORNE AVENUE, AND SOUTH OF WEST 

ORANGE BLOSSOM TRAIL/CSX RAILROAD LINE, COMPRISING 0.84 ACRES 

MORE OR LESS, AND OWNED BY PROPERTY INDUSTRIAL ENTERPRISES, 

LLC; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; AND PROVIDING FOR AN 

EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Apopka adopted the Apopka Comprehensive Plan by 

Ordinance No. 653 on October 2, 1991, pursuant to Section 163.3184, Florida Statutes and most recently 

amended it by Ordinance No. 2390 on November 19, 2014; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City of Apopka’s local planning agency (Planning Commission) has, in 

preparation of the amended version of the Apopka Comprehensive Plan, analyzed the proposed 

amendment pursuant to Chapter 163, Part II, F.S., found it to be consistent with the intent of the Apopka 

Comprehensive Plan, and held public hearings providing for full public participation. 

 

 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, by the City Council of the City of Apopka, Florida, 

as follows: 

 

 Section I. Purpose and Intent. 

 

 This Ordinance is enacted to carry out the purpose and intent of, and exercise the authority set out 

in, the Local Government Comprehensive Planning and Land Development Regulation Act, Sections 

163.3184 and 163.3187, Florida Statutes. 

 

 Section II. Future Land Use Element. 

  

 Page 1-15 (Map 1-3) of the Future Land Use Element of the City of Apopka Comprehensive Plan, 

as most recently amended by Ordinance No. 2390, is amended in its entirety to change the land use from 

“County” Low-Medium Residential Density (0-10 Du/Ac) to “City” Industrial (Restricted) (0.6 Far) for 

certain real property generally located south of West 2
nd

 Street, west of South Hawthorne Avenue, and 

south of West Orange Blossom Trail/CSX Railroad Line, comprising 0.84 acres more or less (Parcel Nos. 

09-21-28-0868-01-250 & 09-21-28-0868-01-260); as further described in Exhibit “A” attached hereto. 

 

 Section III. Applicability and Effect. 

 

 The applicability and effect of the City of Apopka Comprehensive Plan shall be as provided by the 

Local Government Comprehensive Planning and Land Development Regulation Act, Sections 163.3161 

through 163.3215, Florida Statutes. 

Page 119



ORDINANCE NO. 2402 

PAGE 2 
 

 

 Section IV.  Severability. 

 

 If any provision or portion of this Ordinance is declared by any court of competent jurisdiction to 

be void, unconstitutional, or unenforceable, then all remaining provisions and portions of this Ordinance 

shall remain in full force and effect. 

 

 Section V.  The Community Development Director is hereby authorized to amend the Future 

Land Use to comply with this ordinance. 

 

 Section VI. Effective Date.  This Ordinance shall become effective upon adoption. 

 

 ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Apopka, Florida, this 

 7
th

  day of  January , 2015. 
 

 
READ FIRST TIME:  

 
December 17, 2014 

 
READ SECOND TIME 
AND ADOPTED:     

 
 
January 7, 2015 

 

 

 ______________________________________ 

       Joseph E. Kilsheimer, Mayor                         

 

ATTEST:  

 

 

__________________________________ 

Linda Goff, City Clerk 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

 

__________________________________ 

Clifford B. Shepard, City Attorney 

 

DULY ADVERTISED FOR TRANSMITTAL HEARING:  November 21, 2014 

         December 26, 2014 

         January 2, 2015 

Page 120



 

 

EXHIBIT “A” 
ORDINANCE NO. 2402 

 

PROPERTY INDUSTRIAL ENTERPRISES, LLC 

0.84 +/- Acres 

Existing Maximum Allowable Development: 2 Residential Units 
Proposed Maximum Allowable Development: 21,954 Sq. Ft. 

Proposed Future Land Use Change  

From “County” Low-Medium Residential Density (0-10 Du/Ac) 

To “City” Industrial (Restricted) (0.6 Far) 

Parcel ID #s: 09-21-28-0868-01-250 & 09-21-28-0868-01-260  

 
 

 

Page 121



CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

   X    PUBLIC HEARING      DATE:  December 17, 2014 
          ANNEXATION      FROM: Community Development 
          PLAT APPROVAL      EXHIBITS: Zoning Report 
   X    OTHER: Ordinance         Vicinity Map 
           Adjacent Zoning Map 
           Adjacent Uses Map 
           Ordinance No. 2403 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

SUBJECT: ORDINANCE NO. 2403 – CHANGE OF ZONING – PROPERTY 
INDUSTRIAL ENTERPRISES, LLC - FROM “COUNTY” R-2 (0-10 
DU/AC) TO “CITY” I-1 (RESTRICTED INDUSTRIAL) (0.6 FAR) 

     

Request: FIRST READING OF ORDINANCE NO. 2403 – CHANGE OF ZONING – 
PROPERTY INDUSTRIAL ENTERPRISES, LLC - FROM “COUNTY” R-2 
(0-10 DU/AC) TO “CITY” I-1 (RESTRICTED INDUSTRIAL) (0.6 FAR)); 
PARCEL ID NUMBERS: 09-21-28-0868-01-250 & 09-21-28-0868-01-260; 
AND HOLD OVER FOR SECOND READING & ADOPTION. 

_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

SUMMARY 
 
OWNER/APPLICANT: Property Industrial Enterprises, LLC, c/o Michael Cooper 
 
LOCATION: 320 and 328 West 2

nd
 Street (South of West 2

nd
 Street, west of South Hawthorne 

Avenue, and south of West Orange Blossom Trail/CSX Railroad Line) 
 
EXISTING USE:  Single Family Residences (2) 
 
CURRENT LAND USE: “County” Low-Medium Density Residential (0-10 du/ac) 
 
PROPOSED 
LAND USE: “City” Industrial (Restricted) (Note: this Change of Zoning amendment request is 

being processed along with a request to change the Future Land Use Map 
designation from “County” Low-Medium Density Residential (0-10 du/ac) to 
“City” Industrial (Restricted). 

 
PROPOSED 
DEVELOPMENT:  Industrial, Commercial or Office Development consistent with I-1 zoning 
 
TRACT SIZE:   0.84 +/- acre (36,860 sq.ft.) 
 
MAXIMUM ALLOWABLE 
DEVELOPMENT:  EXISTING:   2 Residential Units 
    PROPOSED:  21,954 Sq. Ft.  
 
 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer     Finance Dir.    Public Ser. Dir. 
Commissioners (4)     HR Director    City Clerk 
City Administrator     IT Director    Fire Chief 
Community Dev. Dir.     Police Chief   

 
G:\Shared\4020\PLANNING_ZONING\Rezoning\2014\Property Industrial Enterprises 320_324 W 2nd St\Property Industrial Enterprises 320_324 W 2nd St ZON CC 12-17-14 

Page 122



CITY COUNCIL – DECEMBER 17, 2014 

PROPERTY INDUSTRIAL ENTERPRISES, LLC – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 2 
 
 

ADDITIONAL COMMENTS: 
The subject parcel was annexed into the City of Apopka on October 1, 2014, through the adoption of Ordinance 
No. 2381.  The proposed Change of Zoning is being requested by the owner/applicant.   
 
A request to assign a zoning category of I-1 Industrial (Restricted Industrial) to the Property. The zoning 
application covers approximately 0.84 acre and represents two lots within the Bradshaw and Thompsons 
Addition to Apopka City B/25 Lot 26 Block A plat.  Each lot is over 18,000 sq. ft., exceeding the minimum 
development site area of 15,000 sq. ft. Abutting lands to the north, west and south are already owned by the 
same property owner as the applicant.  After a Future Land Use Designation and Zoning Category are assigned 
to the subject property, property owner intends to incorporate them into the abutting industrial park under the 
same ownership.  The property owner intends to use the subject site for industrial, commercial or office 
development consistent with I-1 zoning.    
 
The general area surrounding the subject property is transitioning to industrial, commercial and warehouse uses. 
 
In conjunction with state requirements, staff has analyzed the proposed amendment and determined that 
adequate public facilities exist to support this change of zoning (see attached Zoning Report). 
 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN COMPLIANCE: The existing and proposed use of the property is consistent 
with the Industrial Future Land Use designation and the City’s proposed I-1 Zoning designation.  Site 
development cannot exceed the intensity allowed by the Future Land Use policies. 
 
SCHOOL CAPACITY REPORT: Because this Future Land Use Amendment represents a change to a non-
residential designation, notification of Orange County Public Schools is not required. 
 
ORANGE COUNTY NOTIFICATION: The JPA requires the City to notify the County 30 days before any 
public hearing or advisory board.  The City properly notified Orange County on November 12, 2014. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 
December 9, 2014 – Planning Commission (5:01 pm) 
December 17, 2014 - City Council (8:00 pm) - 1st Reading 
January 7, 2015 – City Council (1:30 pm) - 2nd Reading 
 
DULY ADVERTISED: 
November 21, 2014 – Public Notice and Notification 
December 26, 2014 – Ordinance Heading Ad 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
The Development Review Committee finds the proposed amendment consistent with the Comprehensive Plan 
and  recommends approval of the Change in Zoning from “County” R-2 (0-10 du/ac) to “City” I-1 (Restricted 
Industrial) (0.6 FAR) for the property owned by Property Industrial Enterprises, LLC, c/o Michael Cooper. 
 
The Planning Commission, at its meeting on December 9, 2014, recommended approval (7-0) of the Change in 
Zoning from “County” R-2 (0-10 du/ac) to “City” I-1 (Restricted Industrial) for the property owned by Property 
Industrial Enterprises, LLC, c/o Michael Cooper. 
 
City Council: 
Accept the First Reading of Ordinance No. 2403 and Hold Over for Second Reading and Adoption on January 
7, 2015. 
 
Note: This item is considered quasi-judicial.  The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated into 
and made a part of the minutes of this meeting. Page 123



CITY COUNCIL – DECEMBER 17, 2014 

PROPERTY INDUSTRIAL ENTERPRISES, LLC – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 3 
 

                                                                                        ZONING REPORT 

 

RELATIONSHIP TO ADJACENT PROPERTIES: 

 

Direction Future Land Use Zoning Present Use 

North (City) Industrial PUD/I-1 Vacant industrial 

East (County) Low Medium Density Residential (0-10 du/ac) R-2 Single-family home 

South (City) Industrial PUD/I-1 Vacant Industrial 

West (City) Industrial PUD/I-1 Vacant industrial 

 

LAND USE & TRAFFIC  

COMPATIBILITY:   The property has access to Cooper Palms Parkway.  At the time of the 

development plan application, access will occur from Cooper Palms 

Parkway and not from Second Street.    

  

 Properties to the north, south, and west are assigned Industrial Future 

Land Use Designation and an I-1 zoning category.  Lands to the east side 

of Hawthorne Avenue are assigned a zoning category of C-2 and C-3 

commercial.  Minimum lot size for I-1 is 15,000 sq. ft.  The subject 

property comprises  two lots, each exceeding 18,000 sq. ft.  Although the 

subject property comprises two lots, development must occur on both lots 

to meet the minimum lot size requirement under the I-1 zoning district. 

 

I-1 DISTRICT  

REQUIREMENTS:   Minimum Site Area:  15,000 sq. ft. 

     Minimum Lot Width:  100 ft. 

     Front Setback:   25 ft. 

     Side Setback:   10 ft.       

   Rear Setback:   10 ft. (30 ft. abutting residential) 

     Corner Setback:  25 ft. 

     FAR:    0.60 

 

BUFFERYARD  

REQUIREMENTS: Areas adjacent to all road rights-of-way shall provide a minimum twenty-

five (25) foot landscaped bufferyard.  Areas adjacent to residential uses or 

residentially zoned lands shall provide a minimum six foot-high masonry 

wall within a fifty foot landscaped bufferyard.    

 

ALLOWABLE USES:   Any non-residential use permitted in the PO/I Professional Office, CN 

Commercial Neighborhood, C-1 Retail Commercial, C-2 General 

Commercial, or C-3 Wholesale Commercial zoning districts are allowed 

within the I-1 Industrial category.    Land uses allowed in the I-1 Industrial 

district also include manufacturing, bus and truck repair, machinery sales, 

machinery shops, meat storage, warehouses, frozen food lockers, book 

binding, guard or custodian living quarters, adult entertainment or similar 

types of uses consistent with the standards of the Apopka Municipal Code. Page 124



CITY COUNCIL – DECEMBER 17, 2014 

PROPERTY INDUSTRIAL ENTERPRISES, LLC – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 4 
 

 
Property Industrial Enterprises, LLC 

0.84 +/- Acre 
Existing Maximum Allowable Development: 8 dwelling units 
Proposed Maximum Allowable Development: 21,954 Sq. Ft. 

Proposed Small Scale Future Land Use Change 
From: “County” Low-Medium Density Residential (0-10 du/ac) 

To: “City” Industrial 
Proposed Zoning Change 

From: “County” R-2 
To: “City” I-1 (Restricted Industrial) (0.6 FAR) 

Parcel ID #s: 09-21-28-0868-01-250 & 09-21-28-0868-01-260 
 

VICINITY MAP 

 

 
 

Subject 

Property 

Page 125



CITY COUNCIL – DECEMBER 17, 2014 

PROPERTY INDUSTRIAL ENTERPRISES, LLC – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 5 
 

ADJACENT ZONING 
 

  

Page 126



CITY COUNCIL – DECEMBER 17, 2014 

PROPERTY INDUSTRIAL ENTERPRISES, LLC – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 6 
 

 

ADJACENT USES 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 127



 
ORDINANCE NO. 2403 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, CHANGING THE 

ZONING FROM “COUNTY” R-2 (0-10 DU/AC) TO “CITY” I-1 (RESTRICTED) 

(0.6 FAR) PR TO I-1 (RESTRICTED INDUSTRIAL) (0.6 FAR) FOR CERTAIN 

REAL PROPERTY GENERALLY LOCATED SOUTH OF WEST 2
ND

 STREET, 

WEST OF SOUTH HAWTHORNE AVENUE, AND SOUTH OF WEST ORANGE 

BLOSSOM TRAIL/CSX RAILROAD LINE, COMPRISING 0.84 ACRES MORE 

OR LESS, AND OWNED BY PROPERTY INDUSTRIAL ENTERPRISES, LLC; 

PROVIDING FOR DIRECTIONS TO THE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 

DIRECTOR, SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS, AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 
 WHEREAS, to manage the growth, the City of Apopka, Florida, finds it in the best interest of the 
public health, safety and welfare of its citizens to establish zoning classifications within the City; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Apopka has requested a change in zoning on said property as identified 
in Section I of this ordinance; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the proposed I-1 (Restricted Industrial) (0.6 FAR) zoning has been found to be 
consistent with the City of Apopka Comprehensive Plan, and the City of Apopka Land Development 
Code. 
 
 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, by the City Council of the City of Apopka, Florida, 
as follows: 
 
 Section I.  That the zoning classification of the following described property, being situated in the 
City of Apopka, Florida, is hereby I-1 (Restricted Industrial) (0.6 FAR), as defined in the Apopka Land 
Development Code. 
 
 Legal Description: 
 
 320 W. 2

nd
 Street: 

Lot 25, Block A, Bradshaw and Thompson's Addition to Apopka Florida, according to the 

map or plat thereof, as recorded in Plat Book B, Page(s) 25, of the Public Records of 

Orange County, Florida. 

Parcel ID # 09-21-28-0868-01-250 

0.42 acre +/- 

 

328 W. 2
nd

 Street: 

Lot 26, Block A, Bradshaw and Thompson's Addition to Apopka, according to the map or 

plat thereof, as recorded in Plat Book B, Page(s) 25, of the Public Records of Orange 

County, Florida. 

Parcel ID # 09-21-28-0868-01-260 

0.42 acres +/- 

 

0.84 +/- Combined Acreage 
 

 Section II.  That the zoning classification is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan of the City of 

Apopka, Florida. 

 

 

Page 128



ORDINANCE NO. 2403 

PAGE 2 
 

 

 Section III.  That the Community Development Director, or the Director’s designee, is hereby 

authorized to amend, alter, and implement the official zoning maps of the City of Apopka, Florida, to 

include said designation.  The Community Development Director shall not accept an application for a 

development plan until such time the property owner addresses school capacity enhancement review with 

Orange County Public Schools. 

 

 Section IV. That if any section or portion of a section or subsection of this Ordinance proves to be 

invalid, unlawful, or unconstitutional, it shall not be held to invalidate or impair the validity, force or 

effect of any other section or portion of section or subsection or part of this ordinance. 

 

 Section V.  That all ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby repealed.   

 

 Section VI.  That this Ordinance shall take effect upon adoption of Ordinance No. 2402. 

 

 
 

                       
 
 

       _____________________________________ 
       Joseph E. Kilsheimer, Mayor                                  
 
ATTEST:  
 
 
 
__________________________________ 
Linda Goff, City Clerk 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
__________________________________ 
Clifford B. Shepard, Esq., City Attorney 
 
 
DULY ADVERTISED:  November 21, 2014 
     December 26, 2014 

READ FIRST TIME:  December 17, 2014 
 
READ SECOND TIME 
AND ADOPTED:     

 
 
January 7, 2015 

Page 129



    
    Presented To: Mayor and City Council 
     

 December 17, 2014 

Administrative Report  

Page 130



Visits      
2418 

Unique 
Visits        
2099 

Page Views 
12444 

Pages/Visit  
5.15 

Avg. Visit 
Duration 
00:02:99 

% New 
Visits 

71.42% 

A.S.K. 
Apopka Service Kiosk 

November 2013 –November 
2014 

Page 131



3 

3329 
4611 

6827 
8385 

14454 

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

Building Webpage Visits 

234024 273981 
379121 

640032 

510603 

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

Homepage Visits 

Page 132



4 

$484,188 $488,490 

$830,321 

$1,535,818 

$1,269,872 

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

Sewer Impact  

$244,395 $293,257 

$520,871 

$685,458 

$835,625 

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

Water Impact 

$475,254 $508,917 

$1,607,067 

$990,841 

$1,845,675 

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

Transportation Impact 

$2,864,265 

$1,191,951 $1,290,873 

$1,849,509 $1,726,551 

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

School Impact 

Page 133



5 

$459,569 

$222,216 

$347,006 
$425,304 $432,828 

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

Reuse Impact  

$54,718 

$32,060 

$55,200 

$73,520 
$63,820 

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

Recreation Impact 

194 

205.6 

194.8 

181.1 181 

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

Average Potable Water 
Billed 

213 
167 

258 281 

365 

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

New Potable Meters 
Set 

Page 134



6 

9073 9096 9480 10549 

20889 

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

ACH   

11969 12658 13260 13761 

20007 

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

Office Window   

5710 5601 5495 5235 

6646 

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

Drop Box   

18702 18927 18888 18491 

24443 

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

Drive-Up 
Window 

26838 31352 35589 39720 

62100 

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

Web   

62916 61222 58503 55772 
73650 

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

Mailed   

Page 135



7 

55 
67 

77 
89 90 

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

Arbor Permits 

$555 

$1,988 

$1,030 
$1,313 $1,192 

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

Arbor 
 Revenues 

$8,279 $1,738 $6,701 

$56,100 

$82,510 

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

Tree Bank  
Revenues 

Page 136



8 

132 

61 
107 92 91 

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

Automated Phone 
System Requests   

2604 
1555 1638 1506 

4595 

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

Internet Inspection 
Requests 

4516 4906 5265 
6465 

8094 

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

Office Inspection 
Requests 

Page 137



9 

2718 2284 2595 2971 
3832 

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

Permits Issued 

$90,161,460 
$72,178,149 

$142,341,329 

$113,316,429 
$130,210,545 

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

Value of  
Construction 

181 
107 

182 189 

412 

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

Certificates of 
Occupancy Issued 

7252 6521 7013 7993 

13569 

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

Inspections  Performed 

Page 138



10 

7.34 7.59 
7.1 6.8 6.5 

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

Water Plant – Average 
Daily Flow 

2.8 2.55 2.6 2.8 
3.3 

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

Wastewater  Plant 
Average Daily Flow 

157 

188 187 

159 
172 

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

Reclaimed Gallons 
Produced 

134 
168 180 

134 151 

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

Reclaimed Gallons 
Used 

Page 139



11 

13468 13385 13507 

13898 
14261 

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

Residential Customers 

638 638 640 
646 

658 

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

Commercial Customers 

11907 12774 13188 13621 
15447 

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

Recycling Customers 

Page 140



12 

Public Services - Water Conservation  
January - November 

47 

10 

60 

7 

24 

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

Program Rebates 

34 
41 

13 15 

39 

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

Rain Sensors Issued 

103 

155 
176 

115 

202 

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

System Evaluations 

$1,231  
$1,025  $930  $1,040  

$2,325  

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

Rebate Value 

Page 141



13 

1935 

918 

2411 

1478 1655 

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

League Events 

153 
136 132 126 

180 

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

Senior Events 

1289 

2042 
1752 

1522 

2212 

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

Facility Events 

44258 52157 

97636 
111821 

75476 

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

Special Events 
Attendees 

Page 142



14 

2694 2570 2607 2708 

3932 

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

EMS Calls For Service 

1009 978 1007 
897 

1340 

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

NFIRS Calls For 
Service 

1857 1794 1931 1992 

2744 

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

Annual Inspections 

Page 143



15 

2511 

1442 1430 

2448 2538 

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

Uniform Traffic Citations 

79 
65 

101 

76 83 

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

DUI Arrests 

1498 

567 
268 

939 

577 

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

Warning Citations 

100 

22 22 

344 

146 

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

Parking Citations 

Page 144



16 

63 70 
131 112 

311 

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

Unkempt Cases 

39 
24 35 48 

163 

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

Disabled Vehicle Cases 

170 161 
257 272 

754 

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

Total Code Enforcement Cases 

Page 145



17 

182 175 188 
229 

370 

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

New Business Tax 

791 

229 
459 

92 

1854 

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

Business Tax Renewals 

Page 146



Page 147


	Top
	1. 12/17/14 - Presentations - Jeff Tyre
	1. 12/14/14 - minutes special meeting
	11-19-14 Special.docx

	2. 12/17/14 - Minutes 11/19/14
	11-19-14.docx

	3. 12/17/14 - minutes 12/3/14
	12-03-14.docx

	4. 12/17/14 - Bid minutes
	Bid 2014-15 Minutes.pdf

	5. 12/17/14 - Fire Dept. Ambulance
	Ambulance green sheet.pdf

	6. Mitel IP Phone Upgrade
	OBTS GS_New.docx

	1. 12-17-14 - CC - Ordinances - 2nd Rd - Ord #2394 - Annex - Leslie &amp; Nancy Hebert
	1  Ord 2394 - Hebert - CC - 12-17-14 2nd Rd.pdf
	2 Exhibit A - 2014 Cycle 4 Spreadsheet.pdf
	3 Ord 2394 - Hebert.pdf
	4 City1AffiPub151081-933.pdf

	2. 12-17-14 - CC - Ordinances - 2nd Rd - Ord #2395 - Annex - McCarthy McCollugh
	1 Ord 2395 - McCollough - CC - 12-17-14 2nd Rd.pdf
	2 Exhibit A - 2014 Cycle 4 Spreadsheet.pdf
	3 Ord 2395 - McCollough.pdf
	4 City1AffiPub151081-933.pdf

	3. 12-17-14 - CC - Ordinances - 2nd Rd - Ord #2396 - Annex - Ahmed &amp; Moira L. Al-Malt
	1 Ord 2396 - Al-Malt - CC - 12-17-14 2nd Rd.pdf
	2 Exhibit A - 2014 Cycle 4 Spreadsheet.pdf
	3 Ord 2396 - Almalt.pdf
	4 City1AffiPub151081-933.pdf

	4. 12-17-14 - CC - Ordinances - 2nd Rd - Ord #2397 - Annex - Afzal &amp; Sabiya Khan
	1 Ord 2397 - Khan - CC - 12-17-14 2nd Rd.pdf
	2 Exhibit A - 2014 Cycle 4 Spreadsheet.pdf
	3 Ord 2397 - Khan.pdf
	4 City1AffiPub151081-933.pdf

	5. 12-17-14 - CC - Ordinances - 2nd Rd - Ord #2398 - Annex - Guarda and Son, LLC
	1 Ord 2398 - Guarda - CC - 12-17-14 2nd Rd.pdf
	2 Exhibit A - 2014 Cycle 4 Spreadsheet.pdf
	3 Exhibit B - 2014 Guarda Parcel.pdf
	4 Ord 2398 - Guarda.pdf
	5 City1AffiPub151081-933.pdf

	6. 12-17-14 - CC - Ordinances - 1st Rd - Ord #2399 - ZON - Appy Lane Holdings, LLC - Appy Lane
	1 Appy Lane Holdings - ZON - CC 12-17-14 1st Rd.pdf
	2 Ord 2399 Appy Lane Holdings - ZON.pdf
	3 Appy Lane Holdings - ZON - PUD Master Plan.pdf

	7. 12-17-14 - CC - Ordinances - 1st Rd - Ord #2400 - FLU - J. William Arrowsmith - Lake Alden Drive
	1 Arrowsmith JW - Lake Alden Dr - FLU - CC - 12-17-14 1st Rd.pdf
	2 Ord 2400 - Arrowsmith JW - Lake Alden Dr - FLU.pdf

	8. 12-17-14 - CC - Ordinances - 1st Rd - Ord #2401 - ZON - J. William Arrowsmith - Lake Alden Drive
	1 Arrowsmith JW - Lake Alden Dr - ZON - CC 12-17-14 1st Rd.pdf
	2 Ord 2401 Arrowsmith JW - Lake Alden Dr ZON.pdf

	9. 12-17-14 - CC - Ordinances - 1st Rd - Ord #2402 - FLU - Property Industrial Enterprises, LLC - W 2nd Street
	1 Property Industrial Enterprises - 320_328 W 2nd St - FLU - CC - 12-17-14 1st Rd.pdf
	2 Ord 2402 - Property Industrial Enterprises - 320_328 W 2nd St - FLU.pdf

	10. 12-17-14 - CC - Ordinances - 1st Rd - Ord #2403 - ZON - Property Industrial Enterprises, LLC - W 2nd St
	1 Property Industrial Enterprises - 320_328 W 2nd St - ZON - CC - 12-17-14 1st Rd.pdf
	2 Ord 2403 Property Industrial Enterprises - 320_328 W 2nd St - ZON.pdf

	1. 12/17/14 - Administrative Report
	201411AdministrativeReport.pptx

	Bottom

